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Hon'ble Finance Minister in his budget speech of 2013-14 announced
that:

“India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd. (IIFCL), in partnership with the
Asian Development Bank, will offer credit enhancement to infrastructure

companiesthatwish to accessthe bond market totap long term funds.”

Shri P. Chidambaram
Hon'ble Finance Minister

NS 2

Vision

"To provide innovative financing solutions to promote and
develop world class infrastructure in India"

“To adopt best practices in financing infrastructure and develop core
competencies in facilitating infrastructure development. Develop a team
of highly engaged employees to deliver
services in a professional manner and to the satisfaction of all stakeholders"

IIFCL declared mpsden interim dividend For Financial Year 2002 -2013
The Hon'ble Finance Minkster Shii B Chidambiaram recetving the cheque, presented by Shel 500 Goel , CMO, RFCL
towiards payment of dividend to the GOH along with Dr. Harsh Kumar Bhanwala, ED, IFCL
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From the Chairman’s Desk

Ladies & Gentlemen,

| express my immense pleasure to welcome you to the Eighth
Annual General Meeting of the India Infrastructure Finance
Company Ltd. The audited annual accounts of the company for the
year ended March 31, 2013 together with the Directors’ Report are
with youand with your permission, | take them as read.

The economic growth rate of Indian economy remained sluggish
with growth falling to around 5 per cent as against the estimated
growth of 7.6 per cent. This was mainly due to the impact of
continuation of slowdown in global economic growth, which fell from 3.9 percent in 2011 to 3.2 per cent in
2012, due to decrease in global demand, sluggish investment activity and uncertainties in international
environment. During the year,due to various measures taken by the Government & Reserve Bank of India (RBI),
WPl inflation contracted from around 7.7 per cent at the start of the fiscal to around 6 per cent by end of March
2013.RBlresorted to expansionary Monetary Policy during the year by reducing the Repo Rate from 8.5 per cent
in March 2012 to 7.5 per cent in March 2013, decreasing Cash Reserve Ratio and Statutory Liquidity Ratio in
order to maintain adequate liquidity in the economy. This monetary easing would facilitate investments and
economic growth. During the year, 10 year G-sec yield has also come down from 8.59 per cent in March 2012 to
around 7.96 per cent In March 2013 and further to around 7.34 per cent in May 2013, signaling a decreasing
interest rate scenario which would augment the money supply in the economy. Further, this would also lead to
availability of lower interest rate funds for infrastructure projects in the near future. Despite the overall
slowdown in the global economic growth which was reflected in the GDP growth of around 5 per cent, India
wasone of the fastest growing economiesin the world.

As announced by Honorable Finance Minister in the Budget speech 2013-14, Government of India is targeting
to return to growth path of around & per cent, aiming for inclusive and sustainable development with an
emphasisonimproving human & skill development indicators.

Development of Physical and Social Infrastructure would be very critical and is need of the hour for achieving
the desired economic growth. In the 12" Five Year Plan Period, the total fund requirement for infrastructure
sector has been estimated at USS 1 Trillion.

The Government of India has initiated various fiscal and structural policy measures to create an enabling
environment for smooth flow of investments towards infrastructure development in the country. As a part of
the growth measures the Government of India has initiated the process for setting-up of Infrastructure Debt
Funds (IDFs) and | am happy to share that your company has also obtained registration from the Securities &
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for its IDF.The same is expected to be launched shortly. The Cabinet Committee
on Investments (CCl) has been formulated to expedite decisions on approvals/clearances for implementation
of major infrastructure projects. This is expected to improve the investment environment in the country by
bringing transparency, efficiency and accountability in granting of various approvals and sanctions thus
enabling speading up of project completion,

In the Union Budget 2013-14, Honorable Finance Minister with a vision to make infrastructure more viable and
sustainable has announced infrastructure tax-free bonds of T 50,000 Crore to be raised in 2013-14, which
would form resources for low cost long term funding towards infrastructure development,
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Pursuant to the Union Budget 2013-14, Reserve Bank of India issued a circular on Prudential norms on Advances
to Infrastructure Sector which states that in case of PPP projects, the debts due to the lenders may be
considered as secured to the extent assured by the project authority in terms of the Concession Agreement,
subject to certain conditions. This would incentiwise banks to provide incremental lending to projects in
infrastructure sector,

Land Acquisition and Rehabilitation Bill, which is aimed at removing the bottlenecks currently being faced in
the acquisition of land in a timely manner,is also expected to be placed in Parliament soon,

Several other measures have been announced in the Budget 2013-14 to help catalyze investments in the
infrastructure sector. Companies investing ¥ 100 crore or more in plant and machinery during the period April
2013 to March 2015 will be entitled to deduct an investment allowance of 15 per cent of the investment. A
regulatory authority for Road Sector has also been announced. Many new projects in infrastructure sectors
such as Road, Port, Power Transmission, etc. have been announced. In power sector, to address the issue of
shortage of fuel, a PPP policy framework with Coal India Limited has been proposed. Further,it was announced
that lIFCL would offer Credit Enhancement for projects in infrastructure sector that wish to tap the bond market
forlong term funds. Alltheseinitiatives are expected to help in meeting huge investment requirements during
the 12" Plan period.

The Harmonized list of infrastructure sub sectors as approved by Cabinet Committee on Infrastructure in March
2012 has also been adopted by RBlin December 2012 for Banks and NBFCs, The same has also been adopted by
IIFCL.This would lead to uniformity in definition of infrastructure across all institutions.

Briefreview of Performance of Major Infrastructure Sectors
Roads

In the road sector, Ministry of Road Transport and Highways has been able to accelerate the pace of
canstruction of Roads. In FY 2012-13, highways construction and expansion increased to 5,800 Km as against
4,955 Kmin FY 2011-12, out of which 2,840 Km was completed by NHAL In terms of awarding of projects there
was drastic drop as only 1,540 Km was awarded as against the target of 9,500 Km due to lack of interested
bidders which may be mainly due to lack of equity with road construction companies and the general
slowdown in the economy. Road sector projects are mainly affected by delay in obtaining environmental
clearances and approvals for contructing rail over bridges (ROBs) / road under bridges (RUBs), delay in land
acquisition, shifting of utilities, poor performance of some contractors and law and order problems in some
states. In order to expedite the implementation pace, a regulator for road sector has been announced in the
Budget Speech 2013-14, Further, Supreme Court has approved the delinking of environment clearance from
Forest Clearance for National Highway projects. This approval is expected to expedite the implementation of
projects.

During the Budget Speech, Finance Minister had announced that Government has decided to constitute a
regulatory authority for the road sector which is expected to improve investment climate in the sector and
expedite implementation of projects.lt was also announced that projects for constructing 3,000 Kms of road in
Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh will be awarded in the first six months of
2013-14. Accordingly, the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways has proposed to award projects for total
road length of 7,300 km during current fiscal out of which, during first six months it plans to award 3,800 Kms.
The 7,300 Km target translates into 20Km / day construction of Roads.

Power

in the power sector, as per Central Electricity Authority,at the end of 11" Plan, the total installed capacity of the
country has reached 1,99,877 MW with a capacity addition of 67 548 MW, showing a growth of 148 percentover

the 10" Plan period during which 27,283 MW was added, As per Working Group of Planning Commission on
Power, during the 12" Plan period, total investment requirement has been projected at ¥ 13,72,580 crore for
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capacity addition of 75,785 MW of which 17,957 MW was targeted to be added in 2012-13.The actual addition
of installed generation capacity exceeded the targets with 20,623 MW installed capacity addition during the
year. The cumulative installed capacity by Mar'13 stands at 2,23,344 MW, of which 68 per cent comes from
thermal energy, 18 per cent from Hydro, 12 per cent from Renewable Energy Sources and 2 per cent from
Nuclear energy.

Thermal and hydro power sector projects face challenges mainly due to delay in obtaining environment and
forest clearances. Delay in obtaining allocation of coal blocks has been one of the primary reasons for delay in
commissioning of several thermal power projects during last year. To ensure adequate availability of coal to
power utilities and implementation of the same, Government has proposed to have a PPP policy framework
with Coal India Limited.The Central Government has constituted an inter-ministerial panel to formulate a policy
on PPP with Coal India Limited. As India has several old thermal and hydro power plants that are operating
below their design capacity and efficiency, Government has taken steps for renovation and modernization
(R&M) and life extension (LE) of these plants.During 11" Plan, 72 units aggregating 16,146 MW were taken up for
R&M and LE works and during 12" Plan,around 135 units with a cumulative capacity of more than 29,000 MW
are being considered forR&Mand LE.

Several other measures have been initiated by the Government for improvement of Power Generation,
Transmission and Distribution in India. Ministry of Power has introduced a ratings programme for distribution
utilities, which would enable them to get loans at competitive interest rates, based on their financial,
managerial and regulatory performance. Further, Guidelines regarding financial restructuring of DISCOMS
have been announced.State Governments have been urged to prepare the financial restructuring plan,quickly
sign MoU and take advantage of the scheme. Hon'ble Finance Minister during the Budget speech 2013-14 also
reintroduced the generation based incentives for wind energy projects and X 800 Crore have been allocated for
this purpose. Government would also provide low interest bearing fund from the National Clean Energy Fund
(NCEF) to IREDA for on-lending to viable renewable energy projects.To reduce dependency on imported coal,
the customs duty on Steam coal has been increased.While the basic customs duty has been hiked from Nil to 2
per cent, countervailing duty has been increased from 1 per cent to 2 per cent. The tax incentive for Power
Sector has been extended by another year.This would prove beneficial for the power generation projects which
are scheduled to getoperationalin 2013-14.

Ports

India has 12 major ports and about 200 minor ports. Indian Shipping Industry has, over the years, played a
crucial role in the transport sector of Indian economy. Approximately 90 per cent of the country’s trade by
volume and 70 per cent by value moves through maritime transport. During 2012-13, India's major ports
handled 545.68 MT of cargo compared to 560.14 MT handled in the previous year. The marginal decrease is
mainly due to decline in exports in iron ore due to restriction imposed by the Government on the iron ore
mining activity, followed by the contraction inimportof Fertilizer and Fertilizer raw materials in the major ports.
The energy commodities viz. Coal and POL are showing an impressive growth of 17.99 per cent and 3.48 per
centrespectively.The other general trafficincreased by 7.19 per cent.

The Ministry of Shipping has come up with the draft guidelines for Tariff setting in Major Ports, 2013.These shall
be applicable to all future major port trust-owned terminals and to PPP projects. Under these guidelines, the
Tariff Authority for Major Ports (TAMP) will notify the port-wise and commodity-wise reference tariff, which will
be indexed toinflation to an extent of 60 per cent of the variation in WPI

The 12" Five Year Plan targets an investment of ¥ 1,978 billion for the port sector. Itis estimated that the private
sector will contribute about 87 per cent of the total investments — 69 per cent for major ports and 98 per cent for
non-major ports. The major challenges that still remain to be addressed are obtaining environmental and
security clearances in a timely manner as delays result in time and cost overruns. Further, a slowing economy
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and weak market sentiment, coupled with tighter lending norms by banks for port projects have made it
difficult for developers to tie up funds.

During the year 2012-13, upto January 2013, 22 projects have been awarded. These 22 projects involve a
capacity addition of 97.34 MetricTonne Per Annum (MTPA)} and investment of T 575572 crore.

Total Plan allocation for the Ministry of Shipping during the year 2013-14 stands at ¥ 7087,30 crore, out of which
the share of Gross Budgetary Support (GBS) and Internal and Extra Budgetary Resources (IEBR) eachis 852.00
croreand T 5235.30 respectively.

Airports

During the year 2012-13 the air traffic in terms of passengers and aircraft movements witnessed a decline. The
aircraft movement decreased by 4.2 percent to 14,79,330 and passenger traffic reduced by 1.9 per cent to
159.30 million.The freight cargo also decreased by 3.9 per cent to 2.19 million tonnes.The decrease may mainly
be attributed to global economic slowdown, sharp increase in air fares and capacity reduction by operators
particularly grounding of one of the airline operators since October 2012,

The Central Plan outlay in Budget 2013-14 for the Ministry of Civil Aviation is ¥ B8.65 billion. The outlay
comprises budgetary support of ¥ 52 billion while 36.65 billion will be provided through IEBR. The major
allocations included budgetary support for equity infusion of ¥ 50 billion into Air India. Concessions were also
announced to boost the maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO) sector.

The Airports Authority of IndialAAl) plans to enter into a joint venture with state owned and private oil
companies and airlines to set up fuelling stations and infrastructure at airports to enable direct import of
aviation turbine fuel (ATF) by domestic carriers. Further, the Government is planning to partly regulate airfares
by putting a floor thus limiting the lowest fares offered by airlines to ensure that airlines do not trigger a price
war.The Ministry of Civil Aviation is planning to offer all domestic airlines subsidy amounting toatotal of ¥3.5-4
billion for connecting Tier |l cities and smaller towns. Under this plan, at least 40 smaller towns that currently
have no air connectivity could be connected with respective state capitals.

lIFCL's performance

Against this backdrop, | would now like to focus on the performance of the Company during the year. The
highlights of performance during 2012-13 are as under:

. During the year,grosssanctionsamounted to ¥ 11,514 Crore in 70 projects,under direct lending.

. On cumulative basis, gross sanctions under direct lending till 31" March 2013 were ¥ 51,887 Crore to
299 projects.

. IIFCL Guarantee document in respect of the first pilot transaction to facilitate bond issuance of a

maximum amount of ¥ 320 crore by a PPP NHAI Toll Road Project was signed on 16" January 2013,
Further, lIFCLis considering few other transactions in the pilot phase from diverse sectors.

. IIFCL operationalized its Modified Takeout Finance Scheme in December 2011 subseguent to suitable
maodifications, after which the sanctions and disbursements under Takeout Finance increased
significantly. During the year 2012-13, IFCL sanctioned ¥ 3,320 crore under the Takeout finance
Scheme, taking cumulative sanctions to ¥ 7,861 crore in 44 projects. Further, during the year the
company disbursed ¥ 2,126 crore compared to ¥ 564 crore in previous year recording a growth of 277
percent and taking cumulative disbursements under the Schemeto T 2,761 crorein 17 projects.

. At the end of March 2013, out of the 299 projects sanctioned under direct lending, 233 projects had
achieved financial closure.

. During the year, the company made disbursements of ¥ 6,205 Crore (including Takeout Finance and




Annual Report 2012-13

Refinance) registering ay-o-y growth of 23 per cent

. Cumulative disbursements till 31" March 2013 were ¥ 26,582 Crore in 207projects including Refinance
of T 4418 Crore and TakeoutFinanceof ¥ 2,761 Crare.

. Totalincome during 2012-13,increased by 29 per cent to ¥ 3,287 Crore from ¥ 2,545 Crore during last
year, while total expenses grew by 19 per cent from ¥ 1,632 Crore to ¥ 1,939 Crore during the same
period

. Net profit for the company increased to ¥ 1,047 Crore for the yearended on 31" March 2013 compared
to¥ 586 Crore during the previous year, representing a growth of 79 percent.

. Balance Sheet size increased by 26 per cent to ¥ 35,207 Crore as at end of March 2013 from ¥ 27,927
Croreasatend of March 2012,

» For the first time, the company declared and paid the dividend of ¥ 221 Crore @ 8 per cent of paid up
equity

IIFCL's Role

IIFCL along with its subsidiaries is now placed to offer varied services to infrastructure sector starting from
Project Development, facilitating Financial Closure by providing rupee term loan as a part of consortium,
foreign currency funding for capital equipment import to refinancing after achievement of commercial
operations. As a specialized infrastructure financing institution of the country, it continues to provide
innovative financing solutions to the Indian infrastructure sector like Credit Enhancement and Takeout
Finance. In addition to its UK subsidiary, |IFCL has also set up an Infrastructure debt fund and a Project
Development subsidiary to facilitate the development of infrastructure, With the continuing thrust on
developing world - class infrastructure in the country, IIFCL, with the support of all stakeholders, shall continue
to play its role of providing innovative solutions for addressing the long term financing requirements of the
infrastructure sector.
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NOTICE

NOTICE

IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE EIGHTH ANNUAL GEMERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF INDIA

INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY 20™ JUNE 2013 AT 5.00 PM. AT IIFCL
BOARD ROOM, 8™ FLOOR, HT HOUSE, 18&20, K.G. MARG, NEW DELHI.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1}

2)

3

To receive, consider and adopt the Eighth Audited Balance Sheet as on 317 March 2013 and the Profit and Loss
Account forthe yearended 31" March 2013 and the director'sreport thereon.,

To declare Interirn Dividend @ 8% (eight percent) {l.e.? 0.B0 per equity share of face value of ¥ 10/- each) on the
paid -up equity share capital of ¥ 2900 crore amounting to $221,12,87,671 (Rupees two hundred twenty one
crores twelve lacs eighty seven thousand six hundred and seventy one) as Final Dividend during Financial Year
201213,

Pursuant to Section 619(2) of Companies Act, 1956, the Auditors of a Government Company are to be appointed or
re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) and in terms of Section 224(8){aa) of the
Companies Act, 1956, their remuneration has to be fixed by the Company in Annual General Meeting, The
Members of the Company in the 7" Annual General Meeting held on Friday, 29" June 2012 had authorized the
Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2012-13. Accordingly, the
Board of Directors had fixed audit fee of T6lacs (Rupees Sixlacsonly) plus service tax for audit of the Financial Year
2012-13 and ¥1.50 lacs (Rupees One lac fifty thousand only) (plus service tax) @ 25% of the proposed audit fees
of ¥ 6 lacs (Rupees 5ix lacs anly) towards audit of consolidated annual accounts of company for the year 2012-13
for the Statutory Auditors aggregated asthe Statutory audit fee of 7.5 lakh plus service tax.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 201 3-14 will be appointed by C&AG of India.The members may
authorize the Board of Directors to fix an appropriate remuneration of Auditors as may be deemed fit by the Board,

By Order of the Board of Directors
FOR INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

RAJEEV MUKHUA
GEMERAL MANAGER-CFO & C5

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.05.2013

REGISTERED OFFICE

8" Floor, HT House,
18 & 20 Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi-110001

NOTES: -

1} AMEMBERENTITLED TO ATTEND ANDVOTE ATTHEMEETING ISENTITLEDTO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND ANDYOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF ANDTHE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY,

2)  PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
MEETING.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To

The Shareholders

The Directors of India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd (IIFCL) have great pleasure in presenting the Eighth Annual
Report with audited statements of accounts for the financial year ended 31" March, 2013 along with report of the auditors
and the Comptroller and Auditor General of India therson.

Financial Results

The summary of financial results of the company for the year ended 31" March 201 3 are as under;

{(Tcrore)
SUMMARIZED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT 1|
PARTICULARS Figures forthe Figures forthe Growth
yearended 31" March 2013 yearended 31" March 2012
Total Revenue 3,287 2,545 9%
Total Expenses 1,939 1,643 18%
Operating Profit 1,348 o902 49%
Exceptional ltems 166" | (36)4 '
PROFIT BEFORETAX 1,514 B66 75%
Tax Expense 467 280 B7%
PROFITFORTHEYEAR 1,047 586 790
Earnings perequity share (T)
iy vatug DET 10 ) 239, 28 =

*Dividend received from subsidiary company i.e liIFC (UK) Lid
#Provision made for standard loan assets till 31" March 2011
Continuing with the consistently maintained growth path in operations, the company posted significant increase in
revenues and profits during the financial year 2012-13.Your company posted a quantum jump of 79% in Net Profit during
year under review aver previous year and posted a Met Profitof ¥ 1,047 crore for the year ended 31" March 2013 comparedto
Met Profit of T 586 crore during the year ended 31" March 2012

After statutory & other appropriations aggregating T 478 crore, your company carried surplus profits of 7 569 crore to
Balance-sheet during the year ended 31" March 2013 compared to surplus profits of T 455 crore carried to Balance-sheet
during the yearended 31" March 201 2, representing growth of 25%.

The Earning per share of face value of ¥ 10 ofyour company for the year ended 31" March 2013 has been ¥ 3.79 compared to
¥ 2.84forthefinancialyearended 31" March 2012
The ather important highlights of growth in operations of your company during the year ended 317 March 2013 are as
under:
- Totalincome increased by 29% to¥3,287 crore.
- Totalexpensesincreased by 18%to 1,939 crore.
Profit before Tax at T 1,514 crore, 75% higher compared to Profit before Tax of year 2011-12.
Total Assets increased by 26% 1o 135,207 crore,
- Mat-worth of your company increased to T 4,858 crore as at 31" March 2013 against? 3,668 crore as at 317 March 2012,

- In line with the norms as applicable to Non-Banking Financial Companies, your company has made provision of
¥39 crore on loan assets during the year.

- Thefollowing Reserves were created:
Debenture Redemption Reserve - 7 9.73 crore
*  Securities Premium Reserve -7 9.85 lac
*  Special Reserve /S 36 (1){viil) of ITact 1961 - 200.73 crore
+  Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve - $11,72 crore
- The following Utilizations were made out of Reserves created:
«  ¥1.95lac from Staff welfare reserves of ¥ 64.44 lac iclosing balance of T 62.49 lac)
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Operational Performance

In line with the company’s mandate given in the Scheme for Financing Viable Infrastructure Projects through a Special
Purpose Vehicle called the India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited, generally referred to as SIFTI, the company is
engaged in providing financial assistance to eligible infrastructure sectors such as road, power, airport, port and urban
infrastructure etc,

DirectLending

During 2012-13, the company witriessed significant increase in lending operations with further gross sanction of 11,514
crore to 70 Infrastructure projects taking cumulative gross sanctions of the company to # 51,887 crore to 299 infrastructure
projects The sector-wise distribution of cumulative gross sanctions of your company is as under:

Cumulative Gross Sanctions under Direct Lending (As on 31" March 2013)

(Tcrore)
Sector No of Projects Project Cost | Gross Sanction Amount
Road 182 _ 1,88,722 _ 25,178
Power 63 | 219,103 20,671
Airport 2 f 14,716 : 2,150
Paort a | 5,702 925
Urban|nfra. 6. 1 29,898 '. 2454
Rallways 1 1,396 279
PMDO" 37 | 7.729 ' 230
Total 299 ; 4,67,267 : 51,887

* Pooled Municipal Debt Obligations
Further,as on 31" March 2013, sectar-wise distribution of net sanction of your company amaounting to ¥ 38,841 crore to 276

projectsisasunder:
Cumulative Net Sanctions under Direct Lending (As on 31" March 2013)#
(Terore}
Sector No.of Prajects Project Cost NetSanction Amount
Road 17 f 1,74,439 18,841
Power 58 2,03,231 17,907
Airport 2 14,716 B48
Port a8 ; 5,702 682
UrbanInfra 2 | 548 64
. Railways ' 1,396 2?5_.
PMDO 34 | 7435 221
Total 276 4,07,567 38841

# Net Sanction amiount is allocated amaunt in case of projects which have achieved
financial closure;and. gross sanction amount where financial closure is yet to be achieved

Vsrimer: Tomaly o mot ek due in onding o of rumben
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Disbursements

During the year 2012-13, loan disbursements increased to 76,205 crore including refinance, takeout finance, registering
a y-o-y growth of 23%. The Cumulative disbursements at the end of March 2013 stood at ¥ 26,582 crore, including refinance
of T4418crore& takeout finance of T 2,761 crore.

Sector-wise Cumulative Disbursements (As on 31" March 2013)

(Fcrore)

Sector No.of Projects | Project Cost Amount Disbursed

Road 132 | 1,32,757 ' 9,304

Power 38 | 1,32,504 8,742

Airport 2 | 14,716 ' 846

Port 1 6 T 4,240 ' 370

Urban Infra 2 | 648 [ 21

FMDO 27 ! 4,744 120
SubTotal 207 | 2,89,609 19,403

Refinance | 4418

Takeout Finance 2,761

GrandTotal " 26,582

Pooled Municipal Debt Obligation [PMDO) Facility
Pooled Municipal Debt Chligations Facility (PMDO) was set up in 2008 by 4 sponsors IL&FS, IFCL, IDBI Bank and Canara Bank
along with other lenders, to finance urban infrastructure projects on PPP basis. The projects include development of
common infrastructure for SMEs, solid waste management, power generation, waste water treatment and other urban
infrastructure facilities such as city bus transport, etc. The PMDO facility is instrurnental for structuring requirement of
resources for projects in a bankable format and providing credit for setting-up mandated projects at reasonable rate of
interast.
The present corpus of PMDO is T 5,000 crore committed by 16 lenders of which IFCL has commitment of ¥ 380.50 crore as its
share in the facility. Till 31" March 2013, your company has (net) sanctioned loans of ¥ 221 crore to 34 projects under the
facility and has disbursed T120 crore for setting up of 27 urbaninfrastructure projects.
Priority to Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Projects
Your company continues to make efforts with firm commitment of achieving its objective of providing financial support to
infrastructure projects with overriding priority to Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects. Till 317 March 2013, under Direct
Lending, financial assistance has been sanctioned for setting-up of 219 PPP projects constituting 84% of 262 projects gross
sanctioned (excluding those under PMDO) by the company.

Mode-wise Cumulative No. of Projects Gross Sanctioned under Direct Lending

{excluding PMDO) as on 31" March 2013

34,13% 9,3%

219,84%

W PPP W Non-PPP [l PSU




N ot o o0
Sector-wise Mode-wise no of Projects Gross Sanctioned under Direct Lending
{excluding PMDO) as on 31" March, 2013
PPP i MNon-PPP PsU
Road 181 | nil 1
Power 25 i 33 5
Airport 2 | nil niil
Port 7 | 1 il
Urban Infra 3 | il i
Railway 1 | nil nil
Total 219 | s 9

Geographically Diversified Presence

Your company continues to support development of infrastructure projects spread across various states and enhanced its

footprint across the country.Till 31° March 2013, under direct lending, your company has made Net sanctions of ¥ 38,841
croreto 276 projects in 23 states and has disbursed 19,403 crore to 207 projects.
Cumulative State-wise Net Sanctions & Disbursements under Direct Lending

{As on 31" March 2013}
(2crore)
State MNet Sanction Amount Amount Disbursed
Andhra Pradesh 2,745 1262
Arunachal Pradesh 1,967 0
Bihar 1,888 515
Chhattisgarh 1,983 232
Delhi 574 571
Gujarat 5,858 3,668
Haryana 616 385
Himachal Pradesh 300 100
Jammu & Kashmir 3’5 68
Jharkhand BOS 592
Karnataka 1,153 767
Kerala 170 116
Madhya Pradesh 3489 1,477
Maharashtra 3,589 2,440
Orissa 898 284
Pondicherry a3 93
Punjab 1,237 473
Rajasthan 1,104 600
Sikkim 927 8y
Tamil Nadu 1,527 1,017
Uttar Pradesh 4,840 2,454
Uttarakhand 384 327
West Bengal 2312 1,145
TOTAL 38,841 19,403
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Achievement of Financial Closure

As on 317 March 2013, out of 276 net sanction projects under direct lending, 233 projects Le. 84% have achieved financial
closure. Sector-wise details of financial closure achieved are as under:

Financial Closure Achieved (As on 31" March 2013)

{(Tcrore)
Sector No.ofProjects | Project Cost Net Sanction Amount
Road 145 | 1,52,361 f 15,481
Pawer 432 l 152117 ; 14,603
Airport 2 | 14,716 848
Port 8 | 5,702 682
Urban Infra 2 | 648 5 64
PMDO 34 i 7,435 : 221
Total 233 | 3,32,979 31,899
Achievement of CoD

At the end of March 2013, amongst the projects in which your company has provided financial assistance by Direct
Lending mode {excluding PMDO), Commercial Operation Date (CoD) has been achieved in 63 projects which included
47 road projects,] airport, 13 power projects and 2 port projects.

Refinance

As part of the fiscal stimulus package, IFCL was permitted to raise T 10,000 crore through tax-free bands during 2008-09
to provide refinance to banks for their infrastructure loans to projects for which competitive bids have been submitted
on or after 31" January 2009. During the year 2012-13, your company provided refinance of T 250 crore to IDFC taking
total refinance portfolio to £ 4,418 crore.Further, ¥ 3,000 crore has been utilized for direct lending purposes following the
approval of Gol.

Take-outFinance

To facilitate incremental lending to the infrastructure sector by addressing banks'exposure and asset-liability mismatch
constraints, IFCL has implemented the Takeout Finance Scheme, IFCL has introduced non-discriminatory and non-
discretionary external rating based pricing mechanism for takeout of infrastructure loans. IIFCL operationalized its
Modified Takeout Finance Scheme subsequent to suitable modifications in December 2011,

A Comprehensive Assessment of Takeout Finance Scheme is being undertaken by a Committes under Chairmanship of
Joint Secretary, Department of Financial Services with members from Department of Economic Affairs, Department of
Expenditure, Planning Commission and [IFCL.

During the year 2012-13,IIFCL sanctioned ¥ 3,320 crore under the Takeout Finance Scheme, taking cumulative sanctions
to T 7,867 crore in 44 projects. Further, during the year the company disbursed 2,126 crore compared to ¥ 564 crore in
previous year recording a growth of 277% and taking cumulative disbursements under the Scheme to ¥ 2,761 crore in
17 projects.

Further, various steps have been taken by the company for building awareness amongst banks and other eligible
institutions for populanzing the Take out Finance Scheme.

India Infrastructure Finance Initiative

The company had entered into Mol! with IDFC and Citigroup on 157 February, 2007, to set up an India dedicated
infrastructure fund wherein IIFCL had agreed to contribute US% 25 million (subject to a maximum of ¥ 100 crore) while
IDFC & Citi group committed to contribute USS 100 million each as promoter sponsors. During 2012-13, under India
Infrastructure Fund {IIF), IFCL has made 8 capital contributions amounting to ¥ 10.54 crore and received 3 redemptions
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amounting to ¥ 5.22 crore, Till 31" March, 2013, out of total capital commitment of ¥ 100 crore to IF, IIFCL has contribute
¥ 70,99 crore &1IF has redeemed capital amounting to ¥ 10.39 crore till 317 March, 2013,
Resource Mobilization

Domestic Resources

The company raises its long-term resources both from domestic markets and overseas. The company has so far raised
¥ 22,732.28 crore from domestic markets through a mix of instruments comprising of domestic Taxable bonds, Tax-free
bands, Tax-5aving Infrastructure Bonds and long term loan from Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) & National Small
Savings Fund (NS5F).

External Resources

IIFCL has also established strong relationships with bilateral and multilateral institutions like ADB, World Bank and KPW
and has committed lines of long-term low-cost credit to the extent of USS 1.2 billion, USS 195 million and € 50 million
respactively.

Asian Development Bank (ADB) has provided line of credit for an amount of USS 1200 million under India Infrastructure
Praoject Financing Facility (IIPFF) land ll of US$ 500 million and US5 700 million each. As on 31 March 201 3, your company
has fully availed the IIPFF-1 of US $ 500 million for financing 28 highway projects and 2 airports {modernization of Delhi
and Mumbal airports). Under lIPFF-Il of US § 700 million, the first and second tranche af US 5 210 million and USS 250
million respectively has been fully availed for financing 12 highways projects and 1 UMPP. Against 3rd tranche of IS5 240
million,as on 31" March 2013, your company has availed US §93.23 million for financing 10 highway projectsand 1 UMPP.
Further your company has requested ADB and Government of India (GO} for a new line of credit of US55 1.2 billion for
which ADBisin the processof carrying outits due diligence.

Of the World Bank line of credit of USS 195 million, IFCL has availed an amount of US$ 22.93 million. Further, the
multilateral had approved a grant of USS 5 million for Technical Assistance Program to complement the line of credit
over a period of six years for capacity building of IIFCL, out of which, under four Grant Funds i.e. Public Private
Infrastructure Advisory Facility (PPIAF), Sub-National Technical Assistance (SNTA)L Department for International
Development (DFID) and Institutional Development Fund(IDF) an amount of US55 2.08 million was sanctioned. Presently,
four projects have been undertaken/are being implemented under the grant viz.{a) Business Plan Strategy for IIFCL till
the end of the 12 Five year plan (2012- 2017),(b) Design and Implementation of a Risk Management System for IIFCL, (c}
Implementing MIS tracking system to manage environmental and social risk, and (d) HR Strategy for IFCL. There have
beenfourstakeholder workshops on awareness towards Environment and Social Safeguards Framework.

Against € 50 million line of credit from KW, your company has availed € 29.51 million against disbursements in two
hydro power projects approved by KA. For the remaining amount of € 20.49 million, your company has submitted the
proposal of four renewable energy sub projects to KfW for their approval after which this line would be fully utilized.

These relationships with multilateral and bilateral institutions have helped IIFCL inraising low-cost long-term resources,
Key Initiatives during the Year

CreditEnhancement

Toenable channelization of long term funds from investors like insurance companies and pension funds, Department of
Financial Services (DFS) vide its letter dated 18" October 2011, granted its in-principle approval to IIFCL to undertake
pilot transactions in association with ADB. Under its Credit Enhancement initiative, IIFCL provides partial credit
guarantee to enhance the ratings of the project bond issue by infrastructure project companies. Credit Enhancement
Scheme will help the project developers to raise funds at a cheaper stable rate from the bonds market and consequently
help in development of corporate bond market in India. During the pilot phase, Asian Development Bank (ADB) is
participating in this endeavar by committing to support IIFCL by providing up to 50% of IIFCL exposure as backstop
guarantee facility,
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Shn S.K. Goel, CMD, ITIFCL and Dr. Harsh Komar Bhanwala ED, ITFCL receiving the poarantee fee
cheque on behadl of HFCL i the presence of Shin Dok, Miitad, Ex. Seeretany Financial Services wlale signing ol

NFCL guaramee for 1st Credi-Enhanced Infrastructure Boned mthe conntry throogh s Credit Enbancement initative

Hor'ble Finance Minister in his Unlon Budget Speech 2013-14 has announced that “India Infrastructure Finance
Company Ltd (IIFCL), in partnership with the Asian Development Bank, will offer credit enhancement to infrastructure
companies that wish to access the bond market to tap long term funds.”

IIFCL Guarantee document in respect of the first pilot transaction to facilitate bond issuance of a maximum amount of
¥ 320 crore by a PPP NHAI Toll Road Project was signed on 16 January 2013.IFCL has granted in-principle approval to
second pilot transaction, a road project fora bond issue size of around ¥ 500 crore.Further, lIFCL is considering few other
transactions inthe pilot phase from diverse sectors, During the year 2012-1 3, IFCL had various discussions and meetings
with various stakeholders including project developers, bond investors, rating agencies, regulators, banks and financial
institutions etc,

Infrastructure Debt Fund

To meet the estimated outlay of US §1 Trillion as per the 12" Five Year Plan, infrastructure projects require cost effective
and long-term financing for the growth of Infrastructure sector and capital formation. To address the issue, the
Government of India has initiated the process for setting-up of infrastructure Debt Funds (IDFs). Your company took this
apportunity and initiated the process of setting up an Infrastructure Debt Fund (IDF) through mutual fund route in line
with the 5EBl guidelines and to have an initial corpus fund of arcund US 51 Billion along with other
Co-Sponsors/Investors. Your company is proposing to allocate an initial investment of up to ¥ 500 crore to attract the
co-sponsors and investors. As a process of IDF formation IIFCL has already incorporated a new Asset Management
Company (AMC), IFCL Asset Management Company Limited (IAMCL) and is now registered under Companies Act, 1956
and approved by SEBI to act as the AMC to the IIFCL Mutual Fund (IDF) which has also obtained the registration of SEBL.
Currently, IAMCL is proposing tolaunch the maiden scheme shortly.
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In order to give thrust to conceptualization and setting up of innovative, optimum and commercially viable projects for
bridging the gap in need of infrastructure, IIFCL has set-up a wholly-owned subsidiary, IIFCL Projects Limited (IPL) for
providing adwvisory services in infrastructure sector from the point of identification and conception of project and
gauging their feasibility to the point of monitoring and supervision aiming for promation and development of warld
class infrastructure in India across all the infrastructure sectors,

HFCT
g of MOU for

Financi o 8t !Jin{:ashuclumpr
A Sl Limited and SICOM Lim#

i nd April 2013
msided by
ri 5K Gos!

= Hap-

Shn 5.k Goel, CMID, HTFCL signing the Mol for Financing vanouos viable mfrstrocture progects by ITIFCL,
HFCL Projects Limuited and SICOM Linuted on 27 Apl, 2013
in thie presence of Shin Baldey Singh, MU SICOM Lad.
. Harsh Koo Bhanwala, ED, HEFCL, Dr. E.5. Rao, CEC), HFCL Projects Linured

During the first financial year 2012-13 of IPL operations, the subsidiary as planned started generating revenues and
booked modest profitin the very first year of operation.

IPL is operating in following three advisory business segments:

+  Project Appraisal & Syndication: IPL sourced 11 projects across Power, Road, Tourism, Agriculture, Logistics, Water
and Urban Infra sectors with aggregate project cost of ¥10,830 crore.IPL had mandates in hand for aggregate value
{Fee)of T 3.06crore and has raised invoices of T 0.89 crore and received ¥ 0.72 crore againstthe same

+  Transaction Advisory: Participated in the bidding for Setting up of two PPP based Food Processing Plants at
Haryana

+  Project Development: IPL sourced a solar project and a solid waste to energy project for praviding financial
advisary service and project development

IPL also entered into Mols with partners for joint business promotion and development, like Infrastructure
Development Corporation (Karnataka) Limited, Feedback Infrastructure Services Pvt.Ltd,, Credit Analysis & Research Ltd.
and SREl Infrastructure Finance Limited.
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Regional Offices

During 201 1-12, IFCL had established two regional offices, Mumbai and Hyderabad with the objective of expansion of
the business of the company. The regional offices have helped IIFCL in creating benefits by way of marketing of the
products and services, better monitoring of loan portfolio and enhancing the brand value of lIFCL threugh publicity and
awareness about the company amongst potential clients. The ROs have also assisted in monitoring the projects by
participating in several consortium meetings, site visits and document signing, etc.

ITinitiatives

During 2011-12, IFCL had initiated the process of implementation of Document Management System (DMS) and
Integrated Software Solution (155) of IFCL The |55 alms at automating various business and support functions of IFCL.

During the year 2012-13, both DM5 and 155 were under implementation phase. The Human Resource Management
System (HRMS) module which targets Human Resources (HR) & General Administration Department (GAD) function

has been on parallel run since 1" February 2013 The other modules of IS5 are on parallel run since April 2013,

During 2012-13, IIFCL also revamped and re-launched its website in bilingual mode as per Guidelines for Indian
Government Websites (GIGW ). In addition to the above, the bilingual website is IPV6 Compliant as per Department of
Telecommunications (DOT) guidelines.

nof dential norms

Union Cabinet in its meeting held on 137 Qctober 2011 Inter-alia approved the proposal to bring the Company under
regulatory oversight of Reserve Bank of India by registering it as an Non-Banking Finance Company-Infrastructure
Finance Company (NBFC-IFC) conveyed by Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance vide letter dated
24" October2011.

Meanwhile, Department of Financial Services vide letter dated 23" January 2012 had requested the Reserve Bank of India
to create a special category of NBFC- IFC which are wholly owned by Government and whaose borrowings are backed by
sovereign guarantee and such NBFCs be subjected to far lower Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) than normal
NBFC. In this regard, Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance, Government of india vide communication
dated 9"October 2012 had informed that Reserve Bank of India was not in favour of creation of separate category of
MBFC based on ownership. Accordingly, IFCL submitted application to Reserve Bank of India for registration as NBFC- IFC
on 8" March 2013, Information/documents sought by RBI vide letter dated 15"March 2013 has been furnished by the
company and IFCLY registration as an MBFC is awaited.

It may be mentioned that prudential norms issued by RBI for NBFC-IFC do not apply to Company, being a Government
owned company. On registration as an NBFC-IFC, the company, being a Govt. owned company, would be required to
prepare a roadmap for compliance with various elements of the NBFC Regulations in consultation with the Government
and submit the same to Reserve Bank of India (Department of Non-Banking Supervision) as directed by RBI vide
notification No.DNBS. PD/CC No.86/03.02.089/2006-07 dated 127 December 2006.

Pending registration as a NBFC, the Company has adopted prudential norms for income recognition, asset classification
and provisioning, applicable to NBFCs as per Non- Banking Financial (Non Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions 2007, w.e.f.financial yearended 31" March 2012,

It may ba mentioned that the company created reserve for loan assets @0.40% of the total outstanding of loan assets up
to 31" March 2011, Consequent upon adoption of prudential norms as stated above, the company has discontinued the
practice to transfer amount to Reserve for Loan Assets and the existing Reserve for Loan Assets of T 57,93 lac as an
31" March 2011 has been retained and carried in the books of account of the company ason 31" March 2013,

Revisionin SIFTI

1.  DFS vide its letter dated 16" January 2013 has conveyed approval of Finance Minister allowing addition of new
infrastructure sub-sectors under 5IFT), as per the Harmonized list of infrastructure sub-sectors as approved by the
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Cabinet Committee on Infrastructure in its meeting held on 1% March 2012. The decision shall be effected upan
vetting of amended schemes by Department of Financial Services.

2, DFS vide its e-mail dated 22™ February 2013 has conveyed the approval of the Government to include Credit
Enhancement (on pilot basis) as a mode of funding by IIFCL under Section 7.1 (any other mode approved by
Ministry of Finance from time to time) of SIFTI

3. Ministry of Finance, Government of India has approved the limit of 50% for lending to projects set up by Private
companies (non PPP projects) from 20% of lending in an accounting year for IFC(UK). Further, launch of Takeout
Finance Scheme by IIFC{UK) on lines similar to lIFCL has also been approved.

Gol Contribution to Equity

Strengthening of Equity Capital is critical aspect for a financial organization and accordingly, realizing the need to
further strengthen IIFCL, Government of India contributed ¥ 400 crore towards the paid up capital of your company
during 2012-13 towards its commitment to develop infrastructure in the country. The total authorized and paid up
capital of your company asat 31" March 2013 was 5,000 crore and T 2,900 crore respectively,

Risk Management

Your company has adopted Risk Management framework prepared by CRISIL of which Risk Assessment Model (RAM)
Software is a key component used for assessing credit risks of all the project proposals prior toits sanction by the Board.
Risk Rating Committee of executives reviews and approves the credit risk rating awarded to the projects using this RAM
software.

In order to de-risk Balance Sheet & maintain high quality of assets, lIFCL adopts the best practices in credit, operational
and market risk management. Your company approved the Integrated Risk Management deliverables as a part of the
assignment under the World Bank assisted capacity building programme during the year.Your company devised the risk
vision statement to encompass holistic charter and profile for the integrated risk management framework that, "will
support [IFCL (Group) vision in minimizing the risks in business value chain and provide confidence to the stakeholders
by enhancing the Balance Sheet strength’

Your Company maintains a quality balance sheet by voluntarily adopting RBI's Prudential Norms applicable to Non-
Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies and also followed the RBI guidelines for Revised
Capital Adequacy Framework for Off-Balance Sheet Iterns for NBFCs.

Environment and Social Safeguards

Infrastructure projects have the potential 1o cause adverse impacts on environment and society. IIFCL, being an
environmentally aware and socially responsible institution, has evolved an Environmental and Social Safeguard

Framework (ESSF) towards minimization and mitigation of such impacts which is guided by its commitment to integrate
environmental protection and social safeguards inits projects,in a proactive manner, to contribute towards sustainable
development.

ESSF has been developed around Government of India’s environmental and social policies and regulatory framework,
relevant state laws and guidelines and operational policies of multilateral development financial institutions and to
ensure and monitor the compliance,an Environment and Social Safeguard Management Unit (ESMU) has been set up.

In the implementation of any infrastructure project, there is involvement of lenders, project developer, Concessioning
Authaority, EPC Contractor ete, and with a view to sensitize the stakeholders about the significance of Environmental &
Social Safeguards compliance during the project cycle , IFCL has organized four workshops on ESSF at Delhi, Mumbai
Hyderabad and in Bangalore. The response towards these workshops was encouraging and has created awareness
among them to timely address the various issues related to Envirenmental and Social Safeqguards. IFCL will continue
with these efforts for sensitization towards environmental & social safeguards awareness.
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Human Resource Management

The human resources play a vital rale in the growth of any organization. IFCL continues to be a lean organization with
total staff strength of 53 including two employees of IFCIUK) Ltd., and one contractual CGM, as an 31" March 2013.In
arder to develop human resources of the company, various initiatives were taken during the year like providing training
in the areas of Credit Appraisal, Risk Management, Resources & Treasury Management, HR Management, Legal aspect
and IT etc, at various renowned institutions like Indian Institute of Management, Administrative Staff College of India,
Mational Institute of Financial Management, Mational Institute of Business Management, Institute of Cost and Works
Account of India, Euromoney, London Management Centre, New York Institute of Finance and University of California
etc.

To keep the workforce motivated and engaged several initiatives were taken including Staff welfare Initiative. A Group
Term Life Insurance ranging from ¥ 8 to 12 lac according to grade of IIFCL employee has been taken from LIC in
December 2012.out of StaffWelfare Fund.

In order to automate the HR function, Human Resources Management System (HREMS) has been implementad and the
same is running parallel along with existing system.

The Employee relations during the year remained peaceful and cordial.

Shin S K. Goel, Cluarman & Manasng Divector, THFCL. Delwenng the kev note address, o mark the begnning
of the mecting with the pre-gqualified bidders of NHAL




Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a Public Sector Company, [IFCL has closely linked its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR}
activities with the principle of sustainable economic development. The objective of these efforts is
not anly to help the soclety by providing facilities for health, education, civic amenities etc. but also ta
create opportunities for development of skalls, employment including self-employment, to promote
greater environmental responsibilities and encourage the development of environmentaily friendby
technologies for sustainable development. The company's CSE Policy was npdated and aligned this
year with the national development goals and priorities adopted by Government of India under
United Nations Millennium Declaration as national commitments. During the year, the company
hasallocated ¥ 11.72 crores for CSR activitics { Being 2% of the Profit after T for the financial year
2011 -2012as per DPE guidelines ).

Construction of Sanitation Blocks

Under this initiative IIFCL has enpgaged Sulabh International Social Service
Organisation for construction of such sanitation blocks in the schools for girls with the
following facilities:

¥ Facdity for4 toilet units in each toilet complex at the school for girts
b Availability of running water through overhead tanks
¢ Continuous maintenance for un interrupted facility

b Will conduct sessions io mativate and educate the student for using the toilel complexes
constructed so that the swrounding envionment of the toilel complexes can be
hyglenically maintainad,

An update on the progress of construction

ﬁ;anittljnn facility l;nr School Girls
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Internal Control

The company has devised strong internal control mechanism (nvolving systems, safeguards & procedures
commensurating with its size and operations. The functions of company are performed as per process laid down in
operations manual. The internal audit is regularly carried out to ensure compliance of process, procedures and
provisions laid down by the company for respective action, Prompt action is taken on the observations of the Internal
Auditor's report and the same along with the action taken are placed before the Audit Committee of the Board at regular
intervals.

Ratings of the Company

During the year, ratings assigned to the company were reaffirmed by Standard & Poor's as BBB- (Stable) which is at par
with sovereign ratings. Similarly, CARE, CRISIL, ICRA, Brickworks and India Ratings have assigned "AAA" for various bond
issuances by the company.

IS0 9001:2008 certification

Your company continues to be an 150 20071:2008 certified company with established, documented, implemented
Quality Policy & Quality Manual and maintains a Quality Management System (QMS) as a means of ensuring that the
services of IIFCL conform to specified requirements and continually improve its effectiveness in accordance with the
requirements.

IIFCL management has commitments to ensure quality standards in its services and as a part of requirements of SO
certification, periodic internal audits are conducted which are followed by Management Review Meetings to ensure its
continuing suitability, adequacy and effectiveness, and assess opportunities for improvement of QMS including quality
policy and objectives on continual basis:

Recognition & Awards

In recognition of the contributions made to infrastructure financing, IFCL has been awarded for “Best Industry
Infrastructure Initiative"by BFSI Awards 2013,

Off-shore subsidiary

Established in 2008 as a wholly owned subsidiary of IFCL, IFC{UK) Ltd is engaged in providing finance to infrastructure
projects in the country for the purpose of meeting their foreign currency capital expenditure outside India. For the
purpose,Reserve Bank of India has committed US % 5 billion cut of the foreign currency reserves to be availed in tranches
by 6" March 2014. With a further sanction of US $ 1587 million during 2012 - 13 including in-principle sanction,
cumulative sanction af IFC (UK) reached USS 4,08 billion in 40 proposals (net of cancellations) ineluding projects from
power, mass rapid transport (metro rail), port, gas pipeline sectors and fertilizers manufacturing. During the year, IIFC
(LK) disbursed US5279 million taking cumulative figure to US55 975.15 million (including O/s Letter of Comfort). The
company achieved 67% growth in core income with 20% growth in net profits in the FY 2012-13. IFC (UK) Ltd provides
External Commercial Borrowing (ECB) funding at the most competitive pricing.

The Government of India has approved, direct lending plus refinance business to private sector companies, by [IFC {UK)
Ltd to the extent of 50% of the lending in the respective accounting year. The Government of India has also permitted
IFC (UK) Ltd to extend Takeout Finance, on similar lines of IFCL and it is under consideration of RBI for approval.

In line with IIFCL, the Board of Directors of |IFC {UK) Ltd have approved for expansion of the definition of infrastructure
sectors in line with the Harmonized List of infrastructure to include the new sectors like Qil Pipelines & storage facility,
Water sanitation, Irrigation (dams, channels, embankments), Water Treatment Plants, Inland waterways,
Telecommunication Towers, Hospitals, Cold storage, post-harvest storage/agricultural infrastructure ete.

IIFCL has established UK Desk to render certain services pertaining to sourcing, secondary appraisal, monitoring, etc., as
requested by IFC{UK) Ltd IFCL recovers Process Fee at the rate of 1.5% of the loanamount directly from the borrowersin
this regard.
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Dividend

During 2012-13, the company earned a Profit after Tax of T 1,047 crore, Your Directors have approved the payment of
dividend of ¥ 221,12,87,671(Rupees twa hundred and twenty one crore twelve lacs eighty seven thousand six hundred
and seventy one rupees) @ 8% (eight percent) of the paid -up equity share capital of 2900 crore on pro rata basis. The

sameis recommended as final dividend for 2012-13 forapproval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

In addition to payment of dividend, lIFCL has paid Dividend Distribution Tax & 16.2225% of the proposed dividend
amounting to¥ 35,87,26,142 (Rupees thirty five crores eighty seven lacs twenty six thousand one hundred and forty two

rupees).
Board of Directors
The composition of Board of Directors of your company as on dateis as under:

Mame and Designation Category Date of appointment
Shri5.K.Goel Whole Time Director 24" June 2010
Chairman & Managing Director
Shri RajivTakru Government Nominee Director 4" February 2013

Secretary (F5),Government of India
Ministry of Finance

Department of Financial Services

Shiri Ravi Mital
Advisor (Infrastructure)
Planning Commission

Government of India

Gavernment Nominee Director

18" February 2013

Ms. - Sharmila Chavaly

Joint Secratary

(Infrastructure & lnvestment)
Government of India, Ministry of Finance
Department of Economic Affairs

Government Nominee Director

22" October 2012

Shrik.R. Kamath
CMD,Punjab Natlonal Bank

Scheduled Commercial Banks

Mominee Directar

23" March2012

Prof. G.Raghuram, Professor
Indian Institute of Management
Ahmedabad

Part-Time Non-Official Director

207 July 2010

Shri Hari Santosh Kumar

Ex.Addl.Controller General of Defence Accounts

Part-Time Non-Official Director

15" Decernber 2011

.PransarU.UEn kata Ramana
School of Management Studies
University of Hyderabad

Part-Time Non-Official Director

10" February 2012

 Shri H-EIE!:FI- Kumar Bhanwala
Executive Director

%uléﬁae_ﬁﬁeﬂm

25" Dctober2012

Shiri Rajiv Takru, Secretary (FS), Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services, Government of India, Shri Ravi Mital,
Advisor (Infrastructure), Planning Commission, Government of India, Ms_. Sharmila Chavaly, Joint Secretary (Infrastructure &
Investment) Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Government of India and Shri Harsh Kumar Bhanwala,
Executive Director, IIFCL were inducted into the Board during the year. The Board welcomes all the new Directors on the

Board of the Company.

Following individuals ceased to be Directors from the Board of IIFCL during the Financial Year as indicated below. The Board

wishes to place on record its appreciation of their contribution to the company.
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Name and Designation

Category

Tenure

Shrri DK, Mittal (Secretary (FS)

Government Nominee Director

37 August 2011- 4th February 2013

Government of India

Ministry of Finance

Department of Financial Services
Ms.Sudha Pillai

Member Secretary

Government Nominee Director 19" October 20009-11th April 2012
Planning Commission
Government of India
Ms. Sindhushree Khullar
Secretary

Government Nominee Director 11" April 2012-18th February 2013
Planning Commission
Government of India

Shri Rajesh Khullar

Joint Secretary, (Infrastructure)

Government Nomines Director 22" March 2012-22nd Octaber 2012
Government of India

Ministry of Finance
Department of Economic Affairs

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section-217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 with respect 1o a Director's Responsibility
Statement,itis hereby confirmed:

{a}) That in the preparation of Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31"March 2013 the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with the proper explanation relating to material departure,

(b} That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the
end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for the year under review,

ic) That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of the adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safequarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

idl Thatthe Directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31"March, 2013 onangoing concern basis,
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance s a set of accepted principles by management of the inalienable rights of the shareholders as a true
owner of the corporation and of their own rale as trustees on behalf of the shareholders. Corporate Governance ensures
transparency and accountability which ensures strong and balanced economic development of company and society.
Accordingly, there is strong realization in corporate world for adopting and strengthening the Corporate Governance
practices.

Your campany continues to focus on evalving corporate structure, conduct of business and disclosure practices aligned to
such Corporate Governance Philosophy.

In line with the Best Practices on Corporate Governance, your Company's Board comprises of Nine (9] Directors out of which
Two (2) Whole Time Functional Director i.e, the Chairman and Managing Director and Executive Director, three (3) are
Government Mominee Directors, One (1) Director representing the Scheduled Commercial Banks and three (3) are
Independent Directors.

Further, your Company has a qualified and an independent four member Audit Committee chaired by an Independent
Director,

Your Company prepares the consolidated financial statements as per the applicable Accounting Standardsin relationto the
Consolidation of Financial Statements. The managemeant makes disclosures to the board relating to all material financial
and commercial transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
company.

Reports on the economy, performance of the company and other operational matters are regularly reviewed by the Board

of Directors.
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Board Meetings during the year

The Board of Directors of the company provides leadership and strategic direction and brings forth their objective
judgment, 5o as to exercise control over the functioning of the company, ensuring accountability to stakeholders through
an efficient management. During the year under review, the Board of Directors met 11 times on 23" April 2012, 22™ May
2012,5" June 2012,4" July 2012, 3" August 2012, 3" September 2012, 23" October 2012, 22™ November 2012, 8" January
2013,20" February 2013and 117 March 2013.

Audit Committee of the Board

The Board of Directors has constituted an Audit Committee under section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956, The
Constitution of the Audit Committee as on date is as under:

MName Designation

Prof. G.Raghuram Chairman

Ms. Sharmila Cha\;a1y Government Nominee Director
ShriHari Santosh Kumar Part time Non-Official Director
Shri Harsh Kumar Bhanwala Executive Director, IIFCL

During the year 2012-13, the Audit Committee of the Board met 7 times on 237 April 2012, 4" July 2012, 18" July 2012,
3" September 2012,23" October 2012,21" Novemnber 2012 and 20" February 2013

The Board has also constituted the following committess —

Risk Mitigation & Management Committee of the Board

Name Designation
Shri 5.K.Goel CMD,IFCL
Chairman of the Committee
shrik.R.Kamath Scheduled Commercial Banks Nominee Director
Prof. V\Venkata Ramana Part Time Non-Official Director
ShriHarsh Kumnar Bhanwala Executive Director, IFCL

Bond Issue Committee

Name Designation
Shri5 K. Goel CMDIFCL

Chairman of the Committee
Prof. G.Raghuram Part Time Non-Official Director
Shri Hari Santosh Kumar Part Time Mon-Official Director
Prof. W VenkataRamana PartTime Non-Official Director
ShriHarsh KumarBhanwala Executive Director, IFCL

Remuneration Committes

Name Designation

Prof. G.Raghuram Part Time Non-Official Director, Chairman of the Committee
Ms. Sharmila Chavaly Government Nominee Director

ShriHari Santosh Kumar Part Time Non-Official Director

Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) Committee

MName Designation
Shri 5.K.Goel CMD,IIFCL

Chairman of the Committee
Ms. Sharmila Chavaly GovernmentNominee Director
ShriHari Santosh Kumar Part Time Mon-Official Director
ShriHarsh Kumar Bhanwala | Executive Director, lIFCL
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Management & Investment Committee

Name Designation
Shri5.K.Goel CMD,IFCL, Chairman of the Committes
ShriRajiv Takru Government Nominee Director
Shri Hari Santosh Kumar Part Time Non-Official Director
Prof W Wenkata Ramana Part Time Non-Official Director
ShriHarsh Kumar Bhanwala Executive Director IFCL

Rightto Information Act, 2005

During the year under review, the Company had received twelve applications under the Right to Information Act, 2005.The
Company hasdisposed of all the applications and appeals and no application/appeal is pending.

Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits under Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956,
read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975,

Conservation of energy

The Campany is engaged in providing financial assistance to infrastructure projects and its consumption of power is
insignificant. Howewver, company has taken adequate measures to conserve energy consumption in the office premises,

Technology Absorption

The Company is engaged in providing financial assistance toinfrastructure projects,which does notinvelve any technology
absorption.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Information in accordance with Section 217(1) (e} of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosure of
Particularsin the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1 988:

(Tinlach
Yearended Yearended
31" March 2013 31" March2012
Total Foreign exchange used : T 5053564 r2,251.87
Total Foreign exchange earned: T 16,944.41 T 37554

Particulars of Employees

The Company had no employees during the year under review whose particulars are required to be given under Section
217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employess Rules 1975),

Statutory Auditors

Mis P R Mehra & Co. Chartered Accountants were appointed by the Office of Comptroller & Auditor General of India as
Statutory Auditors of IIFCL for the financial year 2012-13.

Comments of the Statutory Auditors/ Comptroller & Auditor General of India on Annual Accounts

The audited statement of accounts along with the report of auditors is appended with comments of the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India under Section 6194} of the Companies Act, 1956, as anannexure ta this Report,

Information and explanation on qualifications in Auditor's Report as required under Section 217(3) of the Companies Act
1956is given in addendum annexed herewith.

Official Language

Efforts were made during the year towards encouraging use of Hindi in official transactions as also to ensure compliance of
provisions of Official Language Act, 1963,

Acknowledgments

The Board of Directors is thankful to the Central Government specially the Ministry of Finance, Planning Commission, State
Governments, Banks, Financial Institutions, Multilateral and Bilateral partners, Employees, Customers and all other
Shareholders for their continued support and cooperation. The Board is also thankful to the Auditors of the Company, the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India for their valuable guidance and advice.

The Board of Directors wishes to place on record its appreciation for dedication, hard work and the efforts of the employees
of the company,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LTD.
(5.K.Goel)
Chairman and Managing Director
Place: New Delhi
Date :10.05.2013
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ADDENDUM TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information and explanation on qualifications in Auditor's Report as regquired under Section 217(3) of the
Companies Act 1956

(ih

]

{iii)

Auditors observation: As per Accounting Standand-11 (AS5-11) i.e. The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,
foreign currency loans taken (to the extent hedged) and ocutstanding forward exchange contracts should be restated
at the exchange rates prevalling at the reporting date and difference should be taken to the Statement of profit and
loss whereas the company has restated these foreign currency loans as on the date of inception of the forward
contracts and difference taken to Statement of Profit and Loss.Had the company complied with A5-11,lcan liability and
foreign currency receivable account ason March 31,2013 would have been higher by ¥ 69,646.50 Lac (¥43,320.36Lacas
on March 31,2012) each.However, there would be no impact on the profit for the year ended March 31,2013 as the loss
on principal amount of hedged foreign currency loans is totally offset by the gain on the forward exchange contracts.

Management comments; IFCL has requested the Expert Advisory Committee (EAC) of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) to give opinion in the matter of restating foreign currency loans taken (to the extent
hedged) and outstanding forward exchange contracts as per Accounting Standard-11 {A5-11) i.e. The Effects of
Changeas in Foreign Exchange Rates’, Accordingly, appropriate treatment of foreign currency loans taken (to the extent
hedged) and outstanding forward exchange contracts would be carried out based on such opinion.

Auditors observation: As stated by the management in Mote No. 24(B)(11)(b), the Mark to Market (M2M) gain on
composite contracts (Interest Rate Swaps cum forward exchange contracts) as on March 31, 2013 amounts to
¥ 70,689.36Lac and the net M2M loss/gain relating to interest rate swaps cannot be computed separately.

As per the announcement issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India regarding ‘Accounting for
Derivatives, keeping in view the principle of prudence as enunciated in A5 1,'Disclosure of Accounting Policies; the
entity is required to provide for losses in respect of all outstanding derivative contracts at the balance sheet date by
marking them to market except in respect of Forward Contracts'which are to be accounted for in accordance with the
provisions of A5-11, ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates! In our opinion, the company has not
ascertained and provided for such mark to market loss, if any, on these outstanding derivative contracts, i.e. Interest
Rate Swaps.

Management comments: The company has undertaken composite contracts i.e. Interest Rate Swap cum forward
exchange contracts to hedge risks relating to floating interest rates as well as foreign exchange fluctuations on foreign
currency borrowings. The M2M losses on Interest Rate Swaps (IRS)is not being accounted for in the books of accounts
as the underlying liability designated with swap is also not carried at lower of cost or market value in the financial
statements and the M2M loss relating only te IRS cannot be computed separately and provided for as required by the
announcement of ICAl on ‘Accounting for Derivatives’ as the company had entered into composite contracts for
hedging and the interest payable to counter-parties also includes amount of premium, if any, which has not been
mentioned/ identified separately in the composite contracts, lIFCL has also requested EAC of the ICAl to infarm how
mark to rarket gain/ loss gain/ loss on interest rate swaps can be ascertained/ segregated from mark to market gain/
loss of composite coritract while giving opinion referred in management comments to the previous observation,

Accordingly,appropriate treatment in this matter would also be carried out based on such opinion,

Auditors observation: Some of the balances shown under Infrastructure loans, borrowings and various other debitand
credit balances as on March 31, 2013 are subject to confirmation. The impact on the company's accounts on
confirmation of these balances, on reconciliation of the differences between balances as per books of account of the
company and balances confirmed by the company and also on account of pending resetting of interest rates in some

ofthe casesis not ascertainable at this stage.

Management comments: IIFCL undertakes reconciliation of balances of Infrastructure loans on on-going basis and

high value differences in balances of Infrastructure loans have since been reconciled.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tothe members of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
Reporton the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited ("the Company”)
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
paosition, financial performance and cash flows of the company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in
sub-section(3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (4the Act"). This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statermnents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financlal statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of maternial
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit alsoincludes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. AsperAccounting Standard- 11 {AS-11)i.e.The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates | foreign currency loans taken
(to the extent hedged) and outstanding forward exchange contracts should be restated at the exchange rates prevailing at
the reporting date and difference should be taken to the Statement of profit and loss whereas the company has restated
these foreign currency loans as on the date of inception of the forward contracts and difference taken ro Statement of Profit
and Loss as stated in Note No. 24(8)(14). Had the company complied with A5-17, lean llability and foreign currency
recelvable account ason March 31,201 3 would have been higher by T 69.646.50Lac{T 43,320.36 LacasonMarch 31,2012)
each. However, there would be no impact on the profit for the yearended March 31,2013 as the loss on principal amount of
hedgedforeign currency loans is totally offset by the gain on the ferward exchange contracts.

2. Asstated by the management in Note No, 24(8)(1 1){b), the Mark ro Market (M2M) gain on compasite contracts (Interest
Rate Swaps cum forward exchange contracts) as on March 31,2013 amounis to % 70,689.36 Lac and the nel M2M lass/gain
relating tointerest rate swaps cannot be computed separately.

As per the announcementissued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of india regarding ‘Accounting for Derivatives),
keeping in view the principle of prudence as enunciated in AS 1, " Disclosure of Accounting Policies| the entity is required to
provide for losses in respect of all outstanding derivative contracts at the balance sheet date by marking them to market
except in respect of ‘Forward Contracts' which are to be accounted for in accordance with the provisions of AS-11, The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” In our opinion, the company has not ascertained and provided for such mark
tomarket foss, ifany, on these outstanding derivative contracts, i.ainterest Rote Swaps,

3 Some of the balances shown under infrastructure loans, borrowings and various other debit and credit balances as on
March 31,2013 are subject to confirmation. The impact on the company’s accounts on confirmation of these balances, on
reconciliation of the differences between balances as per books of account of the company and balances confirmed by the
company and also on account of pending resetting of interest rates in some of the cases is not ascertainable at this stage.

[Refer note 24{8){21)].




Qualified Opinion

In eurapinion and to the best ofour infarmation and according to the explanations given ta us, except for the effects of the
matterdescribed in paragraph | above and possible effects of the matters described in paragraphs 2 & 3 above in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

{a) in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,201 3;

{b)  inthecaseofthe Statement of Profitand Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

fc) inthe case of the cash flow staternent, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter

The company, being a Non-Banking Finance Company since incorporation, has been carrying on the business of a
non-banking financial institution without obtaining a certificate of registration from the Reserve Bank Of India. We
draw attention to Note No. 24(B) (16)(a) of the financial statements which describes the matter regarding application
made by the company on March 07, 2013 for registration of the company as a ‘Non- Banking Financial Company-
Infrastructure Finance Company (NBFC-IFC)' with Reserve Bank Of India as required under section 45-(14)(1){a} of
Chapter lIB of The Reserve Bank Of India which is pending.Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter,

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 ( “the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (44) of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in
paragraph 4 and 5 of the Order,

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act,we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our gpinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books;

C The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply with the accounting standards
referred toin sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act;

&, The requirements of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to the
disqualification of the directors are not applicable to the company, being a Government company, in terms of
notification Mo, G.5.R.829(E), dated 21.10.2003 issues by the Ministry of Finance, Department of Corporate
Affairs.

f. Since the Central Government has not issued any notification as to the rate at which the cess is to be paid
under section 4414 of the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any Rules under the said section, prescribing
the manner in which such cessis to be paid, no cess is due and payable by the Company.

For P.R.Mehra & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)
{Registration. No.000051N)

(Jai Prakash Agarwal)
Partner
{Membership No.010270)

Place: New Delhi
Dated:10.05.2013
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Annexure to the Auditor's Report to the Members of India
Infrastructure Finance Company Limited

Referred 1o in sub-paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ paragraph of our audit report
of even date:

(i)

(iy

fiii)

(vl

(v

]

(wii)

{wiii)

{ix}

)

()

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

b} As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals.
Mo material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

e} Thecompany hasnot disposed off any material fixed asset during the year.

The nature of business of the Company does not require it to hold inventories and as such clause 4(ii} of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003('Order'} is not applicable,

(a)  The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provision of clause
A{ili} (b), (c) and (d) of the Order are notapplicable to the company.

{b) The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 except for issue of bonds of T 0.20Lac
toa director of the company in 2010-11 and the rate of interest and other terms and conditions of these bonds
are not prejudicial to the interests of the company. Further, no payment of principal and interest was due up
toMarch 31,2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of fixed
assets and for sale of services. Further, during the course of our audit, we have neither come across nor have we been
informed of any significant continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the internal control system with regard
topurchase of fixed assets and sale of services.

Tathe best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation given to us, there were no
contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Act which have to be entered in the register maintained
under that Section during the year ended March 31, 2013. Accordingly, the requirements of paragraph (v} (b) of the
order are also not applicable as there was no such transaction inexcess of ¥5lac.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the Rule 2{b) of the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 1975,

In our opinion, the internal audit system ie. internal audit carried out by an external agency appointed by the
management is commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance
of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Companies Act, 1956,

fa) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income
tax, Service-Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

(bl  According toinformation and explanations given to us,no undisputed amounts inrespect of Income Tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to the company were in arrears as of March 31,2013 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{c}]  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues outstanding on account of
Income Tax / Service Tax / Cess that have not been deposited on account of disputes.

The company has no accumulated losses as on March 31, 2013. The company has not incurred cash losses for the
financial yearended March 31,201 3 and in the immediately preceding financial year,

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or debenture

holders.




(xii}  According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, the company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of prime security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities, Accordingly, clause 4{xil} of the Order is not applicable.

{xiii) The company is not a chit fund, Nidhi, mutual benefit or a society. Accordingly, clause 4{xiil) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiv) {a) According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basls of our examination of the books
of account generally, proper records have been maintained of the transactions and contracts and timely
entries have been made therein in respect of the securities, debentures and other investments dealt with or
traded by the company.

{b)  The securities, debentures and other securities have been held by the Company, in its own name except
tothe extent of the exemption.if any.granted under Section 49 of the Act.

(xv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has not given any
guarantees for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions. (Refer note 24(B)(1)(e) of Financial
Statements for the yearended March 31,2013}

{xvi} To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, in our
opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, prima facie, applied by the Company during the year for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained except for temporary deployment in deposits with banks pending
application.

{xvii)  According to information and explanations given to us and based on the overall examination of the Balance Sheet of
the Company, we report that funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used for long-term
investment.

{xviii} The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the year.

ixix] The company has created security and charge on tax saving long-term infrastructure bonds of ¥ 9096,18 Lac issued
during the year ended March 31, 2011, non-convertible bonds of T 1,10,000 Lac and tax-free bonds of ¥ 3,66,887 .69
Lac issued during the year ended March 31,2013, However, in respect of tax free bonds of ¥ 27,244.20 Lac allotted on
March 26, 201 3, security and charge was created after the close of the financial year,

ixx]  The company has raised money by publicissue of bonds during the year and the required disclosure regarding end
use of money raised by publicissue has been made by the company and the same has been verified.

{xxi] Tothe bestof our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fravd an
or by the company was noticed or reported during the year.

For P.R.Mehra & Co.
{Chartered Accountants)
(Regn No.00DOSTN)

{Jai Prakash Agarwal)
Partner
{Membership No.010270)

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 10.05.2013
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INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH 2013

finLac
PARTICULARS MNote Asat Asat
No. 31"March2013 31" March2012
1l EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Shareholders' Funds
{a) Share capital 1 2,90,000.00 2,50,000.00
(bl  ReservesandSurplus 2 1,95817.01 1,16,807.86
{4 Money received against share warrants - -
. SUB-TOTAL(1) 4,85,817.01 3,66,807.86
| (2] Shareapplication money pending allotment- SUB-TOTAL(2) = g
| (3) Mon-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 3 17,83,859.52 20,84,196.36
(b Deferred tax liabilities (Met) 4 13,027.59 6,199.19
{c) Otherlong term liabilities 5 112,60 13221
(d) Long-term provisions 6 14,350.72 11,371.01
SUB-TOTAL(3) 18,11,350.43 21,01,898.77
| (4) Currentliabilities
' (a) Short-term borrowings 7 1,48,385.89 2,74,368.97
{b) Trade payahbles B 181.04 113.62
{c) Othercurrent liabilities ] 10,73,818.25 49,322.06
{d)  Short-term provisions 10 111878 200.29
SUB-TOTAL (4) _12,23,503.96  3,24,004.94
TOTAL (1)+(2)+(3)+(4) 35,20,671.40  27,92,711.57 |
o ASSETS
{1} MNon-currentassets
(a) Fixed Assets 11
(i} Tangible assets 113.97 101.84
{ii} Intangible assets 6.36 7.28
liii) Capital Waork -in-Progress - -
(iv} Intangible Assets under development - -
(b)  Non-currentinvestments 12 54.579.40 52,7722
ic) Long term loans and advances 13 18,92, 760.68 18,03, 712.91
{d) Other non-current assets - -
SUB-TOTAL(1) 192,47,460.41 18,56,593.25
(2} Currentassets
(a) Current Investments 14 - 1,482.98
() Trade Receivables 15 366.67 -
14} Cashand BankBalances 16 9,77,894.61 8,17,908.50
(d) Shortterm loans and advances 17 5,23,982.91 53,845.58
2 Other current assets 18 70,966.80 62,881.26
SUB-TOTAL(2) 15,73,210.99 9,36,118.32
Significantaccounting policies and other notes ta 24
thefinancial statements
TOTAL (1)+(2) 35,20,671.40  27,92,711.57
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For P.R. Mehra & Co. India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
{Registration no: 000051N)
Jai Prakash Agarwal Harsh Kumar Bhanwala 5.K.Goel
Partner [Executive Director) (Chairman and Managing Director)
Membership No.: 10270
Rajeev Mukhija
Place: New Delhi (Genesat Manager- CFO & C5)
Dated: 10.05.2013
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INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2013

TinLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Mote Year ended Year ended
No. 31" March2013 31" March2012
L Revenue from operations 19 IF: ?,2?,&6“1_5; | 2.54,114253 .
Il. ©Otherincome 20 841.54 416.96
L. Total Revenue (1+11) 3,28,743.53 2,54,459.64
V. Expenses
Finance Costs 21 1.87,603.08 1.58,305.48
Employee Banefits Expense 22 819.00 841.62
Provision for Loan Assets 24(Bl)(16b) 3,920.77 1,046.01
Marked to Market Losses on Derivatives 24(B}{11a) (974.01) 1455.70
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11 3592 35.88
Other Expenses 23 2,53598 2,555.28
Total Expenses 1,93,940.74 1,64,240,07
V. PROFITBEFOREEXCEPTIONALAND EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS ANDTAX {11I-IV) 1,34,802.79 90,219.57
V. Exceptional ltems
Add: Dividend received from subsidiary company
i.e.India Infrastructure Finance Company (LK) Ltd. 16,627.50 -
Less: Provision for Standard Loan Assets 24(B)(16b) = (3,620.59)
Vil. PROFITBEFOREEXTRAORDINARY ITEMS ANDTAX (V+VI1) 1,51,430.29 86,598.98
Vill. Extraordinaryltems -
IX. PROFITBEFORETAX (VII-VIII) [ 'I!.’ﬂ,lfl_il.'liﬂ BE,_SEE.BB
¥. TaxExpense:
(1)  CurrentTax
-Current Year (39,694 48) (24,698,30)
- Earlier'Year (207 .97) 310.88
(2) Deferred Tax 4
- CurrentYear (6,B28.40) (347275}
-EarlierYear (136.05)
X1 Profit for the year from continuing operations {IX-X) 1,04,699.44 58,582.76
Xl Earnings perequity share (7 ) (face value of T 10/- each) 24(B)(7)
{1} Basic 3.79 2.84
(2} Diluted 79 284
Significant accounting policies and other notes to the 24
financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For P.R. Mehra & Co. India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

(Registration no: 000051N)

Jai Prakash Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 10270

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 10.05.2013

Harsh Kumar Bhanwala
(Executive Director)

5.K.Goel
(Chairman and Managing Director)

Rajeev Mukhija

(General Manager- CFO & CS)
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INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2013

TinlLac
PARTICULARS Yearended Yearended
31"March2013  31"March2012
| A CASHFLOWFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
iy  NetProfitbeforeTax 1,51,430.29 86,598.98
Adjustments for:
{iiy Depreciationand amortisation expense 3592 35.98
| {ili} Provision/write offs 4,023.23 6,244.47
| {iv) Provisions/ Amountswritten back (1,088.11) {100.18)
| (v}  ForeignExchange Fluctuation Loss/ (Profit) on borrowings 4,206.57 1,262.39
(wi}  Interest/ expenseson borrowings 1,76,882.47 1,52,353.47
{vii}) Other Borrowing Costs 7.068.36 5,156.19
| (viii} Dividend received from subsidiary company {16,627.50)
fix) InterestonincomeTax 8539 141.16
' OPERATING PROFIT BEFOREWORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 3,26,026.62 2,51,692.46
| (i)  CashFlow From Lending of Funds (5,58,826.99) {4,14,176.64)
| (i} Sale off {Addition) to Investments 1,500.00 1,74,654.23
| (il {Increasel’decrease inTrade Receivables (366.67) :
| v} {Increasel/decrease in Current Assets,Loans and Advances (8,313.71) {26,315.50)
v} (Increase)/decrease inother bank balances {1,31,516.20) (1,49,019.45)
| v} Increase/{decrease) in other non-current and current liabilities 615.71 12.28
CASHFLOW FROM OPERATIONS BEFORETAX (3,70,881.24) (1,63,152.62)
Taxes paid (Net) (39,152.22) 25,115.67)
| NET CASHFROM OPERATIONS A 14,10,033.46)  (1,88,268.29)
| B CASHFLOWFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
| iy (Purchaseof)/5ale for Fixed Assets {255.32) (66.16)
| {ii}  Investmentsin Subsidiary Company and Venture Capital Units (2,354.48) (2,164.62)
{iii} Redemption of Investments inVenture Capital Units 52210 172.00
fiv) Dividendreceived from subsidiary company 16,627.50 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTVITIES B 14,539.79 (2,058.78)
L& CASHFLOWFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
| (i} Proceedsfrom lssue of Share Capital 40,000.00 50,000.00
iy Proceedsfrom Long term Borrowings 7.07,305.57 1,04,566.93
| {iil} Proceeds/ (Repayment) from Short term Borrowings (1,25,983.08) 1,56,161.23
(v}  Securities Premium on Bonds 9.85 =
| 1w} Interim Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) 125,700.14)
| (v} Interest/expenseson Borrowings {1,64,735.38) (1,49,701.92)
| (wii) OtherBarrowing Costs (6,933.24) (5,61841)
NETCASHFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES c 4,23,963.58 1,55,407.83
NETCHANGE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C) 2846991 (34,919.24)
Add: Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 648928 _A1.408,52
Closing Cashand Cash Equivalents 34,959.19 6,489.28
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent Comprises of ;-
1 Cashinhand 0.34 032
Z Current AccountsinIndia (Refer footnote of Note 16) 30,658.15 3,101.76
3 Flexi Deposit Accounts 4,300.70 3387.20
TOTAL 34,959.19 6,489.28

Note:- Figures of previous period (s) have been re-grouped /re-arranged wherever necessary to make them comparable to

the reporting period presentation.

As per our report of even date
For P.R.Mehra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
{Registration no: 00005 1N)

Jai Prakash Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 10270

Place; New Delhi
Dated: 10.05.2013

Harsh Kumar Bhanwala
{Executive Director)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited

5.K. Goel
{Chairman and Managing Director)

Rajeev Mukhija
(General Manager- CFO & C5)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1:SHARE CAPITAL

TinlLac
PARTICULARS Asat Asat

31" March 2013 31" March 2012
Authorized Capital
5,000,000,000 equity shares of T 10/- each 5,00,000.00 5.00,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Equity Shares
2,900,000,000(2,500,000,000 as at 31st March 2012) equity shares of T 10/- each 2,90,000.00 2,50.000.00
Footnotes:

a)  Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and atthe end of the reporting period

PARTICULARS Year ended 31" March 2013 Yearended 31" March 2012
MNo. of Shares TinLac No. of Shares TinlLac
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the
reporting period 2,50,00,00,000 2,50,000.00 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000.00
Shares |ssued during the reporting period 40,00,00,000 40,000.00 50,00,00,000 50,000.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the reporting
period 2,90,00,00.000 2,90.000.00 2,50,00,00,000 2,50,000.00

b)  Entire equity share capital of the company is held by Government of iIndia.
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Note 2 : RESERVES & SURPLUS

TinLac
5. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
No. 31"March2013  31"March 2012

| (a) | CAPITALRESERVE (PROFIT ONSALE OF NON CURRENT SECURITIES)

Opening Balance 585.14 585.14

Closing Balance 585.14 585.14
' (b) | SECURITIES PREMIUM RESERVE (ONBONDS)

Opening Balance = =

Add:Forthe year 9.85 -

Closing Balance 9.85 -
| (e} | DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE

Opening Balance 882.90 9.54

Add:Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Profitand Loss 97312 873.36

Closing Balance 1,856.02 B82.90
' (d) | OTHERRESERVES -
() | RESERVEFORLOAN ASSETS (footnote 1)

Opening Balance 5,792.94 579294

Closing Balance 5,792.94 5,792.94
 lii) | SPECIALRESERVEU/S 36(1){viii) OF INCOMETAX ACT, 1961 (footnote 2)

Opening Balance 2164448 10,035.24

Add:Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss {Met) 20,072.80 11,609.24

Closing Balance 41,717.28 21,644.48
| (iif) | STAFFWELFARE RESERVE [footnote 3)
' Opening Balance 64.44 65.00

Less:Amount utilized during the year and transferred 1o Surplusin

Statement of Profitand Loss 1.85 (.56

Closing Balance 62.49 64.44
| {iv) | CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY RESERVE (footnote 4)

Opening Balance 591.60 -

Add Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 117166 591.60

Less:Amount utilized during the year and transferred to

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 105.40 -

Closing Balance 1,657.86 591.60
| (e) | SURPLUSINSTATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Opening Balance B87.246.36 41,737.24

Add: Profitforthe current year 104,699.44 58,582.76

Add: Transfer from StaffWelfare Reserve 1.95 0.56

Add: Transfer from Caorporate Social Responsibility Reserve 105.40 -

Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 973.12 873.36

Less: Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 20,072.80 11,609.24

Less: Transfer to Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 1.171.66 591.60

Less: Interim Dividend 2211288 -

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax 3,587.26 -

Closing Balance 144,135.43 87,246.36
| TOTAL 1,95,817.01 1,16,807.86

Footnotes:

1 Reserve for loan assets created @ 0.40% on outstanding amount of loans assets as at 31" March 2011 has been
retained. [Refer Note 24(BH16¢)]

2 Special Reserve is the statutory reserve required to be maintaimed u/s 36(1){viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 by companies
providing long term finance for development of infrastructure facility in India.

3 StaffWelfare Reserve created to promote, among the staff, sports, cultural and other welfare activities.

4 Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve created w.ef. the previous financial year to comply with the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the company as per guidelines on CSRissued by Department of Public Enterprises.




Note 3 : LONG TERM BORROWINGS
TinlLac
5.No. PARTICULARS As at Az at
31"March2013  31"March2012

(A] |SECUREDBONDS
(i} | 5009.36% Non Convertible Bonds offace value T 10 lac each,

redeemable at paron 27/07/2042 (See footnote 1) 5,000.00 -
(i | 10,5009.41% Non Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10laceach,

redeemable at paron 27/07/2037 (See footnote 1) 1,05,000.00 -
(i) |98,31,0607.40% Non convertible | Tax Free) Bonds of face

value ¥ 1,000 each,redeemable atparon 22/01/2033 (See footnote 1) 98,310.60 -
(iv) |17,33,1647.90% Non convertible | Tax Free) Bonds of face

value ¥1,000each,redeemable at paron 22/01/2033 (See footnote 1) 1733164
vl |2107.41% Mon Convertible Bonds (Tax Free) Series IV-C of face

value T 10laceach.redeemableat paron21/11/2032 (See footnote 1) 2.100,00 -
(wil |3,4007.41% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax Free) Series lII-C of face

value ¥ 10laceach,redeemable atparon 15/11/2032 (Seefootnote 1) 34,000.00
(vii} |66,42,0747.36% Nonconvertible (Tax Free) Bonds of face

value T 1,000 each,redeemable at paron 22/01/2028 (See footnote 1) 66,420.74 -
(will) | 9,67.479 7.86% Non convertible ( Tax Free) Bonds of face

value ¥ 1,000 each,redeemable at paron 22/01/2028 (See footnote 1) 967479 -
{ix) |5007.38% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax Free) Series V-8 of face

value ¥ 10laceach,redeemableatparon21/11/2027 (See footnote 1) 5,000.00 -
{x) |1,000738% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax Free) Serieslll-B of face

value ¥ 10laceach,redeemableat paron15/11/2027 (See footnote 1) 10,000,00 -
(xi) |B4,24,9607.19% Non convertible { Tax Free) Bonds of face

value T1,000each,redeemableat paron 22/01/2023 (See footnote 1) 54,249.60 -
(xii) |12,40,0327.69% Nonconvertible ( Tax Free) Bonds of face

value T 1,000 each,redeemable at paron22/01/2023 (See footnote 1) 12,400.32 -
(xiil) | 2,740 7.21% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax Free) Series IV-A of face

value ¥ 10lac each,redeemable at paron 21/11/2022 (See footnote 1) 21,400.00 -
(xiv) | 6007.20% Non Convertible Bonds [ Tax Free) Series |II-A of face

value ¥ 10laceach,redeemableat paron15/11/2022 (See footnote 2) 6,000.00 -
{xv] |LongTerm Infrastructure Bonds covered under Section 80CCF of

IncomeTax Act, 1961 (5eefootnotes 1 & 2) 9,096.18 8,096.18

SUB-TOTAL (A} 4,85,983.87 9,096.18

(B} |UNSECUREDBONDS
{i} |20,4007.08% Nonconvertible (Tax Free) Bonds of face value T 1,000

each,redeemable at paron 26/03/2033 (See footnote 3) 204.00 =
(@ |2,12,7657.58% Non convertible ( Tax Free) Bonds of face value ¥ 1,000

each, redeemable at paron 26/03/2033 (See footnote 3) 2,127 .65 B
(i} |3,46,0007.02% Non convertible {Tax Free) Bonds of face value ¥ 1,000each,

redeemable at par on 26/03/2028 (5ee footnote 3) 3,460.00 -
(i) |1,19.6187.52% Mon convertible ( Tax Free) Bonds of face value 1,000

each,redeemable at paron 26/03/2028 (See footnote 3) 1,196,18 -
(w] | 10,0008.55% Mon Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10laceach,

redeemable at paron03/11/2024 # 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
{vi] |4,0008.12% Non Convertible Bonds of facevalue ¥ 10laceach,

redeemable at par on 24/08/2024 # 40,000.00 40,000.00
(wil) |6,0008.12% Non Convertible Bonds offace value T10laceach,

redeemable at paron 12/08/2024 # &0,000.00 G0,000.00
(will) | 5,000 7.90% Non Convertible Bonds of face value T 10lac each,redeemable

atparon28/04/2024 % 50,000.00 50,000.00
(ix) |5,0008.10% Non Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10laceach, redeemahble

atparon 08/04/2024 # 50,000.00 50,000.00
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(x)

2,000 8.68% Non Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10 lac each, redeemable

financial year.

atparon 18/12/2023 # 20,000.00 20,000.00
(xi) | 2,0009.35% Non Convertible Bonds offace value ¥ 10lac each, redeemable
atparon17/11/2023 4 20,000.00 20,000.00
{xii) | 19,16,1106.86% Non convertible {Tax Free) Bonds of face value 2 1,000
each,redeemable at paron 26/03/2023 19,161.10 -
{xiii) | 1,09,527 7.36% Mon convertible (Tax Free) Bonds of face value ¥ 1,000 each,
rdeemable at paron 26/03/2023 1.095.27
{xiv) | 2,000 8.82% Non Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10lac each redeemable
atparon 19/12/2022 4 20,000.00 20,000.00
(xv] |5.0008.70% Non Convertible Bonds of face value T 10lac each,redeemable
atparon02/09/2016 # 50,000.00 50,000.00
[xwi) | 2,63,0706.85% Mon Convertible Bonds (Tax free) of face value ¥ 1laceach,
redeemable at paron 20/03/2014 # - 263,070.00
ixvil)| 7,36,9306.85% Non Convertible Bonds{ Tax free) of face value ¥ 1laceach,
redeemable at paron 22/01/2014 # - 736,930.00
SUB-TOTAL(B) 4,37,244.20 14,10,000.00
(C) |UNSECUREDTERM LOAMS FROM OTHERPARTIES (Seefootnote 4)
{it | Lifeinsurance Corporation of India (LIC)" 1,85,000.00 95,000.00
(i) | National Small Savings Schemes Fund (NS5F) 1,50,000.00 1,50,000.00
i) |AsianDevelopment Bank(ADB)* 4,96,727.66 3,92,219.78
(iv) | IBRD (World Bank)* 10,532.43 1042098
(v} |Kreditanstalt fir Wiederaufbau (KFW)* 18371.36 17,459.42
'SUB-TOTAL(C) 8,60,63145 66510018
L TOTAL (A)+(B}+(C) 17,83,859.52 20,84,196.36
¢  Guaranteed by Government of Indiaincluding ¥ 10,00,000 Lacas on 14,10,000.00 14,10,000.00
31" March 2013 (Nilas on 31" March 2012) 6.85% tax free bonds due
within 1year from the end of reporting period and shown as "Other Current
Liabilities”in Mote 9]
*  Guaranteed by Government of India [including T 10,000 Lacand ¥ 7.033.47 7.,27.664.92 5.23,936.92
Lacason 31 "March 2013( ¥ 5,000 Lacand ?3,836.74Lacasat 31" March 2012}
being the amountdueto LIC and ADB respectively within 1 year from the
end of reporting period and shown as "Other Current Liabilities” in Mote 8]
Footnotes:
11 These bondsare secured on pari passu basis by all rights, titles, interests, benefit, claims and demands whatsoever of the
Company's accounts including receivables of the Company of whatsoever nature, present and future,
2) Details of Long term Infrastructure bonds issued by IIFCL under section B0 CCF ofincome Tax Act, 1961,are as under:
{il 130407 B.30% Non Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 1000 each, redeemable at par on 28" March 2026 with earliest
buybackon 29" March 2018,
{ii) 779211 8.15% Non Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 1000 each, redeemable at par on 28" March 2021 with earliest
buybackon 29™ March 2016,
3} These bonds have been secured by creation of charge on assets mentioned at footnote 1 above, after the close of the
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Note 4 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

TinlLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March 2013 31"March 2012

i Deferred tax Liability
[ {ib Onaccount of Special Infrastructure Reserve created under section
| 3601 )viil) of Income Tax Act, 1961 13,5357 702255

tii} | Onaccount of deduction claimed for standard loan assets 1417.46 1,417.52
| | DeferredTaxLiahility 14,952.63 8,440.07
()| DeferredtaxAssets
| {1} Onaccount of depreciation 5,95 4,19
| (i) Onaccount of diminution in value of investments 7597 7755
| (iid) On account of provision for contingencies® 1.843.12 2,159,114
! Deferred Tax Assets 1,925.04 2,240.88
| Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 13,027.59 6,199.19

] Created in respect of marked to market losses on derivatives

Note 5 :0OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

finLac

| 5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
| 31"March2013 31" March2012

{(a} | Trade payables - -
| (b) | Others:
[ (id Rentadjustable account 106.60 105.33
(i) | Gratuity payable - 320
| (i) Security deposit received 6.00 2368

TOTAL 112.60 132.21
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Note 6 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS

TinLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March 2013 31" March 2012
(A} | Provisionfor Employee Benefits [See note 24 (B) (6a)]
)] Leave Encashement 5047 3208
(i} SickLeave 23.87 9.46
{iii} | Leave Fare Concession B.26 an
SUB-TOTAL (A} 82.60 49.65
(B) | Others[Seenote 24 (B)(6al]
b Marked tomarket losses on derivatives 5,680.75 6,654.76
[SeeMote 24 (B){11a)]
{ii) Contingent Pravisions against Standard Assets 6,048.51 4,666.60
[SeeMNote 24 (B) (16h)]
{iii) | Provisionsagainst Sub-standard Assets 2,361.92 -
[See Mote 24 (B} [16b)]
{iv} | Provisionsagainst Standard Restructured Assets 176.94 -
[See Mote 24 (B} (16b))
SUB-TOTAL (B} 14,268.12 11.321.36
TOTAL (A)+(B) 14,350.72 11,371.01

Note 7 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

TinLac
PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March2013 31"March 2012
LOANS REPAYABLE ON DEMAND FROM BANKS 1,48,385.89 2,74,368.97
{Secured by pledge of fixed deposit recelpts of ¥ 5,36,873.75 Lac
{¥ 392,864 Lac asat 317" March 2012))
TOTAL 1,48,385.89 2,74,368.97
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Note 8 : TRADE PAYABLES
TinlLac
PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March2013 31"March2012
Miscellaneous Liabilities 181.04 113.62
TOTAL 181.04 113.62
Note 9 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
TinLac
SMNa PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March 2013 31" March 2012
' (A) | Currentmaturities oflong term debt {See note 3):
| (i} | 2,63,0706.85% NonConvertible Bonds (Tax free) of facevalue
| ¥ 1 laceach,redeemable at paron 20/03/2014 2.63,070.00 -
i (i} | 7.36,9306.85% Non Convertible Bonds ( Tax free) of face
| value® 1 lac each,redeemable at paron22/01/2014 7.36,930.00 .
| {iil} | LifeInsurance Corporation of india (LIC) 10.000.00 5,000.00
(iv) | Asian DevelopmentBank (ADE) 7.03347 3,836.74
I SUB-TOTAL (A} 10,17,033.47 8,836.74
| (B) | Interestaccrued but notdueon borrowings
i) | Onbankoverdraft 6.75 74.95
| (ii} | Onbondsandtermloans 55,761.12 39,893.58
I SUB-TOTAL (B) 55,767.87 39,968.53
| (€} | Incomereceivedinadvance
[ (i} | Amount pending appropriation 513.40 0.74
| (i} | Grants received from World Bank 13.73 172.14
| SUB-TOTAL(C) 527.13 172.88
(D] | Otherpayables
') | Duties&Taxes payable 164.92 89.26
| (i} | PF deducted on behalf of employees/ whole time directors
{including interest payable) am 50.05
| {iii) | Unclaimed Interest on Bonds 1.38 1.38
| liv) | Commitment Charges payable 4482 33.50
i (v} | Government Guarantee fees payable - 1.37
| (wi} | Payableto Employees/Whaole time Directors 5.11 1.69
| lvii} | Contribution towards gratuity fund payableto LIC 2335 329
| twiii}) | Rent Adjustable Account 49.48 13.02
| fix} | Grantrefundable toWorld Bank 113.03 -
| (x}) | Others 78.68 120.73
| SUB-TOTAL (D) 489.78 343.91
| TOTAL (A}+{B)+(C)+(D) 10,73,818.25 49,322.06
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Note 10 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

TinLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March2013 31"March 2012
(A} | Provision for Employee Benefits [See note 24 (B) (6a)]
{i} Leave Encasement 16.74 0.92
i} Sick Leave 153 0.43
fiii) | LeaveFareConcession 0.64 0.33
{iv) | Performance Linked Incentive toWhaole time Directors 51.50 3315
vl | Wage Revision [See note 24(B)(15]] 37.29 .
SUB-TOTAL(A) 107.70 34.83
| (B} | Others[Seenote24(B)(6a}]
)] IncomeTax (MNet) 918.70 120.09
il | InterestonincomeTax 91.38 4537
SUB-TOTAL (B} 1,011.08 165.46
TOTAL (A)+(B]) 1,118.78 200.29
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Note 12 : NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

TinLac
5. Na. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
____31"March2013 _____31"March2012
Number Face Number Face
(A] |TRADEINVESTMENTS of Shares Value of Shares Value
{a) |InvestmentinEquity Instruments-
Unquoted (Fully Paid)
Wholly owned Subsidiaries
Investmentin India Infrastructure
Finance Company (UK) Ltd, 500,000,000 Uss1  23,394.80 (50000000 US%1 2339480
Investmentin [IFCL Asset Management
Company Ltd. 1,25,00,000 110 1,250.00 - - -
Investmentin [IFCL Prajects Ltd. 1,000,000 210 50.00 - -
24,694.80 23,394.80
ib) | Investmentin Equity Instruments-
Unquoted (Fully Paid)
Associate Company
[Seenote 24{B)4) (i) (A)(iii)]
Investmentin Delhi Mumbal Industrial
Corridor Development Corporation Lid. 41,00,000 10 41103 | 41,00,000 o 411.03
41103 41103
(c] |Investment inVenture Capital Units
(Ungquoted) (Fully Paid) Number Face Mumber  Face
of Units Value of Units  Value
|DFC Project Equity Domestic Investors
Trust |1 {Fully Paid) 60,60,239 1100 6060.24 | 5527859 T100 552786
6,060.24 5527.86
id) |Investmentin Bonds (Quoted)
(Fully Paid] (See footnote d below) Mumber Face Mumber  Fage
of Bonds Value of Bonds  Value
{iy |7.70%REC2014 100 f10lac 95923 100 ¥F10lac 959.23
(i} |B.90%PNB2019 200 T10lac 1984.03 200 ¥10lac 1.984.03
fill) {10.60%|RFC2018 50 10lac 500.89 50 Tiolac 50089
(iv) |11.00% PFC2018 50 T10lac 526.63 50 Tiolac 526.63
v} (11.25%PFC2018 100 Ti0lac 1065.93 100 T10lac 1,065.93
5,036.71 5,096.71
SUB-TOTAL(A) 36,202.78 3437040
{B) |OTHERINVESTMENTS Mumber Face Mumber Face
{a) |InvestmentinGovernmentSecurities ofUnits  Value ofUnits  Value
(Unguoted)
i} |6.05%GOI2019 20,00,000 T100 1,980,00 | 20,00,000 100 1,980.00
(i} [6.35%G0OI2020 75,00,000 100 683451 | 7500000 100 6,834.51
{fii) |6.90% GOI2019 20,00,000 100 195209 | 2000000 %100 1,852.09
(iv) |7.76% 5L (Karnataka) 2019 5,00,000 T100 511.79 500,000 ¥100 513.78
tv) |7.85% 5L {AndhraPradesh) 2019 10,00,000 2100 1,002,02 | 10,00000 2100 1,002.34
(vi} |8.27% 5L (Kerala) 2019 10,00,000 T100 1,007.41 1000000 F100 1,008.65
{wii) | 8.43% 5L (West Bengal) 2012 15,00,000 $100 1,572.69 | 1500000 100 1,584.91
(wiii}{ 8.48% 5L (Tamil Madu) 2012 25,00,000 100 255019 | 2500000 %100 255862
(B |Investmentin Bonds (Quoted) Mumber Face Mumber Face
(Fully Paid) of Bonds Value of Borids Value
8.83% MNeyveliLignite Corp.Ltd. 2019 100 T10Mac 965.92 100 T10lac 965.92
965.92 965.92
SUB-TOTAL (B) 18,376.62 "18,400.82
TOTAL (A)+(B) 54,579.40 52,771.22




Annual Report 2012-13

Footnotes:
ta)  Aggregateamount of quoted investments:
Cost/ BookValue 6,002.63 6,002.63
MarketValue 6,185.84 6,024.58
tb) Aggregateamountofunguoted
investments - Cost/ Book Value 48 576.77 46,768.59
ic]  Aggregate provision for diminutionin
value of investments 222.00 222.00

id} During the previous financial year, these investments were shifted from current investments to non- current
investments with the approval of Board of Directars of the company at cost or fair value, whichever is lower as on
closing of 31" March 201 2. This resulted into aggregate provision being made for diminution in value of investments

amountingto® 222 lac.
(e}  Refer Mote 24{A)(5) for valuation of individual investments.
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Note 13: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

TinlLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March2013 31"March2012
(A) CAPITALADVANCES 213.66 791
{Unsecured, Considered good)
SUB-TOTAL (A) 213.66 7.0
B) SECURITY DEPOSIT 390.65 414.75
{Unsecured, Considered good)
SUB-TOTAL (8) 390.65 a14.75
€ INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS (STANDARD ASSETS)
{5eefootnote below)
(i) Direct Lending 16,15,704.21 13,15,894.37
{ii) Pooled Municipality Debt Obligation (PMDO) Scheme 2.577.11 10.231.72
{iii} Refinancing Scheme - 4,16,800.00
{iv) Takeout financing Scheme 24640504 60,355.47
(< im INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS (SUB-STANDARD ASSETS)
iy Direct Lending 19,369.21 -
(i} Pooled Municipality Debt Obligation (PMDO) Scheme 1,000.54 :
SUB-TOTAL (C) 18,92,056.11 18,03,281.56
(D) OTHER LOANS AND ADVANCES
(i Secured, Considered good
Loantoemployeeas 99.12 B.E
(I Unsecured, Considered good
{i} Advance recoverable from employees 1.14 -
(i) Prepaid Expenses - 051
SUB-TOTAL (D) 100.26 8.69
TOTAL {A) + (B} +(C) +(D) 18,92,760.68 18,03,712.91
Footnote: - o
Sector Particulars/Security Amount (?inLac)
Power "Secured, Considered Good:
and Mortgage:First parri-passu charge by way of mortgage of
Other Borrower's allimmovable properties, present and future.” 9,85,269.77 6,86,707.09
Sectors | Hypothecation:First parri-passucharge by way of
hypothecation of all the Borrower's movable assets including
plantand machinery etc.
Pledging of shares minimum of 5 1%
Escrow account and all rightsand titles and interest of
: borrowersrankparri-passu____ _—
Roadand | “Secured, Considered Good: Right to receive annuity and toll
Airport collections of the project” 9.88,137.40 7,52,948.90
(FPF) Escrow account and all rights and titles and interest of borrower
rank pari passu
Hypothecation: First parri-passu charge by way of
hypothecation of all the Borrower's movable assets.
Refinance| Unsecured,Considered Good 4,41,800.00 4,16,80000
TOTAL# 24,15,207.17 18,56,455.99

The above includes ¥ 5,23,151.06 lac (as onon 317 March 2012 ¥ 53,174.43 |ac) being amount of loans due within a year and

overdue amount ason 31" March 201 3which are showninNote 17,
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Note 14: CURRENT INVESTMENTS

TinlLac
PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March 2013 31" March2012
| Number of Face Numberof Face
| Investmentin Bonds [Quoted] (Fully Paid) Bonds Value Bonds Value
| 7.15%REC 2012 - - - 150 Tidlac  1,500.00
TOTAL — 1,500.00
| Less: Provision for diminution in the value of Bonds - 17.02
' TOTALCURRENTINVESTMENTS - 1,482.98
Footnotes:
ta)  Aggregateamount of quoted investments:
Cost/ BookValue - 1,500.00
MarketValue - 1,482.98
ib}  Aggregate amountof unguoted investments - Cost/ BookValue 5 s
ic}  Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments i.e bonds - 17.02
id)  Refer Note 24 (A)(5] forvaluation of individual investments.
Note 15: TRADE RECEIVABLES
TinlLac
PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March 2013 321" March2012
Unsecured,considered good:
{Due notexceeding six months)
Processing fee recoverable 366.67 -
TOTAL 366.67 -
Note 16: CASH AND BANK BALANCES
TinLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March2013 31" March2012
{A) |CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS
{iy |Balanceswithbanks(5eefootnote below) 30,658.15 3,101.76
(i) |Cashonhand 0.34 032
(i) |Flexi Deposits with banks 4,300.70 3,387.20
SUB-TOTAL(A) 34,959.19 6,489.28
(B) |OTHERBANKBALANCES
{iy |Earmarked balanceswith banks for unclaimed interest on bonds 138 138
{ii) |Fixed Deposits with banks (Unencumbered) 3.55.950.18 4,08.338.84
{iii) |Fix asits with ban ncumber
{a) |Heldassecurity againstinterest Payment of Bonds 50,000.00 10,065.00
(b) |Earmarked forexpenses Related toWorld Bank Grant 11011 150.00
ic) |Pledged toavail overdraft facility from banks 5,36,873.75 3,92,864.00
SUB-TOTAL (B) 9,42,935.42 8,11.419.22
TOTAL (A}+(B) 9,77,894.61 8,17,908.50

Footnote: This includes T 27,244.20 Lac which was transferred from Escrow Accounts to the Public Issue Accounts of the
comipany and the company is construed to be beneficiary in respect of these funds. However, the company was provided
access tothese funds after creation of security for the Bondsin April 2013,
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Note 17: SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

finLac
5.Na. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March2013  31"March2012
{A) (I} | INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS (STANDARD ASSETS) (Seefootnotein
Note 13}
(] Direct lending 59,080.98 50,162.38
(i} | Pooled Municipality Debt Obligation (PMDO) Scheme o7 ar 427 46
i) | Refinancing Scheme 4,41,800.00 -
{iv] |Takeout financing Scheme 18,.313.07 2,584,59
{A} (11} INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS [SUB-STANDARD ASSETS)
{Seefootnotein Note 13)
{i) | Direct lending 312919 -
(i) Pooled Municipality Debt Obligation (PMDO) Scheme 120.35 -
SUB-TOTAL(A) 5,23,151.06 53,174.43
(B) | Loansandadvancestorelated parties (Unsecured, considered good)
(i} Expenses Incurred on behalf of subsidiary companies
i.e, IFCL Projects Lrd (T 45.14 lac) & 1IFCL Asset Management
| Company Ltd (2 71.01 lac) 116.15 1.37
(i Expensesincurred on behalf of associate company iLelrrigation &
Water Resources Finance Corporation 017 0.18
SUB-TOTAL(B) 116.32 1.55
(C) | Others
{1 Secured, considered good
Loan toemployees 2072 1.74
iy | Unsecured, considered good
iy | Security deposit 309.00 300.00
{ii} Advances recoverable from employees 4,74 577
fili) | Taxdeducted atsource - 5.54
{iv) | IncomeTax Recoverable 325.04 330.77
v} i Service Tax Recoverable {CENVAT) 034 2
{vi} | Prepaid Expenses 49.98 11.57
ivii) | Otheradvances 4.81 14.21
| susTorAL(C) 71553 669.60
| TOTAL [A)+(B}+(C) 5,23,982.91 53,845.58
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Note 18: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

TinmLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March2013 31" March2012
| (A) | Interestaccruedand dueonloansand advances 18,863.02 493637
SUB-TOTAL (A) 18,863.02 4,936.37

| (B) Interestaccrued butnotdue on:

i {i Fixed Deposits with Banks 4264295 5217590

| iy Bonds 207 98 27960

I {iii) Government Securities 204 BB 204 .88

! (iv) | Interest Rate Swaps (Met) E 3579

v} | Loans & Advances 8,954.10 5.248.72

! SUB-TOTAL(B) 52,009.91 57,944.89

[ (€) | Others 93.87 -

I SUB-TOTAL(C) 93.87 -

I TOTAL (A)+{B)+{C) 70,966.80 62,881.26
Note 19: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

TinLac
S.No. PARTICULARS Yearended Year ended
31"March 2013 31"March2012

| (A} | Interest
i) Interest on Loans and Advances under Direct Lending 1,92,277.88 1,40,697.27
(i) Interest on Loans under PMDO Scheme 1,219.87 83017
{iii} | Intereston Loans and Advances under Refinancing Scheme 34,22295 27,5B5.83

| {iv} | Intereston Loans and Advances underTakeout Financing Scheme 17,826.89 994.61

| v} | Penalinterest 625.97 42.84

I (wi) | Interestearmedon Certificate of Deposit - 2,131.89

I (wii}) | Intereston Government Securities 1,273.70 1,273.70

| {wiii} | InterestonBonds 599.93 67249

| (ix} | Intereston Deposits with Banks 76,938.85 78,403.13

I SUB-TOTAL({A) 3,24,986.04 2,52,631.93

' (B) | OtherFinancial Services
1] Upfront Fee 1,497.68 1,029.88
(i) | Processing fee 731.82 -

| {iii} | Pre-PaymentCharges 34.78 231.38

| {iv} | Commission Received 422 B9 104.12

| (v} Commitment Charges 478 9.50
ivl) | OtherCharges 224.00 35.87

| SUB-TOTAL (8) 2,915.95 1,41075

I TOTAL(A) +1(B) 3,27,901.99 2,54,042.68
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Note 20: OTHER INCOME
TinlLac
S.No. PARTICULARS Year ended Yearended
31" March 2013 31"March2012
Other Non-Operating Income
i) Gainon Swap Deals 550.74 -
(i) | Grants recelved 154.26 285.20
{iii) | Amounts/Provisions written back 114.10 100.18
liv) | Miscellaneous Income 2244 31.58
TOTAL 841.54 416.96
Note 21: FINANCE COSTS
TinlLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Yearanded Yearended
31" March2013 31"March2012
{A) | InterestExpense:
1] Interest on Bonds & Debentures 1.16,871.82 1,03,790.76
Less: Interest Saving on Bonds (82.82) (125.95)
fii} Interast on Bank Borrowings 3,049.11 3,746.33
fiii) | Intereston Bonds Application Money 71002 -
{iv) Interest on loan from NSSF 13,500.00 13,500.00
v} | Interestonloan from LIC 16,458.30 B.583.45
(wi} | Interestonloan from ADB 392903 1,853.69
(wli) | Interest dueto net settlement of swap transactions on ADB Loan 2055832 19.062.13
(wiii} | Interestonloan from IBRD{World Bank) 9246 61.21
{ix) | Interestduetonetsettlement of swap transactionson 52120 524.26
IBRD {Woarld Bank) Loan
(x) Interast on loan from KFW 758.59 691.32
(xi) | Interast due to net settlement of swap transactions on KFW Loan 523.44 566.27
. SUB-TOTAL(A) 17688247 15235347
(B} | OtherBorrowing Costs:
(i) Guarantee Fees to Govit.of India 5,500.08 4,845 86
fii} | Commitmentcharges 186.08 175.48
{iii) | BondServicing Expenses 130,54 124.65
{ivl | Bondlssue Expenses[See note 24{B}{18)(5]] 1,251 66 10.20
SUB-TOTAL(B) 7,068.36 5,156.19
(C} | Metloss onforeign currency transactions and translations 365235 79582
SUB-TOTAL(C) 3,652.25 795.82
TOTAL (A) + (B} +(C) 1,87,603.08 1,58,305.48
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Note 22: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

TinlLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Yearended Yearended
31"March 2013 31"March2012
i) Salaries and Wages 561.08 548.30
(i} Contribution to provident and other funds 71.22 100.08
(i} | StaffWelfare Expenses 186.70 193,24
TOTAL 819.00 Ba1.62
Note 23: OTHER EXPENSES
TinLac
S.No. PARTICULARS Yearended Yearended
31"March 2013 31" March 2012
(i) Power and Fuel 8.22 6.73
Lt} Lease Rent 720.42 84038
tiii} | Insurance 1.90 140
(iv) | Professional Fees 162.45 26077
v RatesandTaxes 40.96 56,31
(v} | Interestonincome tax 95.39 141.16
(vii) | Amortization of Premium Paid on non-current securities 24.20 2428
iwiii) | Provision for diminution in the value of Investments - 97.21
| {lx) | Netlosson foreign currency transactions and translations 554.32 466,57
() Loan Amount Written Off 75.81 -
{xi} | Establishrmentand Other Expenses [Seenote 24(B)(18)] B852.31 660.47
TOTAL 2,535.98 2,555.28
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Note 24: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

(A)
1.

3.

STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2013
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Financial accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis with accrual concept and in accordance with
accounting policies and practices consistently followed unless otherwise stated,

RECOGNITION OF INCOME /EXPENDITURE

2.1. Upfrontfeeincomeonloans granted is considered as income on accrual basis in cases where loan documents
have been signed on allocated amount. However, Upfront fee (Non-refundable) received from project
companies after in-principle sanction of loans to prospective borrowers is considered as income on realization
basis.

Further, upfront fee expenses in respect of loans sanctioned to the company is considered as expense on
accrual basis, where loan documents have been executed.

2.2.  Commitment charges onloanstaken by the company are accounted for asexpense when draw down of loan s
less than sanctioned amount of loan as per the Loanagreement.

23, Recoveriesin borrower's accounts are appropriated as per theloan agreements.
24, Dividend is accounted on an accrual basis when right to receive the dividend is established.

25. Income from investmentin schemes of growth of mutual funds is accounted for on the basis of actual instance
of sale.

26, Priorperiod income/ expense of T5000/- or below is charged to their regular heads of account,

2.7.  Expenditure incurred in raising of bonds is charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the year of allotment
of bonds.

28. Expenses incurred under Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) policy during the financial year is charged to
revenue and equivalent ameunt is transferred from Corporate Secial Responsibility Reserve and transferred
the balance to statement of profit & loss.

LOAN ASSETS

The company has adopted norms for income-recognition, asset classification and provisioning applicable to Non

- Banking Financial Companies-Infrastructure Finance Company (NBFC-IFC) as per Non-Banking Financial (Non

- Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007.The salient features
ofthese norms are as under:

3.1  IncomeRecognition

a. Interestisrecognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate
applicable,

b, Income including interest/discount or any other charges on Non-PerformingAssets (NPA) is recognized
only when it is actually realized. Any such income recognized before the asset became non-performing
and remaining unrealized is reversed.

32 "Non-Performing Asset”means:
a.  Anassetinrespectof which interest has remained overdue for a periad of six months or more,

b,  Aterm loan inclusive of unpaid interest, when the installment is overdue for a period of six months or
more oron which interest amount remained overdue for a period of six manths or more,

33  AssetClassification
Alladvancesare classified as:-

i, "Standard assets"means the assetin respect of which, no default in repayment of principal or payment of
interest is perceived and which does not disclose any problem nor carry more than normal risk attached

tothe business,
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2.5

b.  "Sub-standard assets"means an asset which has been classified as non-performing asset for a period not
exceeding 18 months.

E, "Doubtful asset” means a term loan or any other asset which remains sub-standard asset for a period of
exceeding 18 months.

. "Loss Asset"means:

(i} anassetwhich has been identified as loss asset by the company or its internal or external auditor to
the extentit is not written off by the company.

(i} anasset which is adversely affected by a potential threat of non-recoverability due to either erosion
in the value of security or non-availability of security or due to any fraudulent act or omission on the
partof the borrower.

Provisioning

il  Standard Assets: General Provision is made at 0.25% of outstanding amount of loans, including on
interest accrued but not due atthe yearend.

(il Sub-standard assets-A general provision of 10 percent of total outstanding amount is made.
{iii) Doubtful assets:-

{a) 100 percent provision to the extent to which the advanceis not coverad by the realizable value of the
security tawhich the company has a valid recourse is made,

{b) Inaddition to item (a) above, depending upon the period for which the asset has remained doubtful,
provision to the extent of 20 percent to 50 percent of secured portion i.e.estimated realizable value
of the outstanding is made on the following basis:

Period for which the asset has been considered as doubtful | Percentage of provision
Up to one year [ nil] :
Onetothree years | 30
More than three years | 50

(iv) Loss Assets

The entire asset is written off, if the assets are permitted to remain in the books for any reason, 100
percent of the out standing Is provided for.

Restructured loan Assets

Loans are subjected to restructuring and/or rescheduling and/or renegotiation of terms under the following
stages:

ia)  before commencement of commercial production;

(b} after commencement of commercial production but before the asset has been classified as
sub-standard;

ic)  aftercommencement of commercial praduction and the asset has been classified as sub-standard,

Treatment of restructured loans

{i} Standardloan:The rescheduling or restructuring or renegotiation of the installments of principal alone,
at any of the aforesaid first two stages does not cause a standard asset to be re-classified in the sub-
standard category,ifthe project is re-examined and found to be viable by the Board of Directors.

Provided that rescheduling or renegotiation or restructuring of interest element at any of the foregoing
first two stages does not cause an asset to be downgraded to sub-standard category subject to the
condition that the amount of interest foregone, if any, on account of adjustment in the element of
interest, is either written off or 100 percent provision is made there against.

(ii) Sub-standardasset: A sub-standard asset continues to remain in the same category in case of
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4.

5.

restructuring or rescheduling or renegatiation of the installments of principal until the expiry of one year
and the amount of interest foregone, If any, on account of adjustment, including adjustment by way of
write off of the past interest dues,in the element of interest, is written off or 100 percent provision made
there against.

(lil) Adjustment of interest: Where rescheduling or renegotiation or restructuring involves a reduction in
the rate of interest, the interest adjustrent is computed by taking the difference between the rate of
interest as currently applicable to infrastructure loan (as adjusted for the risk rating applicable to the
borrower) and the reduced rate and aggregating the present value [discounted at the rate currently
applicable to infrastructure loan, adjusted for risk enhancement) of the future interest payable so
stipulated in the restructuring or rescheduling or renegotiation proposal.

(iv) Where the assetis partly secured, a provision to the extent of shortfall in the security available, is made
while restructuring and/ or rescheduling and/ or renegotiation of the loans, apart from the provision
reguired on present value basis and as per prudential norms,

In line with the Reserve bank of India decision vide letter DBOD.BPBC. No 83/08.12.014/2012-13 dated
18" March 2013 addressed to commercial banks regarding prudential norms on advances to
Infrastructure Sector,in case of PPP projects, the debts due to the company are considered as secured to
the extent assured by the project authority in terms of the Concession Agreement, subject to (a) User
charges/toll/tariff payments are kept in an escrow account where senior lenders have priority over
withdrawals by the concessionaire; (b} There is sufficient risk mitigation, such as pre-determined
increase in user charges or increase in concession period, in case project revenues are lower than
anticipated; (c) The lenders have a right of substitution in case of concessionaire default; (d) The lenders
hawve aright tatrigger termination in case of default in debt service;and (&) Upon termination, the Project
Authority has an obligation of {i}) compulsory buy-out and (i) repayment of debt due in a

pre-determined manner.

TAXES ONINCOME

41  Taxonincome for the current period s determined on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961, and based on expected outcome of
assessments/appeals and on the basis of changes adopted by the company in accounting policies &
estimates,

42  Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for
the period, and guantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or subsequently enacted as on the Balance
Sheetdate.

4.3 Deferred tax assets are recognized and reassessed at each reporting date and carried forward to the extent
that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized,

INVESTMENTS

51 Mon- I n

a. Unguoted Investrnents: Equity shares in subsidiary companies, associate company and Venture Capital Units
are carried at cost.

b, Unquoted investments in Government securities: Each scrip is carried at its acquisition cost or at amortized
cost.ifacguired at a premium over the face value. Any premium on acquisition is amortized over the remaining
maturity period of the security on constant yield basis.

c, Cuoted Bonds: Bonds are carried at acquisition cost or lower of book value or market/ fair value in case of inter
class transfer, The excess aver face value from date of acquisition/ transfer is amortized over the remaining
maturity period of the security on constant yield basis.

5.2 Current Investments

a. Quoted Bonds - Each scrip is revalued at the market price or fair value based on yield to maturity method and
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anly the net depreciation is provided for and net appreciation, if any, is ignored.

b. Mutual Funds—valued at lower of cost or net asset value at the year end.

. Certificate of deposits - valued at cost. The difference between face value and cost is recognized as income
over the remaining maturity period of certificate of deposit on constant yield basisand is added to the value of
certificate of deposit.

53 Inter- Class Transfer of investments
The inter-class transfer, if warranted is effected with approval of the Board and in such case investments is
transferred scripwise from current to nan- current at book value ar market/ fair value, whichever islower,

FOREIGN EXCHANGETRANSACTIONS

6.1.  Expenses and income in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transactions.

6.2  The following balances are translated in Indian currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
closure of accounts:

a. Foreign Currency Loan liability to the extent not hedged, and Loan granted in foreign currency.

b. Incormes or Expenses accrued but not due on foreign currency loans granted and foreign currency borrowings
respectively.

[ Contingent Liability in respect of Letter of Creditissued in foreign currency.

6.3(a) Foreign Currency Loan liability, to the extent hedged is translated in Indian currency at the
spot exchange rates prevailing on the date of hedging transactions,

(k) The difference inforeign currency loan amount translated at spot exchange rate prevailing on time of hedging
and on the date of repayment of loanis recognized as gain or loss inthe year of repayment.

64  The actual/translation gain/loss (net) on foreign currency loan assets, liabilities and income &expenditure
accrued/accrued butnot due are credited/charged to the statement of profitand loss.

ACCO ING FOR ENUE GRAN

7.1, Grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 'other income’ on a systematic basis over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate provided
there is reasonable assurance of compliance of the terms attached with the sanction and of realization of
amount of grants.

7.2, Grantsreceived in respect of expenditure already incurred in pricr periods are recognized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss in the year of approval of grant.

7.3. Theunspentamountof grant at the year end, if any,is shown under Current Liabilities.

IXED A D ECIATION

8.1,  Fixedassetsare carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

8.2.  Thegross value of fixed assets is reduced by amount of grants received for acquiring these assets.The grant s
thus recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass over the useful life of a depreciable asset by way of a
reduced depreciation charge,

8.3. Theadditionstofixed assets are capitalized on the approval of bills/invoices.

84. Depreciation of fixed assets is provided at the rates and manner provided in Schedule XIV of the Companies
Act, 1956 following written down value method. Depreciation on individual assets having cost ¥ 5000/-or less
ischarged at 100% as prescribed in the aforesaid schedule.

85  Permanentimprovementin leasehold premises is depreciated over the remaining lease term or its useful life,

whichawver is shaorter,
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10.

11.

12

B6 An Intangible Asset is recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the
assets will flow tothe company. These assets are amortized over a period of 4 years,

RETIR! NT IT

9.1. The contribution towards Provident Fund deducted from remuneration of employees and employer
contribution thereon is deposited with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFO).

9.2,  The employee benefits obligations i.e, leave encasement, sick leave and leave travel concession, has been
provided for the period up to date of reporting on the actuarial valuation of same,

93,  Gratuity has been provided on the basis of amount payable to LIC on Group Gratuity Scheme through trust in
the name of IFCL Employees Group Gratuity Fund,

ACCOUNTING FOR OPERATING LEASES

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

DERIVATIVE ACCOUNTING

11.1  Wherever the company has entered into forward contract or an instrument ie, in substance of a forward
exchange contract, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate on the date of forward

exchange contractis recognized asincome or expenses over the life of the contract as per AS-11.

11.2, Hedging taken on foreign currency loans is adjusted on FIFQ basis after adjusting for the Loans given in
foreign currency (i.e.natural hedge).

11.3. Theaccounting of the derivative transactionsisas under:-

a.  Interest Rate Swap which hedges interest bearing assets or liability is accounted for like the hedge of the
assetor liability.

b. Theswapthatis accounted for like a hedge is accounted for on accrual basis except the swap designated
with an asset or liability that is carried at market value or lower of cost or market value in the financial
statements, In that case the swap is marked to market with the resulting gain or loss recorded as an
adjustment to the market value of designated asset or liability.

114  The surplus or deficit on account of difference in spot exchange rate at the inception of forward contract and
repayment of underlying foreign currency loan cbligation recovered from or paid to counter party
respectively as per the hedging contractis recognized as gain or loss at the time of repayment of such loan,

11.5. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts including interest rate

swapsisrecognized asincome oras expense for the year,

116, Inrespect of interest rate swap transactions in JPY Yen entered by the company, the company is providing
mark to market loss as on Balance Sheet Date,

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A provision is made when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probahble that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made
based on technical valuation and past experience. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. Mo provision
is made for liabilities arising from transactions and events whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with
reasonable certainties. Such contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the note of contingent
liability on the basis of judgment of the management/independent expert. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.
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24.(B) OTHERNOTESTOTHE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS FORYEARENDED 317" MARCH 2013

Tinlac
Asat Asat
31"March 2013 31"March 2012
1. (8 | Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account (net of advances) 34144 Nil
(b} | Estimated amount of contracts under Corporate Sociaf
Responsibility [C5R) remaining to be executed (net of advances) 144.68 il
€} | Undertaking to subscribe equity share capital of following
companies as subscriber to their Memorandum of Association
(i) NFCLProjectsLtd.registered on 147 February 2012
{1 lac equity shares of T 10each) Mil 10.00
(i) IIFCLAsset M&nagement Company Ltd.registered on
28" March 20121 lac equity shares of 2 10 each) Nil 10.00
{d)| Uncalled liability on account of capital commitment in respect o
of Venture Capital Units of IDFC Project Equity Domestic
Investors Trustll 2,90093 395541
{e}| Letterof Comfortforissue of Letter of Credit (LC) 1548817 30,032.14

The company hasissued letters of comfort to respective lead banks in the consartium of lenders for issuing LC on
behalf of respective borrowers for subsequently releasing the amount of LC towards disbursement of
sanctioned loan assistance.

(f] | In respect of cess on turnover or gross receipt of company w's 4414 of Companies Act, 1956, to be levied @ not
less than 0.005% and not more than 0.1% on the value of the annual turnover or gross receipt whichever is higher,
no provision has been made, as the cess rate & the date from which itis applicable has not been notified so far by
the Govt. Though no such notification has been issued <o far, the Company may have to pay cess minimum of
¥50.84 lac and maximum of T 1,016.79 lac, if levied from the financial year 2005-06 being the year in which
company was incarporated.

(@) Theguar;nteedncumhentfur providing partial credit enhancement guarantee of 24% of proposed bond issug of |
project company amounting to a maximum of ¥ 320 crore with GMR Jadcherla Expressway Limited under Credit
Enhancement Scheme by IIFCL, was executed on 16" January, 2013.However, the credit enhancement obligation
would commence from the date of issue of bonds which are yet to be issued.

2. (a)Expenditure inforeign currency during the financlal period on account of interest and other matters:

TinLac
PARTICULARS ForYear Ended | ForYear Ended
31"March2013 31"March2012
Expenditure in Foreign Currencies (Actual outgo) |
- Intereston borrowings 4,808.52 1,983.15
- Commitment Charges 174.76 | 175.47
| = ForeignTraveling 23.45 | 28.26
| = OtherExpenses 46,91 | 64.99
TOTAL 505364 | 2,251.87
(b} Earningsin foreign currency (Actual Receipt excluding interest received under IRS derivative contracts):
TinlLac
PARTICULARS ForYear Ended ForYear Ended
31"March2013 | 31"March2012
|- Interest 20391 | 162.85
| - Grants Received 113.00 | 212.69
|- Dividend Received 1662750 | -
TOTAL 16,944.41 ! 375.54
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B)

The Company’s main business is to provide finance! refinance for Infrastructure Projects and the company does not
have more than one reportable segment in terms of Accounting Standard 17 issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
{i) Disclosures of Related Parties and related party transactions:
A) Man ial uneration and rel isclosure
i} Key Managerial Personnel
ShriS.K.Goel - Chairman and Managing Director
(Tenure from 24° Juna 2010)
Shri Harsh Kumar Bhanwala - Executive Director
(Tenure from 257 October 2012}
il Whaolly owned Subsidiary Companies:  (a) Indialnfrastructure Finance Company [UK) Limited
{b) WFCL Projects Ltd.and
(c) NFCL Asset Management Company Ltd.
i) Associate Companies: al Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation
Limited (DMICDC)
(Company held 41 lac equity shares of T 10 each as on 31" March 2013, which
comprised 41% of equity shares capital of DMICDC as on that date.)
The Board of Directors of DMICDC in its meeting held on 28" March 2013 has
recommended the preferential allotment of 900 lac Equity Shares of T 10/- each at
pat, in one or more tranches, aggregating to ¥ 9,000 lac on the terms & conditions of
allatment to the Government of India (441 lac Equity Shares of T 10/~ each at par
aggregating to ¥ 4,410 lac), Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC) (260 lac
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-each at par aggregating to ¥ 2,600 lac) and Housing and Urban
Development Corporation Limited {HUDCO) (199 lac Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-each at
par aggregating to T 1,990 lac) followed which the proposal is also authorized in
Extra-ordinary General meeting of DMICDC held on 28th March 2013. Consequent
upon allotment of these equity shares, holding of IFCL in equity share capital of
DMICDC would reduce to 4.1% ie. 41 lac Equity Shares of ¥ 10/ each at par
aggregating to ¥ 441 lac,
(b} Irrigation and Water Resources Finance Corporation Limited (IWRFCL) (Chairman
and Managing Director of the company also holds additional charge as Chairman &
Managing Director of WRFCLw.ef 22™ March 2012)

Transactions during the year ended 31" March 2013 (Previousyearended 31" March, 2012) with related parties:

| 5.No.
al

. _Particulars | Amount
Managerial Remuneration

(i} Shri5.K.Goel | Chairmanand Managing Director) |

Remuneration | 34,51 lac(¥32.27 lac during yearended 31" March 2012)

Perquisites 21.50lac (¥ 1.61 lac during yearended 31" March 2012)

Provision for Performance linked incentive ¥11.85 lacincludes? 1.85 lac for previousyear (¥8.15 lac
duringyearended 31" March 2012)

Leave encashment, PF & Gratuity | ¥5.43lac(¥3.73 laclacduring yearended 317 March 2012)

{ii) ShriHarsh KumarBhanwala
~ (Executive Director)

Remuneration 28,92 lac (Nil during yearended 31" March 2012)

Perquisites | T3 ac(Milduring yearended 31" March 2012)

Provision for Performance linked incentive | ¥3.38lac (Nilduring yearended 31" March 2012)

Leave encashrent, PF & Gratuity | T1.84lac(Milduring yearended 31" March 2012)

(iii) ShriPradeep Kumar
(Ex Chief Executive Oficer)

Remuneration Mil (% 12.99 lac during year ended 317 March 2012)

Perquisites Nil (¥ 0.19 lac during yearended 31" March 2012)

Provision for Performance linked incentive | T3.12ac for previousyear (¥ 5.00 lac during yearended
31" March 2012)

Leave encasement & Pension | Nil{¥6.18lacduring yearended 31" March2012)
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b) | Investmentinequityshares

i IIFCL Projects Ltd. 50.00 lac{ Nil during year ended 31" March 2012)

ii) IIFCL Asset Managerment Company Ltd #1,250.00 lac (Nil during year ended 31" March 2012)

i) Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor
Development Corporation Limited (DMICDC) | Nil (¥411.03 lacduring year ended 31" March 2012)

c) | Rentreceived/recoverablefrom subsidiaries/associate companies:

i IIFCL Projects Ltd. T30.89 lac (Nil during year ended 31" March2012)
ii) IIFCL Asset Management Company Ltd ¥23.63 lac (Nil during year ended 31" March 2012)
i) IrigationandWaterResources | |
Finance Corporation Limited 40,23 lac (¥Nil during yearended 31° March 2012}

{d)| Expensesrecovered/recoverablefrom associate companies:
il Irrigation andWater Resources

Finance Corporation Limited 19,59 lac (¥0,18 lac during yearended 31" March 2012)

(&) | Amounts recovered/recoverable from subsidiaries:
i) IIFCL Prajects Ltd. 215.01 lac (21.06 lac during year ended 31" March 2012)
ii) IFCL Asset Management Company Ltd 247.07 lac (10,31 lac during yearended 31" March 2012)

C}  Balancesoutstanding

TinLac
5. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
Mo. 31stMarch2013 31stMarch2012
A) Remuneration & other benefits
1 I{!!Manqg_lrial_l‘nmn _ _ -
Provision for Performance Linked Incentive to Whole time Directors 35.38 33.15
Leave Encasement (provision) 13.26 10.75
Gratuity (provision) A7B 320
Provident fund 032 2952
Pension and Leave Encasement contribution payable - 0.54
B) Investment in equity shares:
i) ‘Wholly owned subsidiaries:
[ (@l  WFC(UK)Led, 23,394.80 23,394.80
(b}  IIFCL ProjectsLtd. 50.00 Mill
fe)  IIFCL Asset Management Company Ltd 1,250,00 Mil
1) | Associate |
Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor
Development Corporation Limited (DMICDC)® 411.03 411.03
= Amount /Rent recoverable from subsidiaries/ associate
ta) WFCLProjectsLtd. 45,14 1.06
b} NFCL Asset Management Company Ltd 710 0.3
{c) Irrigation and Water Resources Finance Corporation Limited 017 018

*Includes expenses capitalized ¥ 1.03 lac.

5. Investment in Venture Capital Units

During the year ended 31" March 2013, the company has Invested T 105448 lac (¥ 1,753.59 lac during year ended
31" March 2012} inVenture Capital Units of IDFC Project Equity Domestic Investors Trust Il promoted by the company along-
with IDFC, Citibank (cumulative amount of investment by the company is T 7099.07lac). Qut of total commitment of
T.1,00,000 lac, the company has contributed as investor in the venture and does not have joint control. Since there is no
distributable profit in the fund, no income is accounted for, in the books of accounts in relation to such investments.
However, the company has received during the current yearasumof ¥ 522.10 lac (¥ 172 lac during year ended 317 March
2012) including tax paid T 33.14 lac (T 12.32 lac during year ended 31" March 2012) in respect of redemption of venture
capital units.




6. {a) Disclosure under Accounting Standard 29 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(AS-29)"
TinLac
PARTICULARS FortheYearEnded FortheYearEnded
31" March2013 31"March 2012
(i) Income Tax (Net)
Opening Balance 120.09 56529
Addition during the period 39,902.45 24,658.30
Excess Provision written back during the period - 456.44
Amount paid/adjusted during the period 39,102.84 24,687.06
Closing Balance 919.70 120,09

[ {il)  InterestonIncomeTax
OpeningBalance 4537 8300
Addition during the period 95.39 45.37
Excess Provision written back during the period 39.06 44,70
Amount paid/ adjusted during the period 10.38 38.30
Closing Balance 91.38 4537

{ilil WageRevision|Seenote24(B)(15))

' Opening Balance . 7256
Addition during the period 3729 135.90
Amount Paid/ Transterred tocurrent liabilities z 208.46
Closing Balance i7.29 -

| {iv)  LeaveFare Concession
Opening Balance 8.44 5.58
Addition during the period 26.67 1847
Amount paid/adjusted during the period 26.21 1561
Closing Balance ' 8.90 .44

[ iw)  LeaveEncasement

| Opening Balance 33.00 17.69
Additionduring the period 41.57 23.50
Amount paid/adjusted during the period 1.36 B.19
Closing Balance 67.21 33.00

(vi) SickLeave
Opening Balance 9.89 6.17
Addition during the period 1557 3.2
Amount paid/adjusted during the period - -
Closing Balance 2540 9.89
| (vii} PerformanceLinked Incentive to Whole Time Directors
Opening Balance 3315 20,00
Addition during the period 1835 13.15
Amount paid/adjusted during the pariod B -
Closing Balance 51.50 33.15
| {wiii) MarkedtoMarketLosses onDerivatives
Opening Balance 6,654.76 5,199.06
Addition during the period (974.01) 1.455.70
Amount paid/adjusted during the period - -
Closing Balance 5,680.75 6,654.76
| (ix)  ContingentProvision for Standard Assets
Ophniry Oalatcs 4,666.60 s
Addition during the period 1,381.91 4,666.60
| ClosingBalance 604851 4,666.60
(x}  Provision for Sub-standard Assets

| Opening Balance - .
Addition during the period 2,361.92 .
Closing Balance 2,361.92 .
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{xil ProvisionforStandard Restructured Loan Assets
Crpening Balance - -
Addition during the period 176,94 -
| Clusmg Balance 176,94 - |

(b} Disclosure under Acmrrting Standard 15 I,rmmud EDDSI bt Empluyn Benefits”(A5-15)
1.1) Inrespect of employees of the company based on actuarial valuation of iability
i) Expensas recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

TinlLac
PARTICULARS Leave Leave Sickleave
encashment concession
| Current Service Cost 21.95 459 10.40
Interest caston benefit abligation 1.78 0.68 0.79
Expectedreturnon planassets 1 NA | ~NA. i MNA.
Met actuanat{gam}fbnsﬁ rev:n-gmzedm thez,rear 1521 21.39 4.33
| Expenses recnghlﬁ in Statement of Profit and Loss 3904 26,65 15.52
~ N.A.denotes notavailable during the period
it} The amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
TinlLac
PARTICULARS Leave Leave Sickleave
encashment concession
Presentvalue of obligationasat31/03/2013 (i) 53.94 890 2540
Fair value of plan assets as at 31/03/2013 (ji) Nil Nil Mil
Difference (i} - i) 153.94) (8.90) (25.40)
Met Asset/(Liability] recognized in the Balance Sheet 153.94) (8.90) (25.40)
iii) Change inthe PresentValue of the defined benefit abligation
TinlLac
PARTICULARS Leave Leave Sickleave
encashment concession
Presentvalue of obligationasat 01.04.2012 22.26 844 9.89
Interest Cost 1.78 0.68 0.79
Current Service Cost [ nes | ase 1040
Benefits paid {7.36) (26.19) -
Met actuarial {gain)/loss onobligation 151 21.39 4.33
. Present value of the defined benefit obligation asat 31,/03/201 3 53.94 B0 2540

M.A.denotes not available,

iv]  The actuarial valuation of liability as on 31" March 2013 in respect of defined retirement and other benefits were
made based on following assumptions:

Maortality rate # IC [ 1994-96)
Withdrawal rate # Up to 30 years 3%
31 yearto44 years 2%
Abovead years 1%
| Discountrate (p.a.) B.00%
' | Salary escalation § 6%

it LIC has determined liability towards contribution of gratuity scheme of lIFCL employees considering withdrawal rate of
1% to 3% depending on age, discount rate of 8% p.a.and salary escalation of 6% p.a.( previous year 6% p.a.)
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1.2} Inrespect of Chairman & Managing Director & Executive Director.:

Tinlac
Gratuity Leave Leave fare
_encashment | concession
Expenses recognizedin Statement of Profit and Loss 0.58 252 -
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 3.78 13.26 -

7. Intermsof Accounting Standard 20 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Earning per share (Basic

& Diluted) is worked out asunder;

Tinlac
Forthe Yearended Forthe Yearended
31.03.13 31.03.13

Particulars Amount Shares Amount Shares

Tinlac Tinlac
NominalValue of share (T) 10/- 10/-
Number of Equity Share (No.in lac) 29,000 25,000
MNet Profit (after tax) 1,04,699.44 58,582.76
Earning Per Share(Mot Annualized) (¥) 379 2.84
EPS for the current period has been calculated on weighted average number of equity shares of 27,641.10 lac {Previous

period 20,642.08lac)

8  a. Interms of Accounting Standard -22 an “Accounting for Taxes on Income| income tax expense for the current
period is determined on the basis of taxable income and the tax credit computed in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961 and based on expected outcome of assessments / appeals and also on the
basis of changes adopted by the company in Accounting estimates during the current financial year having effect
ondeferred tax asset/liability.

Deferred tax liability or asset is recognized on timing differences which is reversible between the accounting
income and the taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and provisions, enacted or
subsequently enacted as on balance sheetdate.

Deferrad tax assets if any, are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized,

b. During the year, the company has created net deferred tax liability of ¥ 6,828 40 lac (net deferred tax liability of
13,628.80 lac created during yearended 31" March 2012).

9. Based on information available with the company, there are no suppliersfservice providers who are registered as
Micra, Small and Medium undertakings under“The Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006"
as on 31" March, 2013. Hence the company has no outstanding liability towards Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprizes,

10 Fixed assets possessed by the company are treated as ‘Corporate Assets’ and not ‘Cash Generating Units’ as
defined by Accounting Standard-28 on "Impairment of Assets? As on 317 March, 2013, there were no events or
change in circumstances, which indicate any impairment in the assets.

11. Derivative Transactions

a) During the year 2007-08, the company had entered into two interest rate swap (IRS) transactions of notional
principal amounts of T 5000 lac each (equivalent to notional principal of JPY 27,323.62 lac) which will mature on
19" December 2022. According to these IRS deals, the company will pay interest @ 7.46% p.a. on JPY notional
amount iwherein coupon payments remains fixed for 5 years at the rate of 1JPY= T 0.3658 in one deal and UPY=
7 0.3662 in second deal) and receive interest @ 8.82% pa.on ¥ notional principal amounts. The company has
provided for entire Mark-to-market loss, as computed by the counter party banksand confirmed by other valuer,
on the above swap transactions amounting to ¥ 5,680.75 lac as at 31" March 2013 (T 6,654.76 lac as at 31" March
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2012) which includes profit by way of write back of provision of ¥ 974.01 lac for the vear ended 31" March 2013
{loss of 1,455.701ac for yearended 31" March 2012)

b} The company has undertaken composite contracts i.e. Interest Rate Swap cum forward exchange contracts to
hedge risks relating to floating interest rates as well as foreign exchange fluctuations on foreign currency
borrowings from multilateral institutions asunder.

Institution

Amount of composite contracts
i.e.Interest Rate Swap cum forward
exchange contracts#

Asian Development Bank (ADB)

3" March2013
{31 March 2012}

| 31" March 2013
(31" March 2012)

USD8,002.74 lac
(USD 7,572.87 lac)

73,69,711.27lac
(¥ 347,238.72lac)

_Kredhanﬂaltl_ﬁrﬂiederau!bau (KFW)

31° March 2013
(31" March 2012)

Euro 254,74 lacs
(Euro 254.74 lacs)

31" March213 71556294 lac
_ (31 “March 2012) {¥15,562 24lac)
IBRD World Bank
i 31" March2013 LISD 194.88 lac
i (31" March2012) (UsD 194,88 lac)
| 31" March2013 ¥B,657.36lac

| (31" March2012)

|T8,657.36lac)

As perthe Mark-to-Market (M2M) valuations furnished by the counter party banks and othervaluer on the above composite
contracts, the net M2M gain as on 31" March 2013 amounts ta 7 70,689.36 lac (Gross gain of ¥ 70,689.36 lac less Gross
loss Mil) and M2M gain as on 317 March 2012 amounted to T 37,926 83 lac (Gross gain of T 38,082.87 lac less Gross loss
T156.04 lac).

The M2M losses,if any,on Interest Rate Swaps {IRS) is not being accounted for in the books of accounts as the underlying
liability designated with swap is also not carried at lower of cost or market value in the financial statements and the M2M
loss relating only to IRS cannot be computed separately and provided for as required by the announcement of ICAl on
‘Accounting for Derivatives”as the company had entered into composite contracts for hedging and the interest payable to
counter-parties also includes amount of premium, if any, which has not been mentioned/ identified separately in the
compaosite contracts.

During the financial year ended 31" March 201 2, the company has also sought the opinion of Expert Advisory Committee of
the Institute of Chartered accountant of India to advice on the correct accounting treatment to be followed by the company
in this regard which is awaited.
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i Unhedged position of foreign currency loansis as under:

Amount of compaosite contracts
i.e.Interest Rate Swap cum forward
exchange contracts#

Asian Development Bank (ADB)

31" March2013 USD 2,464.64 lac

(31" March2012) (USD954.28 lac)

31" March2013 ¥1,34,049.85 lac

(31" March 2012) {T48,817.80lac)

Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau (KFW)

31" March2013 Euro 4038 lac

(31" March 2012) {Eure 27.75 lac)

31" March2013 T 280847 lac

(31" March 2012) (% 1,896.48lac)
I_IBRD'HI:II:I Bank

31" March2013 USD 34.47 lac

(31" March2012) (USD 34.47 lac)

31" March2013 T1,875.06lac
(31" March2012) (¥1.,763.681 lac)

# Unhedged amount of foreign currency loan from ADB includes USD 163.33 lac i.e ¥ 8,883.38 lac [USD 179.98 lac ie

79,207.15 lac as on 31" March 2012) being foreign currency loan given to a borrower in India to the extent of which risk of
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuationis hedged naturally.

12, Creation of Bond Redemption Reserve

a) In respect of privately placed bonds: Since the company is notified as Public financial institution within the
meaning of Section 4A of Companies Act 1956 vide notification no 5.0.143(E)(F.ND.3/5/2008) Dated 14" January
2009 of Central Government, it is not required to create Bond Redemption Reserve in respect of private placed
bonds as per circular no 04/2013 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India dated 11" February
2013,

bl In respect of publicly placed bonds: The company issued 31563 lac (Previous year 909 lac) Long Term
Infrastructure Bonds of the face value of 21000 each aggregating ¥ 3,15,631.89 lac during the financial year ended
31" March 2013 (¥ 9.096.18 lac during the financial year ended 31" March 2012) through publicissue.

As per the circular no 04/2013 dated 11" February 2013 issued by Ministry of Company Affairs, Government of
India requiring the financial institution within the meaning of section 4A of the Companies Act, 1956 to create
Debenture Redemption Reserve equal to 25% of the value of debentures issued through public issue,
the company has created bond redemption reserve of T1,856.02 lac up to 31" March 2013 T882.90 lac up to
31"March 2012 as percircular no.%/2002 dated 18" April 2002),

13, As per the disclosure requirements contained in the listing agreement with Stock exchange, it is stated that the
company has not given any loans and advances in the nature of loans to Individuals, associates and to firms/
companies in which directors are interested except for advances to Subsidiary, Associates shown in note
24(B)4)(C) . Further, no loan (borrower) has made any investment in the shares of the company or its subsidiary.
However, the company has given term loans amounting to ¥ 194540306 lac as on 31" March 2013
[ ¥14,39,655.99 lacason 31" March 201 2 which are repayable beyond seven years).

14, As per Accounting Standard-11 (AS-11) i.e. The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates; foreign currency
|oan taken (to the extent hedged) and outstanding forward exchange contracts should be restated at the
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date and differences should be taken to statement of profit and loss
whareas the company has restated the above loans at the date of inception of the forward cantact and difference
taken to statement of profit and loss as stated in Accounting Policy mentioned at note 24(A)(6.3)(a).In view of the
above, loan liability and foreign currency receivable account as on 31" March 2013 would have been higher by
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15,

16.

17.

{a

b

69,646.50 lac (higher by T 43,320.36 lac as on 31" March, 2012}, However, there would be no impact on the profit
for the year as loss on account of increase in foreign currency borrowings due to adverse fluctuation in foreign
currency exchange rate is fully offset due to gain on principal amount of borrowings hedged by the company (see
note 24 (A) (6.3) (b))

The pay revision of the employees of the company is due w.ef, 1" November 2012, Pending revision of pay, a
provision of ¥ 37.29 lac has been made for the period 1" November 2012 to 31 March 2013 on estimated basis
taking base of 24% increase in last revision made fram 17 November 2007 for next 5 years.

As per the Office Memorandum of Government of India dated 23" April, 2007, the company was regulated directly
by the Government of India and under a “sui-generis” regulatory regime. Accordingly, an Oversight Committes
was constituted by the Government of India. Consequent upon Union Cabinet approval in fts meeting held on
13" October 2011 to bring the Company under regulatory oversight of Reserve Bank of India by registering it as an
Mon-Banking Finance Company-Infrastructure Finance Company (NBFC-IFC) conveyed by Department of
Financial Services, Ministry of Finance vide letter date 24" October 2011, the company is required to initiate the
process of registering it as an NBFC-IFC. Meanwhile, Department of Financial Services vide letter dated
23" lanuary 2012 has requested the Reserve Bank of India to create a special category of NBFC- IFC which are
wholly owned by Government and whose borrowings are backed by sovereign guarantee and such NBFCs be
subjected to far lower Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) than normal NBFC. In this regard, Department
of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance, Government of India vide ermail dated 9° October 2012 has informed
that Reserve Bank of India is not in favour of creation of separate category of NBFC based on ownership.
Accardingly, IFCL has made request to Reserve Bank of India for registration as NBFC- IFC on 7 March 2013,
Information/decuments sought by vide letter dated 15" March 2013 has been furnished by the company and the
matteris pending.

Prudential norms issued by RBI for NBFC-IFC do not apply to Company, being a Government owned company.On
registration as an NBFC-IFC, the company, being a Govt. owned company, would be required to prepare a
roadmap for compliance with various elements of the NBFC Regulations in consultation with the Government
and submit the same to Reserve Bank of India (Department of Non-Banking Supervision) as directed by RBl vide
notification No. DNBS. PD/CC No.B6/03.02.085/2006-07 dated 12" December 2006.

Pending registration as a NBFC, the Company has adopted prudential norms for income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning, applicable to MBFCs as per Non- Banking Financial (Non Deposit Accepting or
Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions 2007, w.e f.financial year ended 31" March 2012,
Consequently, the net profit of company for the year ended 31" March 2013 is stated lower by T 1,381.91 lac,
2 2,361.92 lac and T 176.94 lac on account of provision made for Standard Loan Assets, Sub-standard Loan Assets
and restructured standard loan assets respectively (Previous year ¥ 4,666.60 lacfor Standard Loan Assets includes
T 1046.01 lac for year ended 31" March 2012} and is shown as ‘Provision for Loan Assets'in the Statement of Profit
andLoss.

€} Thecompany created reserve for loan assets at 0.40% of the total outstanding of loan assets up 1o 317" March 2017,

Consegquent upon adoption of prudential norms during the year ended 31" March 2012 as stated in (b) above, the
company has discontinued the practice to transfer amount to Reserve for Loan Assets and the existing Reserve for
Loan Assatsof ¥5792.941ac ason 31" March 2011 has been retained in the books of account of the company ason
31"March 2013,

{d) The company has restructured/ rescheduled 21 loan accounts up to 317 March 2013 having outstanding balance

of T 282.040.42 lacason 31" March 2013 | T98,828.02 lac in 10 loan accounts as on 317 March 2012) and thera is
no shortfallinvalue of security in these accounts as on 31 March 201 3. Refer note 24(A)(3)bliv)

Provisions of Accounting Standard (A5-19)

al Fimancial Lease:NIL

b} Operating Lease: The Company has taken office premises under operating lease with varying lease periods and

disclosure requirements are as under;-




TinlLac
Period FortheYear Ended Forthe Year Ended
| Total of future minimum lease payments (Gross Investment) 2,451.94 3,805.19
| Present value of lease payments 2,190.41 317932
| 10Year G-SecYield 8.01% 8.540%
Maturity profile of total of future minimum lease payments
Mot laterthanoneyear - 86948 B47.88
Later than oneyear but not later than five year 1,582.46 2,940.92
| Laterthan five year - 16.40
Total 2,431.94 3,805.20
18. Paymentto Auditors:
TinLac
5. Period FortheYearEnded | FortheYearEnded
No. 31" March 2013 31"March 2013
[ 1. | AuditFee 750 7.50
| 2. | TaxAuditFee 1.50 1.50
3. | Certificationwork 4.64 5.63
| 4, | Reimbursementof Expenses 1.36 -
5. | ) AuditofStandalone & Consolidated Accounts forissue ofbonds: -
{a) Forquarterended30”June2012 3.60 -
{b) Forhalfyearended 30" September 2012 5.10 4.25
|| {ii) Examination offinancial information in prospectus _18.00 ———r
| TOTAL 41.70 18.88

19.  Prior Period Income & Expenses which have been included under natural heads in Statement of Profit and Loss are as

under;
TinlLac
Income FortheYear Ended Forthe Year Ended
31"March 2013 31" March 2013
Income on Loans & Advances 248943 294.91
| Penalinterest (20.40) (3.40)
Iinterest on Deposits with banks - (5.09)
| Pre-payment Charges 7.08 -
| Commission received on LC 188.98
[ ﬁlThEChﬁfg&: 1.16
Amount written back 3153 95.35
| Miscellaneous Income L L T
Total 2,685,949 .77
| Expenditure
| Bond servicing expenses 0.31} 9.62
| Bond Issue expenses - 10.21
| Employee Benefit Expenses 6.30 247
| Lease Rent 6.39 .
Interest onincome tax 402 -
| Miscellaneous expenses Zm 3.85
Tatal 18.41 26.15

In view of the above, the net profit of the company for the year ended 31° March 2013 is stated higher by ¥2,667.53 lac

(¥ 355.62 lac for the previous year)
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20, During the year, the company has sent letters seeking confirmation of balances as on 31" March 2013 to borrowers
and banks etc. Some of the balances appearing under Infrastructure Loans, borrowings and other debit and credit
balances as on 31" March 2013 are subject to confirmation and reconciliation and in the opinion of management, na
material impact of such confirmation and reconciliation and also on account of pending resetting of interest rates in
some ofthe cases on financial statementsis anticipated.

21. The proceeds of bonds aggregating ¥ 4,76,887.69 lac raised during financial year 2012-13 was utilized for repayment
of overdraft of T 1,53,108 lac which was availed mainly for purpose of loan disbursement and payment of interest on
borrawings and the balance of ¥ 3,23,779.69 lac, pending utilization as per objective of respective bond issues, was
invested in bank deposits during the year having maturity date during 2013-14. Further, IFCL availed overdraft of
¥ 1,12,395.58 lac from various banks during the year against security of these bank deposits which was also utilized
mainly for purpose of loan disbursement and payment of interest on borrowings.

Furthermore, pending access to the funds before creation of security for bonds in April 2013, proceeds of Tranche |l of
publicissue of Tax Free bonds amounting to ¥ 27,244.20 lac was held in public issue accounts with various banks as on
31"March2013.

22, During the current year, the company has allotted 4,000 lac number of equity share of ¥ 10 each aggregating to
T 40,000 lac to Government of India. Accordingly, issued and paid up equity share capital has increased from ¥2,50,000
lacto ¥2,90,000lac.

23, The previous year figures have been regrouped wherever considered necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For P.R. Mehra & Co. India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

(Registration no: 000051N)

Jai Prakash Agarwal Harsh Kumar Bhanwala 5.K.Goel
Partner {Executive Director) {Chairman and Managing Director]
Membership No.: 10270

Rajeev Mukhija

(General Manager- CFO & CS)

Place: New Dalhi
Dated: 10.05.2013
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
619(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE
FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED, NEW DELHI,FOR THEYEARENDED 31" MARCH 2013

The preparation of financial statements of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited, New Delhi, for the year ended
31" March 2013 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956 is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 619(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 are respansible for expressing opinion on these financial
staterments under Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 based on independent audit in accordance with the auditing and
assurance standards prescribed by their professional body, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india,. This is stated to
have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 10" May 2013.

I,on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit under Section819{3) (b}
of the Companies Act, 1956 of the financial statements of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited, New Delhi, for the
year ended 31° March 2013.This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access of the working
papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inguiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a
selective examination of some of the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditors' report under Section 619(4)
ofthe Companies Act, 1956,

For an on the behalf of the
comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Brij Mohan)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member Audit Board -lll Mew Delhi
Place: New Delhi
Date:17" June2013
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Shn 8K, Goel Chatrmman & Managing Director, HFCL addressing the Conlerence on
Solar Power held on 26" November, 2012 Tor banks and progect developers

shin 5. K. Goel Chamman & Managng Direcoor, TIFCL
adldressing the gathierme m the workshop on Credit Enhancement held on 15" March, 2014
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St Shovean Panl Honble Governor of Pangb conderred

Shn S.K. Goel, CMD, HFCL wath the Rapy Gandhi Lafe Tune Achievement Award for
Outstanding Contmbuton to Banking & Finacne on 20 Augnst, 2012 i a Funetion held in New Dellu

Shiri S.K. Goel Chairman & Managing Director, HFCL acknowledging the gathering on the occasion of receiving
the award [or IPE BFSI Leader at "IFT BFST Awards 2012 held on 30" June, 2002
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Consolidated Financial Results of

India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tothe Board of Directors of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
Reportonthe Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consoclidated Financial Statements of India Infrastructure Finance Company
Limited ("the Company”} and its subsidiaries (the company and its subsidiaries constitute “the Group”), which
comprisethe consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2013, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility forthe Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view of the consoclidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due tofraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement,
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contral relevant to the company's
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
management,as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consaolidated Financial Statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion,
Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. AsperAccounting Standard-11 (AS-11)i.e.The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates', foreign currency loans
taken (to the extent hedged) and outstanding forward exchange contracts should be restated at the exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting date and difference should be taken to the Statement of profit and loss whereas the
Company has restated these foreign currency loans as on the date of inception of the forward contracts and difference
taken to statement of profit and loss as stated in Note No. 24{B){13). Had the company complied with AS-11, loan
liability and foreign currency receivable account as on March 31, 2013 would have been higher by T 69,646,50 Lac
{T43,320.36 Loc as on March 31,201 2) each. However, there would be no impact on the profit for the yearended March
31, 2013 as the loss on principal amount of hedged foreign currency loans will be totally offset by the gain on the
forward exchange contracts,

2. As stated by the management in Note No. 24(B){11)(b), the Mark to Market (M2M) gain on composite contracts
{Interest Rate Swaps cum forward exchange contracts) entered inta by the company as on March 31, 2013amounts to
170,689 36 Lacand the net M2Mloss/gain relating to interest rate swaps, if any, cannot be computed separately,

As per the announcement issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India regarding ‘Accounting for
Derivatives, keeping in view the principle of prudence as enunciated in AS 1, 'Disclosure of Accounting Policies, the
entity is required to provide for losses in respect of all outstanding derivative contracts at the balance sheet date by
marking them to market except in respect of Forward Contracts'which are to be accounted for in accordance with the
provisions of AS-11, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ In our opinion, the Company has not
ascertained and pravided for such mark to market foss, if any, on these outstanding derivative contracts, i.e. Interest

Rate Swaps.




Annual Report 2012-13

{aj
{b)

fc!

Some of the balances shown under Infrastructure loans, borrowings and various other debit and credit balances in the
annual accounts of the company as on March 31, 2013 are subject to confirmation. The impact an the consolidated
accounts on confirmation of these balances, on reconciliation of the differences between balances as per books of
account of the company and balances confirmed by the company and also on account of pending resetting of interest
ratesinsome ofthe casesis hot ascertainable at this stage. [Refer note 24(B){ 18)].

Mo provision has been made regarding employee benefits in the books of a subsidiary i.e. IFCL Projects Limited
as required by AS-15 (Employee Benefits) Revised. The impact of the above on the consolidated profit and loss
could not be ascertained,

In the absence of audited financial statements of an associate for the year ended 31" March, 2013 as stated in
note 24(A)(1.3), the effect of the same has not been considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
impact of the above on the consolidated profitand loss could not be ascertained.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given ta us and based on the
consideration of the reparts of the other auditors on the financial statements of the subsidiaries as noted below, except
for the effects of the matter described in paragraph 1 above and possible effects of the matters described in
paragraphs 2 to 5 above in the 'Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a
true and fairview in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

inthecase of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,201 3;

in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Group for the year ended on that date;
and

in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the yearended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter

The company, being a Non-Banking Finance Company since incorporation, has been carrying on the business of
anon-banking financial institution without obtaining a certificate of registration from the Reserve Bank Of India.
We draw attention to Note No. 24(B) (16)(a) of the consolidated financial statements which describes the matter
regarding application made by the company on March 07, 2013 for registration of the company as a ‘Non-
Banking Financial Company — Infrastructure Finance Company (NBFC-IFC)" with Reserve Bank of India as
required under section 45-(1A)(1}{a) of Chapter |IB of The Reserve Bank Of India which is pending. Our opinion is
not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of the three subsidiary companies i.e. India Infrastructure Finance
Company (UK) Limited, IIFCL Projects Limited and IIFCL Asset Management Co. Limited, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥ 5,71,146.33 Lac, total liabilities of ¥ 5,23,609.63 Lac as at March 31,2013, total
revenues of ¥ 22,478.69 Lac for the year ended March 31,2013 and cash outflows amounting to ¥ 1,960.10 Lac far
the year then ended.

These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management,and our opinion,is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Our opinion is not qualified in
respect of this matter.

For P.R. Mehra & Co.
{Chartered Accountants)
(Registration. No. 000051 N)

(Jai Prakash Agarwal)
Partner
(Membership No.010270)
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 10.05.2013
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INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

2in Lac
PARTICULARS Mote Asat Asat
No. 31"March2013 31"March 2012 |
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' Funds
{a) Share capital 1 2.90,000.00 2,50,000,00
{b) Reserves and Surplus 2 2,18,675.71 1,40,163.37
(e} Money received against share warrants - -
SUB-TOTAL(1) 5,08,675.71 3,90,163.37
{2) Shareapplication money pending allotment- T
SUB-TOTAL(2) = -
{3) Non-currentliabilities
{a) Long-term borrowings 3 2,300,557 .87 24,28,479.61
{b) Deferred tax liabifities (Net) 4 13,025.18 6,199.19
{c} Otherlongterm liabilities 5 4,284 87 132.21
(d) Long-term provisions 6 15301.55 1191241
SUB-TOTAL(3) 23,33,169.47  24,46,723.42
(4) Currentliabilities |
(a) Short-term borrowings ) 1,48,385.89 2,74368.97
ib) Trade payables 8 1,289.09 2.602.00
{c) Othercurrentliabilities 9 10,74,358.35 49,747.31
{d} Shart-term provisions 10 1.141.82 1,574.32
SUB-TOTAL (4) 12,25,175.15 328,292.60
TOTAL (1)+(2)+(3)+(4) 40,67,020.33  31,65,179.39
Il ASSETS
(1) MNen-currentassets
{a) Fixed Assets n
(i) Tangible assets 13349 119.69
(i) Intangible assets 6.36 7.28
(iii) Capital Waork -in-Progress -
(iv) Intangible Assets under development - -
{b) Non-currentinvestments 12 29,901.45 2937642
{c} Longterm loans and advances 13 21,68,952.68 20,18,719.24
{d) Othernon-current assets . E
SUB-TOTAL(1) 22,98,993.98 20,48,222.63
2) Currentassets
{a) CurrentInvestrments 14 - 148298
{b) Trade Receivables 15 367.79 570.29
{c) CashandBank Balances 16 11,66,887.14 9,96,344.34
{d) Shortterm loans and advances 17 5.28,580.03 55,381.82
{e) Othercurrentassets 18 7219139 63,177.33
SUB-TOTAL (2) 17,68,026.35  11,16,956.76
Significant accounting policies and other notes to the
financial statements 24
TOTAL(1)+(2) 40,67,020.33 31,65,179.39
As perour report of even date
For P.R.Mehra & Co. Forand on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
[Registration no:000051N)
JaiPrakash Agarwal Harsh Kumar Bhanwala 5.K.Goel
Partner [Executive Director) {Chairman and Managing Director)
MembershipNo.: 10270
Rajeev Mukhija

(General Manager-CFO & C5)
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 10.05.2013
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INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 " MARCH 2013

Tinlac
PARTICULARS MNote Asat Asat
No. 31"March2013  31"March2012
1 Revenue from oparmﬂ:m 19 3,50,377.20 2,68,747.59
it Otherincome 20 B44.98 416.96
il Total Revenue (1+1) 3,51,222.18 2,69,164.55
IV Expenses
Finance Costs 21 19211232 1.59.645.10
Employee Benefits Expense 22 1.024.07 980.19
Provision for Loan Assets 24(B)(16b) 429613 1,.315.39
Marked to Market Losses on Derivatives 24(B}(11a) (974.01) 1,455.70
Depreciation and amaortisation expense n 5153 42
OtherExpenses 23 287586 2,634.53
Total Expenses 1,99,385.90 1,66,072.92
V' PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIOMAL AND
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND TAX [IlI-1V) 1,51,836.28 1,03,091.63
VI  Exceptional ltems
Less:Provision for Standard Loan Assets = (3,858.19)
Vil PROFIT BEFOREEXTRAORDINARY ITEMS ANDTAX (V+VI) 1,51,836.28 99,233.44
Vill Extraordinary ltems - -
1X. PROFIT BEFORETAX [VII-VIlI) 1,51,836.28 99,233.44
K. TaxExpense:
(1} CurrentTax
=Current Year (43,879.03) (28,117.01)
-EarlierYear (207.97) 31088
(2} DeferredTax 4
-Current Year (6,825.99) (3.472.19)
- EarlierYear - (156.05)
Xl Profitforthe yearfrom continuing operations ([X-X) _T,EGTE_ZE?B_ ET,TEBD?
Xl Earnings perequity share (7] (face value of 7 10/- each) 24({B)(7)
(1} Basic 165 128
(2} Diluted 3.65 3.28
Significant accounting policies and other notes to the
financial statements 24
As per our report of even date
FoarP.R.Mehra & Co, For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
{Registration no: 00005 1)

JaiPrakash Agarwal
Partner
MembershipNo.: 10270

5.K.Goel
{Chairman and Managing Director}

Harsh Kumar Bhanwala
{Executive Director)

Rajeev Mukhija
(General Manager- CFO&CS)
Place: Mew Delhi
Dated:10.05.2013
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INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

TinlLac
PARTICULARS Yearended Yearended
31"March 2013 31"March 2012
A CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES '
(i) NetProfit before Tax 1,51,836.28 99,233.44
Adjustments for:
(i} Depreciation and amortisation expense 51.53 4201
(iii) Provision/write offs 4,398.59 6,751.45
{iv) Provisions/ Amounts written back (1,088.11) (100.18)
(v} ForeignExchange Fluctuation Loss/ (Profit] on borrowings 420716 1,264.49
{vi} Interest/expenses on borrowings 1,79,771.33 1,53,206.12
{vii) Other Borrowing Costs B688.15 564316
{ix} Intereston Income Tax §5.39 141.16
OPERATING PROFIT BEFOREWORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 3,47,960.32 2,66,181.65
(i) Cash Flow From Lending of Funds (7.22,449.34) 5,37,633.86)
(i} Saleof/ (Addition} to Investments 1,500.00 1,74,654.23
{ill} (Increase)/decreaseinTrade Receivables 202,50
(V) (Increase)/decrease in Current Assets,Loans and Advances (9,854.33) (27.138.06)
{v] (Increase)/decreaseinother bank balances (1,56,308.43) (2,60,661.93)
{vil Increase/[decrease] inother non- currentand current liabilities 3461.73 1,872.37
CASHFLOW FROM OPERATIONS BEFORETAX (5,35,487.55) (3,82,725.60)
Taxes paid (Net) (44,710.00) (27,466.78)
NETCASHFROM OPERATIONS A (5,80,197.55) (4,10,192.37)
B CASHFLOWFROMINVESTING ACTIVITIES
{i} (Purchaseof)/Sale for Fixed Assots (261.36) 67.87)
{ii} Investmentsin Subsidiary Company andVenture Capital Uinits (1,054.48) (2,164.62)
{iii} Redemption ofiInvestmentsinVenture Capital Units 522.10 172.00
NETCASHFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B (753.74) (2,060.49)
C CASHFLOWFROMFINANCING ACTIVITIES
{i) Proceedsfrom lssue of Share Capital 40,000.00 50,000.00
{il) Proceedsfrom Long term Borrowings 8,79,720.67 3,37,223.08
{iii} Proceeds/ (Repayment) from Short term Borrowings (1,25,983.08) 1,56,161.23
{iv) Securities Premiurm on Bonds 9.85 -
{v) Interim Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) (25,700.14)
{vil Interest/ expenses on Borrowings (1,67,562.51) {1,50,453.B81)
{wii) Other Borrowing Costs (8,554.58) (6,103.83)
NETCASHFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES C 5,91,930.21 3,86,826.67
D EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGETRANSLATIONDIFFERENCE D 3,295.45 531743
NETCHANGEIN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C+D) 14,234.37 (20,108.76)
Add:Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,812.62 41,921.38
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,046.99 21,812.62
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent Comprises of :-
1 Cashinhand 043 0.32
2 Current Accountsinindia (Refer footnote of Note 16) 31,730.86 3,973.39
3 Fixed Deposits with banks 15.00 14,.451.71
4 Flexi Deposit Accounts 4,300.70 3,387.20
TOTAL [ 36,046.99 21,812.62

Mote : Figures of previous period (5) have re-gruped / re-arranged wherever practicable to make them comparable to the reporting period
presentathon,

As parour reportof even date

For P.R.Mehra & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants India Iinfrastructure Finance Company Limited
[Registration no:000051N)

Jai Prakash Agarwal Harsh Kumar Bhanwala 5.K.Goel

Partner [Executive Director) {Chairman and Managing Director)
MembershipNo.: 10270

Place: New Delhi Rajeev Mukhija
Dated:10.05.2013 (General Manager- CFO&CS)

(2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 :SHARE CAPITAL

T im Lac
PARTICULARS Year ended Yearended
31"March2013  31"March2012
Authorized Capital 5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00
5,000,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10/-each
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Equity Shares
2,900,000,000(2,500,000,000as at 317 March 2012) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 2.90,000.00 2,50,000.00
Footnotes:
a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Fin Lac
PARTICULARS Yearended 31" March 2013 Year ended 31"March 2013
No.ofShares TinLac No.ofShares TinLac
Shares outstanding atthe beginning | 2,50,00,00,000 2,50,000.00 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000.00
afthe reporting period
Shares Issued during the reporting 40,00,00,000 40,000.00 50,00,00,000 50,000.00
period
Shares outstanding attheend 2,90,00,00,000 2,90,000.00 2,50,00,00,000 2,50,000.00
of the reporting period

bl  Entire equity share capital of the company is held by Government of India.
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Note 2 : RESERVES & SURPLUS

Tin Lac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat As at
31" March2013 31" March 2012
{al CAPITALRESERVE
Opening Balance 585.14 585.14
Add:Share of profitsin Associate Company 16.85 -
Closing Balance* 601.99 585.14
(b) SECURITIES PREMIUM RESERVE({ONBONDS)
Opening Balance =
Add: Fortheyear G9.85 -
Closing Balance 9.85 -
(¢} DEBENTUREREDEMPTION RESERVE
Opening Balance B82.90 5,54
Add:Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss 973.12 87336
Closing Balance 1,856.02 882.90
(d} OTHERRESERVES
(il  RESERVEFORLOAMN ASSETS(footnote 1)
Opening Balance 6,165.42 6,16542
Closing Balance £,165.42 6,165.42
(ii)  SPECIALRESERVEU/S 36(1)(viii) OF INCOMETAX ACT, 1961 (footnote 2)
Opening Balance 21,644.47 10,035.23
Add:Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss (Net) 20,072.80 11,609.24
Closing Balance a41,717.27 21,644.47
(iii} STAFFWELFARERESERVE (footnote3)
Opening Balance 54.44 65.00
Less:Amount utilized during the year and transferred to Surplusin
Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss 195 0,56
Closing Balance i 8249 64.44
(iv) CORPORATESOCIALRESPONSIBILITY RESERVE (footnote 4)
Opening Balance 591.60 -
Add:Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss 1.171.66 591.60
Less:Armount utilized during the year and transferred to Surplusin
Statement of Consolidated Profitand Loss 105.40 .
Closing Balance 1,657.86 591.60
(v} FOREIGN CURREMNCY TRANSLATION DIFFERENCE RESERVE
Opening Balance 3.777.23 (1,542.80)
Add/ Less: Adjustments during the year 3.262.49 5.320.03
Closing Balance 7.039.72 3, 77723
(e} SURPLUSINSTATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS
Opening Balance 10645217 51,726.74
Add:Profit for the current year 1,00,923.29 67,799.07
Add;Transfer from StaffWelfare Reserve 1.95 0.56
Add: Transfer from Corporate Social Responsibilty Reserve 105.40 .
Less:Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve §73.12 873.36
Less:Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 36(1){viil) of Income Tax Act, 1961 20,072.80 11,600.24
Less:Transfer to Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 1.171.66 591.60
Less:Interim Dividend 2211288 .
Less:Dividend Distribution Tax 31,587.26 -
Closing Balance 1,59,565.09 1,06,452.17
TOTAL 2,18,675.71 1,40,163.37
*  Closing balance as on 31" March 2013 includes T 585.14 Lac pertaining to Profit on sale of HTM securities and 716.85 Lac
pertaining to share of profits upto date of acquisition of investments in Associate Company. [Refer Mote 24(A)(1.7){wi}]
Footnotes:
1 Reserve for loan assets created @ 0.40% on cutstanding amount of loans assets as at 31" March 2011 has been retained.
[Refer Mote 24(B)16c)]
2 Special Reserve is the statutory reserve required to be maintained ufs 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 by companies
providing long term finance for development of infrastructure facility in India.
3 StaffWelfare Reserve created to promote,among the staff sports, cultural and other welfare activities.
4 Corporate Social Responsibilty Reserve created w.ef. the previous financial year to comply with the Corporate Social

Respansibilty (CSR) Policy of the company as per guidelines on C5Rissued by Department of Public Enterprises
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MNote3 : LONG TERM BORROWINGS

T in Lac
S.No. PARTICULARS Asat 31"March  Asat 31"March
2013 2012
[A) SECURED BONDS
(i) 5009.36% Mon Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10 lac each, 5,000.00 -
redeamableat paron 27/07/2042 (See footnote 1)
(i) 10,5009.41% NMon Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10 lac each, 1,05,000.00 -
redeamable at paron 27/07/2037 (See footnote 1)
(Wi} 98,31,060 7.40% Non convertible { Tax Free) Bonds of face value 98,310.60 -
1,000 each, redeemable at paron 22/01/2032 (Seefootnote 1)
(i) 17,33,164 7.90% Non convertible (Tax Free) Bonds of face value 17.331.64 -
1,000 each,redeemable at paron 22/01/2033 (See footnote 1)
) 2107.41% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax Free) Series IV-C of face value 2,100.00 -
% 10laceach, redeemable at paron 21/11/2032 [See footnote 1)
(Wil 3,400 7.41% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax Free) Series|ll-C of face value 34,000.00
¥ 10laceach,redeemable at paron 15/11/2032 (Seefootnote 1)
vil]  66,42,0747.36% Non convertible (Tax Free) Bonds of face value 66,420.74 -
T 1,000 each,redeemable at par on 22/01/2028 (5ee footnote 1)
(viil) 967,479 7.86% Non convertible (Tax Free) Bonds of face value 11,000 each, 8,674.79 -
redeamnable at paron 22/01/2028 (Seefootnote 1)
(i) 500 7.38% Mon Convertible Bonds [ Tax Free] Series IV-B of face value 5,000.00 -
T 10laceach, redeemable at paron 21/11/2027 (Seefoatnote 1)
(x) 1,000 7.38% Mon Convertible Bonds ( Tax Free) Series |Il-B of face value 10,000.00 -
T 10lac each, redeemable at paron 15/11/2027 (Seefoatnote 1)
[xi) 84,244,960 7.19% Mon convertible { Tax Freg) Bonds of face value 8424960 -
1,000 each,redeemable at paron 22/01/2023 (See footnote 1)
[t} 12,40,032 7.69% Non convertible { Tax Free) Bonds of face value 1240032 -
¥ 1,000 each, redeemable at par on 22/01/2023 (See footnote 1)
(wiiiy  2,1407.21% Mon Convertible Bonds [ Tax Free) Series IV-A of face value 21,400.00 -
T 10lac each, redeemable at paron 21/11/2022 (5ee footnote 1)
{xivl  6007.20% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax Free) Series -4 of face value 6,000.00
T 10laceach,redeemable atparon 15/11/2022 (S5eefootnote 2)
[xv) Long Term Infrastructure Bonds covered under Section 80CCF of 8,096.18 909618
IncomeTax Act, 1961 (See footnotes 1 & 2)
SUB-TOTAL (A) 4,85,983.87 9,096.18
{{:1] UNSECURED BONDS
[1}] 20,400 7.08% Non convertible | Tax Frea) Bonds of face value ¥ 1,000 each,
redeemable at paron 26/03/2033 (5ee footnote 3) 204.00 -
(i) 2,12,765 7.58% Non convertible (Tax Free) Bonds of face value ¥ 1,000 sach,
redeermable at par on 26/03/2033 (See footnote 3) 2,127.65 -
(i) 3,46,000 7.02% Non convertible | Tax Free) Bonds of face value ¥ 1,000 each,
redeermable at paron 26/03/2028 (See footnote 3) 3 460.00 -
liv) 1,19,618 7 ,52% Non convertible { Tax Free) Bonds of face value ¥ 1,000 each,
redeemable at par on 26/03/2028 (See footnote 3) 1,196.18 -
[v) 10,000 8.55% Non Convertible Bonds of face value $10lac each, redeemable
atparon 03/11/2024 ¢ 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
[wi) 4,000 8.1 29 Man Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10 laceach, redeemable
atparon 24/08/2024 4 40,000.00 40,000.00
{wil) 6,000 8.1 29 Mon Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10 lac each, redeemable
atparon 12/08/2024 & 60,000.00 &0,000,00
[wiii)  5,0007.90% Mon Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10 lac each, redeemable
atparon 28/04/2024 # 50,000.00 50,000.00
(i) 5,000 8.10496 Mon Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10 lac each, redeemable
atparon 08/04/2024# 50,000.00 50,000.00




REx X
(x)  2,0008.68% Non Convertible Bonds of face value T10lac each, redeemable
aton 18/12/2023 ¢ 20,000.00 20,000.00
(xi)  2,0009.35% Mon Convertible Bonds of face value ¥ 10lac each, redeemable
atparon 17/11/20234 20,000.00 20,000.00
(ki)  19,16,1106.86% Non convertible (Tax Free) Bonds of face value ¥ 1,000
each,redeemable at paron 26/03/2023 19,161.10 -
(i) 1,098,527 7.36% Mon convertible { Tax Free) Bonds of face value $1,000 each,
redeemable at paron 26/03/2023 1,085.27 -
(xiv] 160Interest linked to USS 6 months LIBOR Non Convertible Bonds of face
value 5 1 million each, subscribed by RBI, redeemable at paron 04/03,/2023 # §7,022.88 B
{xv)  2,0008.82% Non Convertible Bonds of face value T 10 lac each, redeemable
dtparon 1971272022 # 20,000.00 20,000.00
{xvil 117 Interest linked to USS 6 months LIBOR Non Convertible Bonds of face
value 5 1 million each, subscribed by RBI, redeemabile at paron 05/07/2022 # 63,635.48 -
fevii) 123 Interest linked to USS & months LIBOR Non Convertible Bonds of face
value $ 1 million each, subscribed by RBl,redeemable at paron 30/03/2022 # 66,508.84 62,922.50
(eviii} 1700Interest linked to USS 6 months LIBOR Non Convertible Bonds of face
value 5 1 million each, subscribed by RBL redeemable at par on 27/02/2022 4 92.461.81 86,966.05
{wix) 130Interest linked to USS 6 months LIBOR Non Convertible Bonds of face
value § 1 million each, subscribed by RBI redeemable at par on 16/09/2021 4 70,706.09 66,503 45
(xx] 250Interest linked to USS 6 months LIBOR Non Convertible Bonds of face
value 5 1 million each, subscribed by RBI redeemalble at par on 19/03/2015 4 1,35,973.25 1,27.891.25
(xxi)  5,0008.70% Mon Convertible Bonds of face value € 10 lac each, redeemable
atparon 02/09/2016# 50,000.00 50,000.00
{xxii) 2,63,0706.85% Mon Convertible Bonds ( Tax free) of face value? 1 lac each,
redeemable at paron 20/03/2014 # B 2,63,070.00
(xxiii) 7.,36,9306.85% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax free) of face value T 1 laceach,
redeemable at paron 22/01/2014% = 7,36,930.00
SUB-TOTAL (B) 9,53,942.55 17,54,283.25
(C) UNSECUREDTERM LOANSFROMOTHERPARTIES (Seefootnoted)
)] Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC)* 1,85,000.00 95,000.00
i} Mational Small Savings Schemes Fund (N5S5F) 1,50,000.00 1.50,000.00
(i) Asian Development Bank {ADB)* 4,96,727 .66 3,92219.78
fiv)  IBRD{World Bank)* 10,532.43 1042098
v}  Kreditanstalt firWiederaufbau (KFW)* 18,371.36 17,459.42
SUB-TOTAL(C) 8,60,631.45  6,65100.18 |
TOTAL {AJ+({B}+(C) 23,00,557.87 24,28,479.61
i Guaranteed by Government of India including ¥ 10,00,000 Lacason 17,54,283.25 17.54,283.25
31" March 2013 (Nilason 31" March 2012) 6.85% tax free bonds due
within 1 year fromthe end of reporting period and shown as
"Other Current Liabilties" in Note 9]
‘ Guaranteed by Governmentof India [including T10,000 Lacand ¥ 7,033 47 Lacas  7,27,664.92 5,23,936.92

on31"March 2013 (75,000 Lacand T 3,836.74 Lacasat 31" March 2012) being the
amount dueto LIC and ADB respectively within 1 year from the end of reporting
period and shown as “Other Current Liabilties"in Note 9]

Footnotes:

1} These bonds are secured on pari passu basis by all rights, titles, interests, benefit, claims and demands whatsoever of
the Company’s accounts including receivables of the Company of whatsoever nature, present and future.

2) Details of Long term Infrastructure bonds issued by IFCL under section 80 CCF of Income Tax Act, 1961, are as unden:

(i} 130407 8.30% Non Convertible Bonds of face value T 1000 each, redeemable at par on 28" March 2026 with earliest

buybackon 297 March 2018.

779211 8,15% Non Convertible Bonds of face value T 1000 each, redeemable at par on 28" March 2021 with earliest

buyback an 29th March 20186,

3)  These bonds have been secured by creation of charge on assets mentioned at footnote 1 above, after the close of the
financial year.

fii}
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Note 4 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Tin Lac
S.MNo. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March2013  31"March 2012
(Il DeferredTax Liability
(i)  OnaccountofSpecial Infrastructure Reserve created under section 13,535.17 702255
36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
(i}  Onaccount of deduction claimed for standard loan assets 1,417.46 1,417.52
Deferred Tax Liability 14,952.63 B,440.07
{ll} DeferredTax Assets
(il Onaccount of depreciation 557 4.19
(i} Onaccountofdiminution invalue ofinvestments 7597 77.55
(i} Onaccount of preliminary expenses 2.79 -
{iv) Onaccountof provision for contingencies® 1,843.12 215914
Deferred Tax Assets 1,927.45 2,240.88
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 13,025.18 6,199.19
*  Createdinrespect of marked to market losses on derivatives
Note 5:0THER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
¥ in Lac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March2013 31" March2012
(a) Tradepayables 417227 -
(b} Others:
(il Rentadjustableaccount 106.60 105,33
(i} Gratuity payable - 3.20
(i} Security deposit received 6.00 2368
TOTAL 4.284.87 13221




Annual Report 2012-13

Note 6 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS

TinLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March2013 31" March2012
(A} Provision for Employee Benefits [Seenote 24 (B} (5a)]
{il  LeaveEncashment 5047 32.08
{ii) SickLeave 2387 0.45
{iii) Leawve Fare Concession 8.26 8.11
SUB-TOTAL[A) 82.60 49.65
{B) Others[See note 24(B)(5a)]
(i} Markedtomarket lossesonderivatives 5,680.75 6,654.76
[SeeMote 24 (B)(11a)]
(i) Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets 6,999.34 5,208.00
[See Note 24 (B) {16b))
{iii} Provisionsagainst Sub-standard Assets 236152 -
[See Note 24 (B) (16b)]
(iv) Provisionsagainst Standard Restructured Assets 176.94 -
[See Note 24 (B) (16b)]
SUB-TOTALI(B) 15,218.95 11.862.76
TOTAL(A)+(B) 15,301.55 11,912.41
Note 7 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Tin Lac
5.No. PARTICULARS 31" March2013 Asat
31" March 2012
LOANS REPAYABLE ON DEMAND FROM BANKS 1,48,385.89 2,74.368.97
{Secured by pledge of fixed deposit receipts of £ 5,36,873.75 Lac
(T392,864 Lacasat 31" March 2012)) | )
TOTAL 1,48,385.89  2,74,368.97
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Note 8 : TRADE PAYABLES
TinLac
S5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31" March2013 31" March2012
{il  Witholding Tax payable to borrowers 1,108.05 2488.38
{iiy  Miscellaneous Liabilities 181.04 11362
TOTAL 1,289.09 2,602.00 |
Note 9 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
T in Lac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March2013  31"March 2012
{A) Currentmaturitiesoflongterm debt(See note 3):
(il 2,63,0706.85% MNon Convertible Bonds ( Tax free) of face value
2 1laceach, redeemable at paron 20/03/2014 2,63,070.00 -
{liy 7,36,9306.85% Non Convertible Bonds (Tax free) of face value
T 1laceach redeemableat paron 22/01/2014 7.36,930.00 &
(it} LifeInsurance Corporation of India (LIC) 10,000.00 5,000.00
{iv) Asian Development Bank{(ADB) 7.033.47 3,836.74
SUB-TOTAL(A) 1,017,033.47 B,836.74
{B) Interestaccrued but notdue onborrowings
il  Onbankoverdraft 675 74.95
(i) Onbondsandtermloans 55,942.49 4001263
SUB-TOTAL(B) 55,949.24 40,087.58
(C) Incomereceivedinadvance
(il  Amountpending appropriation 513.40 0.74
(i} Grantsreceived fromWorld Bank 13.73 172.14
fiil} LoCfees . 39.33
SUB-TOTAL (C) 537.13 212.21
(D) Otherpayables
(i) Duties &Taxes payable 16622 106.95
fiil PFdeducted onbehalfof employees/ wholetime directors
{including interest payable) 9.01 50.05
(il  Unclaimed Interest on Bonds 138 1.38
W} Commitment Charges payable 44 82 33.50
(v} GovernmentGuaranteefees payable - 292
ivil Payable to Emplovees/Whaoletime Directors 6.11 1.69
(vii) Contribution towards gratuity fund payableto LIC 2335 329
{viii) RentAdjustable Account 49.48 13.02
{ix) Grant refundable toWorld Bank 113.03 -
(x} Others 43511 368,36
SUB-TOTAL (D) 848.51 610,78
TOTAL (A)+(B)+{C)+(D) 10,74,358.35 49,747.31
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Note 10 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

TinLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat As at
31"March2013 31" March2012
{A) Provisionfor Employee Benefits [Seanote 24 (B) (5a)]
i)  LeaveEncashment 16.74 092
(i} SickLeave 1.53 0.43
(iii} Leave Fare Concession 0.64 0.33
(ivl Performance Linked Incentive toWhole time Directors 51.50 33.15
vl Wage Revision [See note 24(B)(15)] 37.29 -
SUB-TOTAL (A) 107.70 34.83
(B] Others[Seenote 24 (B)(5a)]
(i} IncomeTax (Net) 942.74 1,494.12
(i} Interestonincome Tax 91.38 4537
SUB-TOTAL (B) 1,034.12 1,539.49
TOTAL (A)+({B) 1,141.82 1,574.32 |
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Note 12 : NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Vi a2
S.No. PARTICULARS Asat31” March2013 Asat31"March2012
Mumberof Face MNumberof Face
{A]  TRADEINVESTMENTS Shares  Value Shares  Value
{a)  Investment in Equity Instruments - Unquoted (Fully Paid)
Assaciate Company [See note 24(B1H3 AN
Investment in Delhi Mumbalindustrial Corridor
| Development Corporaticn Lud. 41,00,000 T10 427.88% | 41,00,000 110 411.03
427.88 411.03
(b) | Investment in Venture Capital Units (Ungquoted) (Fully Paid) | Numberof Face Mumberof Face
Units  Value Units Value
IDFC Project Equity Domestic Investors Trust Il (Fully Paid) 6060239 100 606024 | 5527859 Y100 5,527.86
6,060.24 5,527.86
(c)  Investment in Bonds (Quoted) (Fully Paid) Mumberof Face Numberof Face
| {seefootnoted below) Bonds Value Bonds Value
{iy | 7.70%REC 2014 100 T10lac 95923 100 T10lac 959.23
{ii}y 890%PNB2019 200 T10lac 1984.03 200 T10lac 1,984.03
{iil) | 10.60%IRFC 2018 50 f10lac 50089 50 T10lac 500.89
{iv] | 11.00%PFC2018 50 T100lac 52663 50 T10lac 526.63
v | 11325%PFC2018 100 f10lac 106593 100 Ti0lac 1.065.93
5,036.71 5,036.71
SUB-TOTAL (A) 11,524.83 10,975.60
Mumberof Face Mumberof Face
(B]  OTHERINVESTMENTS Units Value Units Value
{a) | Investment in Government Securities (Ungquoted)
{i} | 605%GOI2019 2000000 100 1,980.00 | 2000000 T100 1,980.00
{ii} | 635%G0OI2020 7500000 TI100 683451 | 7500000 TI100 6,834.51
{if) | 6909 GOI2019 2000000 T100 1,952.09 | 2000000 T100 1,952.09
{iv] | 7.76% SL (Karnataka) 2019 500000 Ti00 51179 5,040,000 T100 513.78
{v) | 7.85%5L (Andhra Pradesh} 2019 1000000 T100 1,002.02 | 1000000 T100 1,002.34
{vi) | 8279 SL (Kerala) 2019 1000000 ¥100 1,007.41 | 1000000 T100 100865
{vil) | 8.43%5L (West Bengal) 2019 1500000 100 1,572.60 | 1500000 T100 158491
{wii} 8.48% 5L {Tamil Nadu) 2019 2500,000 ¥100 2,550.19 | 2500000 100 255862
17,410.70 17:434.90
[b)  Investment in Bonds{Quoted) (Fully Paid) Numberof Face Mumberof Face
Bonds  Value Bonds Value
| 8.83% Neyveli Lignite Corp.Ltd 2019 100 210lac  965.92 100 F0lac 96592
965.92 965.92
SUB-TOTAL{B) ‘E.E&E! 18_.4@.’!& _
TOTAL (A)+(B) 2‘9;9‘11.45' 29,376.42
Footnotes:

(a) Aggregate amountofguoted investments:

Cost/Book Value 6,002.63 6,002.63
MarketValue 6,185.84 6,02458
ib) Aggregate amount of unguoted investments - Cost/ Book Value 23,898.82 23373.79
(c) Aggregate provision for dimunition in value ofinvestments 22200 22200

(d) During the previous financial year, these investments were shifted from current investments to non- current investments with
the approval of Board of Directors of the company at cost or fair value, whichever is lower as on closing of 31" March 2012.This
resulted into aggregate provision being made for domination invalue of investments amounting to ¥ 222 lac.

(e} Refer Mote 24{A)(S5) for valuation of individual investments.
* Includes ¥ 16.85 Lac being share of pre-acquisition profits.
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Note 13: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Tin Lac
5.Mo. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March2013  31"March2012
(A) CAPITAL ADVANCES 213.66 7.0
(Unsecured, Considered good)
SUB-TOTAL (A) 213.66 7.91
(B) SECURITY DEPOSIT 40700 414,75
(Unsecured, Considered good)
SUB-TOTAL(B) 407.00 41475 |
(C) (I} INFRASTRUCTURELOANS (STANDARD ASSETS)
iSeefootnote below)
] Direct Lending 19,91 879,86 15,30,900,70
{ii) Pooled Municipality Debt Obligation (PMDO) Scheme 8.577.11 10,231.72
{iii) Refinancing Scheme - 4.16,800.00
{iv) Takeoutfinancing Scheme 2,46,405.04 60,355.47
(C)()  INFRASTRUCTURELOANS (SUB-STANDARD ASSETS)
i Direct Lending 19,369.21 -
{ii) Pooled Municipality Debt Obligation (PMDO) Scheme 1,000.54 -
SUB-TOTALI(C) 22,68,231.76 20,18,287.89
(D) OTHER LOANS AND ADVANCES
m Secured, Considered good
Loantoemployees 99.12 B.18
{m Unsecured, Considered good
i Advance recoverable from employees 1.14 -
{ii) Prepaid Expenses - 0.51
SUB-TOTAL (D) 100.26 B.69
TOTAL (A} + (B} +(C) +(D) 22,68,952.68  20,18,719.24
Foatnote:
- Sector Particulars/Security Amount(TinLac)
Power | "Secured,Considered Good:
& Other | Mortgage:First parri-passu charge by way of mortgage
Sectors | of Borrower'sallimmovable properties, present and future.” 13,65427.31 0,03,242.28
Hypothecation:First parri-passu charge by way of hypothecation of
allthe Borrower's movable assets including plant and machinery etc.
Pledging of shares minimumof 51%
Escrow account and all rights and titles and interest of borrowers rank parri- passu
Road& | "Secured,Considered Good:
Airport | Righttoreceive annuity and toll collections of the project”
{PPF) Escrow accountand all rights and titles and interest of borrower rank pari passu 9.88,137.40 7.52,948.90
Hypothecation:First parri-passu charge by way of hypothecation of all the
Borrower's movable assets.
Refinance| Unsecured,Considered Good 4,41,800.00 4,16,800.00
TOTAL# 27,95,364.71 20,72,991.18

#The above includes ¥ 5,27,132.95 lac {as on on 31" March 2012 ¥ 54,703.29 lac) being amount of loans due within a year and
overdueamountason 31" March 2013 which are shown in Note 17.
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Note 14: CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Tin Lac
PARTICULARS Asat31"March2013 Asat31” March2012
Investmentin Bonds (Quoted) (Fully Paid) Mumberof Face Mumberof  Face
Bonds  Value Bonds Value
7.15%REC2012 - - - 150 T10lac  1,500.00
TOTAL - 1,500.00
Less:Provision for diminution in the value of Bonds - 17.02
TOTAL CURRENT INVESTMENTS - 1,482.98
Footnotes:
{al  Aggregate amountof quoted investments:
Cost/BookValue =3 1.500.00
MarketValue = 148298
(b}  Aggregate amount of unguoted investments - Cost/ Book Value -
{e)  Aggregate provision fordimunitionin value of investments i.e.bonds 17.02
(d]  Refer Mote 24 (A)(5] forvaluation ofindividual investments.
Note 15: TRADE RECEIVABLES
_ _ TinLac
S.Na. PARTICULARS Asat31" March2013 Asat31" March2012
Unsecured, considered good:

{il
{il)
{iii)

(Due not exceeding six months)
Processing fee recoverable
Upfront Fees recoverable
Advisory Fees recoverable
TOTAL

366,67

1.12

36779 |

370.29

57029
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Note 16: CASH AND BANK BALANCES

finLac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat |
31" March2013 31" March2012 |
(A) CASHANDCASHEQUIVALENTS
(il Balanceswith banks (S5eefootnote below) 30,714.15 310176
(i) Balanceswith OtherBanks (held by Subsidiary Companyin UK} 1.016.71 871.63
{iiiy Cashonhand 043 032
{ivl Fixed Deposits with banks{Unencumbered) 15.00 -
v) Fixed Deposits with banks (Unencumbered, held by Subsidiary Companyin UK) 1445171
(wvi} Flexi Deposits with banks 4,300.70 3,387.20
SUB-TOTAL(A) 36,046.99 21,812.62
(B OTHERBAMNKBALAMCES
il Earmarked balances with banks for unclaimed interest on bonds 1.38 1.38
lii) Fixed Deposits with banks (Unencumbered) 3.57.190.83 40833884
(i) Fixed Deposits with banks (Unencumbered, held by Subsidiary Company in UK) 1,86,664.08 1,63,112.50
(iv] Fixed Deposits with banks (Encumbered);
(al Held assecurity againstInterest Payment of Bonds 50,000.00 10,065.00
{b) Earmarked forexpenses Related toWorld Bank Grant 110.11 150,00
¢} Pledged to avail overdraft facility from banks 5,36,873.75 3,92,864.00
SUB-TOTAL (B) 11,30,840.15  9,74,531.72 |
TOTAL (A)+(B) 11,66,887.14  9,96,344.34

Footnote:This includes ¥ 27,244.20 Lac which was transferred from Escrow Accounts to the Public Issue Accounts of the company
and the company is construed to be beneficiary in respect of these funds. However, the company was provided access to these
funds after creation of security for the Bonds in April 2013,
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Note 17: SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

finLac
5.Na. PARTICULARS As at Asat
31" March2013 31" March2012
[A) (I} INFRASTRUCTURELOANS(STANDARD ASSETS)

{i)

i)
{iii)
{iv)
(A)

{il
{ii)

(B)
i

{in

<l
m

m
(i
i)
{iv)
{iv)
{wi)
{wii

(SeefootnoteinNote 13)
Direct lending
Pooled Municipality Debt Obligation (PMDO) Scheme
Refinancing Scheme
Take out financing Scheme
(1) INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS {SUB-STANDARD ASSETS)
(SeefootnoteinNote 13)
Direct lending
Pooled Municipality Debt Obligation (PMDO) Scheme
SUB-TOTAL(A)
Loans and advances torelated parties (Unsecured, considered good)
Expenses incurred on behalf of subsidiary companies e IFCL Projects Led
(T1.061ac) &NFCL Asset Management Company Ltd (T 0,31 lac)
Expenses Incurred on behalf of associate company i.elrrigation &Water
Resources Finance Carporation
SUB-TOTAL(B)
Others
Secured, considered good
Loantoemployees
Unsecured, considered good
Security depaosit
Advances recoverablefrom employees
Advance Tax({paid)
Tax deducted at source
IncomeTax Recoverable
ServiceTax Recoverable (CENVAT)

{wiii) Prepaid Expenses

{ix)

Otheradvances
SUB-TOTALIC)
TOTAL [A)+(B)+{C)

£3,062.87 51,691.24

707.47 427.46

4,41,800.00 =

18,313.07 2,584.59
3,129.19

120.35 -

5,27,132.95 54,703.29

. 137

0.17 0.18

0.17 1.55

20.72 1.74

309.00 300.00

474 5.77

2224 =

- 5.54

32594 330.77

0.41 -

49,98 11.57

713.88 2159

1,446.91 676.98

5,28,580.03 55,381.82
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Note 18: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

- B TinLac
5.No. PARTICULARS As at Asat
31" March2013 31" March2012
{A) Interestaccrued and dueonloansand advances 18,863.02 4,936.37
SUB-TOTAL(A) 13,_:!»&3.02 4,936.37
(B) Interestaccrued butnotdue on:
{i} Fixed Deposits with Banks 43,248.89 52,449.03
(i} Bonds 207 98 279.60
(i} GovernmentSecurities 204,88 204.88
{iv) Interest Rate Swaps (Net) - 35.79
(v) Loans& Advances 957275 527166
SUB-TOTAL (B) 53,234.50 58,240.96 |
(C) Others 93.87 -
SUB-TOTALIC) 93.87 -
TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 72,191.39 63,177.33
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Note 19: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

5.No. PARTICULARS Yearended \'aare:;:; =
31" March 2013 31" March 2012
(A} Interest
(i) Intereston Loansand Advances under Direct Lending 2,09,555.83 1.49,811.44
(i) InterestonLoans under PMDO Scheme 1.219.87 B30T
{iii} InterestonLoans and Advances under Refinancing Scheme 3422295 2758583
{iv)  Intereston Loans and Advances under Takeout Financing Scheme 1782689 994.61
(vl Penallnterest 62597 43.20
(wi) Interestearned on Certificateof Depaosit - 2,131.89
[wii} Intereston Government Securities 1.273.70 1.273.70
{wiil} Intereston Bonds 599.93 672.49
{ix} Intereston Deposits with Banks B0,589.35 7997204
SUB-TOTAL(A} 3,45914.49 2,63,315.37
(B) OtherFinancial Services
(i) UpfrantFee 247511 3,782.04
(i) Processingfee 731.82 =
{iiiy Pre-PaymentCharges 3478 23138
{iv) Commission Received T60.85 328.06
v} CommitmentCharges 15821 1,054.87
{vi) Advisory Fees 72.50 -
(vii} OtherCharges 22944 587
SUB-TOTAL(B) 4,462.71 5,432.22
TOTAL(A)+(B) 3,50,377.20 2,68,747.59
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Note 20: OTHER INCOME
o . Tin Lac
s.No. PARTICULARS Yearended Yearended

31" March 2013

31" March2012

Other Non-Operating Income

{i} GainonSwap Deals 550.74 -
(i) Grantsrecejved 154.26 28520
(iil} Amounts/ Provisions written back 114,10 10018
liv] Miscellaneous income 25.88 31.58
TOTAL 844,98 416.96
Note 21: FINANCE COSTS
Tin Lac
5.No. PARTICULARS Yearended Yearended
31" March2013 31" March2012
(A} Interest Expense:
(i) Intereston Bonds & Debentures 1.16,871.82 1,04,643.41
Less:interest Saving on Bonds (89.82) (125.95)
(i) InterestonBankBorrowings 5.937.897 3,746.33
(i) Intereston Bonds Application Money 710,02 -
(iv) Interestonloanfrom NSSF 13,500.00 13,500.00
(v} Interestonloanfrom LIC 16,458.30 8,583.45
ivi} Interestonloanfrom ADB 3,929.03 1,953.69
(vii) Interest due to net settlement of swap transactions on ADB Laan 20,558.32 19.062.13
{viii) Interest on loan from IBRD {World Bank) 92.46 61.21
(ix] Interestduetonet settlement of swap transactionson IBRD (World Bank) Loan 521.20 524.26
(%] Interestonloanfrom KFW 758.59 691,32
ixi) Interestduetonetsettiement of swap transactions on KFW Loan 523.44 566.27
SUB-TOTAL (A) 1,79,771.33 1,53,206.12 |
B} OtherBorrowing Costs:
il Guarantee Feesto Govt.ofindia 7,118.02 533283
i) Commitmentcharges 186.08 175.48
liii) Bond Servicing Expenses 130.54 124,65
(iv) BondlssueExpenses 1.251.66 10.20
v} FactoringCharges 1.85 2
SUB-TOTAL (B) 8,688.15 5,643.16
(€} MNetlossonforeign currency transactions and translations 365284 79582
SUB-TOTAL(C) 3,652.84 795.82
TOTAL (A} +(B) +(C) 1.92,112.32 1,59,645.10
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Note 22: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

tinlac
5.No. PARTICULARS Yearended Yearended
31" March2013 31" March2012
(i) SalariesandWages 757.15 685.05
(i) Contributionto providentand other funds 7328 101.90
jili) StaffWelfare Expenses 193.64 193.24
TOTAL 1.024.07 980.19
Note 23: OTHER EXPENSES
- B in Lac
5.No. PARTICULARS Yearended Yearended
31" March2013 31" March 2012
iil Powerand Fuel 842 6.73
(i) Lease Rent 825.64 87244
(iti) Insurance 223 169
livl Professional Fees 163.69 26077
(vl RatesandTaxes 66,02 56.31
iwi}] Interestonincome tax 9538 141.16
ivii) Amortization of Premium Paid on non-current securities 2420 24.28
{wiil) Provision for diminution inthe value of Investments - 97.21
(ix] Metlossonforeigncurrency transactions and translations 554,32 468.67
(x) Loan AmountWritten Off 7581 -
ixi] Establishmentand OtherExpenses 1,060.14 70527
TOTAL 2,875.86 2,634.53
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Note 24: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31"MARCH 2013

{A] SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. BASISOFPREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the individual financial statements of India Infrastructure
Finance Company Limited (the parent company) and audited financial statements of its subsidiaries, India
Infrastructure Finance Company (UK) Ltd, IFCL Projects Ltd and IIFCL Asset Management Company Limited
(together constituting as the group) as on March 31,201 3 and for the period ended on that date. The
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis;

i} The Financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line
basis by adding together the book values of |ike items of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses, after
eliminating intra—group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses as per Accounting
Standard 21 on "Consolidated Financial Statements" as notified by the Companies [Accounting
standards) Rules, 2006,

il} The individual financial statements of the subsidiaries IFC (UK) Ltd.for the period from 1" April 2012 to
31" March 2013, IIFCL projects Ltd. for the period from 14" February 2012 (Date of incorporation of the
company) to 317 March 2013 and IIFCL Asset Management Company Limited for the period from 28"
March 2012{Date of incorporation of the company) to 317 March 2013 are consolidated in the financial
statement of parent company.

il The assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of the foreign subsidiary are translated at
the closingexchangerate.

iv] Income and expense items of the foreign subsidiary are translated at average exchange rate during the
period.

vl Allresulting exchange difference is accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve.

vi) In case of Associates, where the company directly or indirectly through subsidiaries holds more than
20% of equity, investments in Associates are accounted for using equity method in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS) 23 — Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Staterments,

1.2 The Individual Financial Statements of the following subsidiaries have been Consolidated in the
consolidated Financial Statements:

MName of Subsidiary Country of iIncorporation Current Period Previous Period
Proportion of Ownership | Proportion of Ownership
Interest [%) Interest (%)
;_IEQIU_K_} Limitad United Kingdom 100% 100%
IFCL Projects Limited India 100% M.A,
IIFCL Asset Management India 100% N.A.
Co.Limited
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1.4

3.
31

3.2

33
34
35

36
37

ER.]

4.

4.1

4,2

The company acquired 41% equity share capital of Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation
(DMICDC) Ltd. {'the associate’) for T410.00 lac as on 29" March 2012. The investment has been initially acquiredat
cost L.e. ¥ 411.03 lac { including expenses incurred 1.03 lac), As DMICDC was associate of IFCL as on 317 March 2013,
based on last Audited financial statements of DMICDC for the year ended 31" March 2012,an amount of 316,85 lac
being proportionate share in reserves of associate as on that date are considered as capital reserve and accounted
for as per AS - 23.In the absence of audited financial statements of DMICDC for the year ended 31" March 2013,the
same has not been consolidated.

However, as stated in note 24(B)(3)(I){A)iii) the halding of IFCL in equity share capital of DMICDC would reduce to

4.1% on allotment of these shares and it would cease to be associate of lIFCL. Accordingly, IIFCL will discontinue to

account for investment in DMICDC under the equity method as per AS- 23, Consequent upon discontinuing the use

of the equity method, investment in DMICDC would be accounted for in accordance with AS- 13, Accounting for

Investments,

The wholly owned foreign subsidiary company's i.e [IFC (U.K) Limited audited financial statements have been

converted as per Generally Accepted Accounting Practices in India applied for preparing financial statements of

the Parent Cormnpany.

The Financial accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis with accrual concept and in accordance

with accounting policies and practices consistently followed unless otherwise stated.

RECOGNITION OF INCOME | EXPENDITURE

Upfront fee income on loans granted is considered as income on accrual basis in cases where loan documents

have been signed on allocated amount. However, Upfront fee (Non-refundable) received from project companies

after in-principle sanction of loans to prospective borrowers is considered asincome on realization basis,

Further, upfront fee expenses in respect of loans sanctioned to the company is considered as expense on accrual

basis, where loan documents have been executed.

Commitment charges on loans taken by the company are accounted for as expense when draw down of loan s

less than sanctioned amount of loan as per the Loan agreement.

Recoveries in borrower's accounts are appropriated as per the loan agreements.

Dividend is accounted on an accrual basis when right to receive the dividend is established,

Income from investrnent in schemes of growth of mutual funds is accounted for on the basis of actual instance of

sale.

Prior periodincome/ expense of ¥ 5000/- or below is charged to their regular heads of account,

Expenditure incurred in raising of bonds is charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the year of allotment of

bonds.

Expenses incurred under Carparate Social Responsibility(CSR) palicy during the financial year is charged to

revenue and equivalent amount is transferred from Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve and transferred the

balance tostatement of profit & loss.

LOAMN ASSETS

The company has adopted norms for income-recognition, asset classification and provisioning applicable to

Non-Banking Financial Companies-infrastructure Finance Company (NBFC-IFC) as per Non-Banking Financial

{Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. The salient

features of these norms are as under;

Income Recognition

a. Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate
applicable.

b. Income including interest/discount or any other charges on Non-PerformingAssets (NPA) is recognized anly
when it is actually realized. Any such income recognized before the asset became non-performing and
remaining unrealized is reversed,

“Non-Performing Asset” means:

a. Anasset,inrespect of whichinterest has remained overdue for a period of six months or more.
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4.4

b. Atverm loan inclusive of unpaid interest, when the installment is overdue for a pericd of six months or more or
on whichinterest amount remained overdue for a period of six months or more,

Asset Classification

Alladvances are classified as:-

a. "Standard assets" means the asset in respect of which, no default in repayment of principal or payment of
interest is perceived and which does not disclose any problem nor carry more than normal risk attached to the
business,

b. "Sub-standard assets” means an asset which has been classified as non-performing asset for a period not
exceeding 18 months,

c. "Doubtful asset” means a term loan or any other asset which remains sub-standard asset for a period of
exceading 18 months.

d. “Loss Asset"means:

(1) an asset which has been identified as loss asset by the company or its internal or external auditor to the
extentitis notwritten off by the company.

(i) an assetwhich is adversely affected by a potential threat of non-recoverability due to either erosion in the
value of security or non-availability of security or due to any fraudulent act or omission on the part of the
borrower.

Provisioning

(i) Standard Assets: General Provision is made at 0.25% of outstanding amount of loans, including on interest
accrued but notdue atthe yearend.

(i) Sub-standard assets: A general provision of 10 percent of total outstanding amount is made.

(iii) Doubtful assets:-
fa) 100 percent provision to the extent to which the advance is not covered by the realizable value of the

security towhich the company has avalid recourse is made,

(b) In addition to item (a) above, depending upon the period for which the asset has remained doubtful,

provision to the extent of 20 percent to 50 percent of secured portion {.e.estimated realizable value of the
outstanding) is made on the following basis:

Period for which the asset has been Percentage of provision
considered as doubtful
Uptooneyear 20
Onetothreeyears 30
Morethan three years 50
{iv) Laoss Assets
The entire asset is written off, if the assets are permitted to remain in the books for any reason, 100 percent of
the outstanding is provided for.
4.5 Restructured loan Assets

a.  Loansare subjected to restructuring and/or rescheduling and/or renegotiation of terms under the following
stages:

{al befarecommencement of commercial production;

(b) after commencement of commercial production but before the asset has been classified as
sub-standard;

e} aftercommencementof commercial production and the asset has been classified as substandard.
b. Treatmentof restructured loans

(i} Standard loan: The rescheduling or restructuring or renegaotiation of the installments of principal alone, at
any of the aforesald first two stages does not cause a standard asset to be re-classified in the sub-standard
category,ifthe projectis re-examined and found to be viable by the Board of Directors.

Provided that rescheduling or renegotiation or restructuring of interest element at any of the foreqaoing first
two stages does not cause an asset to be downgraded to sub-standard category subject to the condition

©
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{ii)

(iid)

{iwv)

that the amount of interest foregone, if any, on account of adjustment in the element of interest, is either
written off or100 percent provision ismade there against.

Sub-standard asset: A sub-standard asset continues to remain in the same category in case of restructuring
or rescheduling or renegotiation of the installments of principal until the expiry of one year and the amount
of interest foregone, if any, on account of adjustment, including adjustment by way of write off of the past
interest dues,in the element of interest,is written off or 100 percent provision made there against,

Adjustment of interest: Where rescheduling or renegotiation or restructuring involves a reduction in the
rate of interest, the interest adjustment is computed by taking the difference between the rate of interest as
currently applicable to infrastructure loan (as adjusted for the risk rating applicable to the borrower) and the
reduced rate and aggregating the present value {discounted at the rate currently applicable to infrastructure
loan, adjusted for risk enhancement] of the future interest payable so stipulated in the restructuring or
rescheduling or renegotiation proposal,

Where the assetis partly secured, aprovision to the extent of shortfall in the security available, is made while
restructuring and/ or rescheduling and/ or renegotiation of the loans, apart from the provision required on
present value basis and as per prudential norms. In line with the Reserve bank of India decision vide letter
DBOD.BPBC.No 83/08.12.014/2012-13 dated 18" March 2013 addressed to commercial banks regarding
prudential norms on advances to Infrastructure Sector, in case of PPP projects, the debits due to the company
are considered as secured to the extent assured by the project authority in terms of the Concession
Agreement, subject to (a) User charges/toll/tariff payments are kept in an escrow account where senior
lenders have priority over withdrawals by the concessionaire; (b) There is sufficient risk mitigation, such as
pre-determined increase in user charges or increase in concession period, in case project revenues are lower
than anticipated; (c) The lenders have a right of substitution in case of concessionaire default; (d) The lenders
have a right to trigger termination in case of default in debt service; and (e) Upon termination, the Project
Authority has an obligation of (i) compulsory buy-out and (i) repayment of debt due in a pre-determined
manmner.

INVESTMENTS

5.1

53

Mon- Current Investments

a. Unguoted Investments: Equity shares in subsidiary companies, associate company and Venture Capital
Units are carried at cost,

b. Unguoted investments in Government securities: Each scrip is carried at its acquisition cost or at
amartized cost, if acquired at a premium over the face value, Any premium on acquisition is amortized
overthe remaining maturity period of the security on constant yvield basis.

¢. Quoted Bonds:Bonds are carried at acquisition cost or lower of book value or market/ fair value in case of
inter class transfer. The excess over face value from date of acquisition/transfer is amortized over the
remaining maturity period of the security on constant yield basis.

Current Investments

Quoted Bonds — Each scrip is revalued at the market price or fair value based on yield to maturity method

and only the net depreciation is provided for and net appreciation, ifany,is ignored.

Mutual Funds — valued at lower of cost or net asset value at the year end.

Certificate of deposits — valued at cost.The difference between face value and cost is recognized as income

over the remaining maturity period of certificate of deposit on constant yield basis and is added to the value

of certificate of deposit.

Inter- Class Transfer of investments

The inter-class transfer, if warranted is effected with approval of the Board and in such case investments are
transferred scripwise from current to non- current at book value or market/ fair value, whicheveris lower.

FOREIGNEXCHANGETRANSACTIONS

6.1.

6.2

Expenses and income in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transactions.

The following balances are translated in Indian currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
closure of accounts:

a. Foreign Currency Loan liability to the extent not hedged, and Loan granted in foreign currency.
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b. Incomes or Expenses accrued but not due on foreign currency loans granted and foreign currency
borrowings respectively.

c. ContingentLiability in respect of Letter of Credit issued inforeign currency.

a. Foreign Currency Loan liability, to the extent hedged is translated in Indian currency at the spot exchange
rates prevailing on the date of hedging transactions.

b. The difference in fareign currency loan amount translated at spot exchange rate prevailing on time of
hedging and on the date of repayment of loan is recognized as gain or lossin the year of repayment.

The actual/translation gain/loss {net) on foreign currency loan assets, liabilities and income & expenditure

accrued/accrued but not due are credited/charged to the statement of profitand loss.

7. ACCOUNTING FORREVENUE GRANTS

Fi

72

7.3

Grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 'other income’ on a systematic basis over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate provided
there is reasonable assurance of compliance of the terms attached with the sanction and of realization of
amountof grants.

Grants received in respect of expenditure already incurred in prior periods are recognized in the Statement
of Profit & Loss inthe year of approval of grant.

The unspent amount of grant at the year end, if any, Is shown under Current Liabilities.

8. FIXEDASSETSAND DEPRECIATION

8.1.
8.2

8.3,
8.4,

8.5

8.6

Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,

The gross value of fixed assets is reduced by amount of grants received for acquiring these assets. The grant is
thus recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the useful life of a depreciable asset by way of a
reduced depreciation charge,

The additions to fixed assets are capitalized on the approval of bills/invoices.

Depreciation of fixed assetsis provided at the rates and manner provided in 5chedule X1V of the Companies
Act, 1956 following written down value method. Depreciation on individual assets having cost T 5000/-or less
ischarged at 100% as prescribed in the aforesaid schedule.

Permanentimprovermnent in leasehold premises is depreciated over the remaining lease term or its useful life,
whicheverisshorter.

An Intangible Asset is recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the
assetswill flow to the company. These assets are amortized over a period of 4 years,

9. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

The contribution towards Provident Fund deducted from remuneration of employees andemployer
contribution thereonis depasited with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFO).

The employee benefits obligations Le, leave encashment, sick leave and leave travel concession, has been
pravided for the period up to date of reporting on the actuarial valuation of same,

Gratuity has been provided on the basis of amount payable to LIC on Group Gratuity Scheme through trustin
thename of IFCL Employees Group Gratuity Fund.

10. ACCOUNTING FOR OPERATING LEASES

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and losson a
straight line basis over the lease term.

11. DERIVATIVEACCOUNTING

11.1 Wherever the company has entered into forward contract or an instrument Le, in substance of a forward

exchange contract, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate on the date of forward
exchange contract is recognized as income or expenses over the life of the contract as per AS-11.

11.2. Hedging taken on foreign currency loans is adjusted on FIFQ basis after adjusting for the Loans given in

foreign currency (i.e.natural hedge).

11.3. The accounting of the derivative transactionsis as under:-

a.  interest Rate Swap which hedges interest bearing assets or liability is accounted for like the hedge of

the assetorliability.
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b. The swap that is accounted for like a hedge Is accounted for on accrual basis except the swap
designated with an asset or liability that is carried at market value or lower of cost or market valuein the
financial statements.In that case the swap is marked to market with the resulting gain or loss recorded
as an adjustment to the market value of designated asset orliability.

114 The surplus or deficit on account of difference in spot exchange rate at the inception of forward contract and
repayment of underlying foreign currency loan obligation recovered from or paid fo counter party
respectively as perthe hedging contractis recognized as gain or loss at the time of repayment of such loan,

11.5 Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts including interest rate
swaps isrecognized asincome or as expense for the year.

11,6 In respect of interest rate swap transactions in JPY Yen entered by the company, the company is providing
mark to market loss as on Balance Sheet Date.

12 TAXES ON INCOME

121 Tax onincome for the current period is determined on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961, and based on expected outcome of
assessments/appeals and on the basis of changes adopted by the company in accounting policies &
estimates.

12.2 Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for
the period, and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or subsequently enacted as on the Balance
Sheetdate,

12.3 Deferred tax assets are recognized and reassessed at each reporting date and carried forward to the extent
that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized,

13. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A provision is made when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and itis probable thatan
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made
based on technical valuation and past experience. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet dateNo
provisionis made for liabilities arising from transactions and events whose future outcome cannot be ascertained
with reasanable certainties, Such contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the note of
contingent liability on the basis of judgment of the management/independent expert. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted toreflect the current management estimate.
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24.(B) OTHER NOTES TO THE FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR

ENDED 31" MARCH2013
1.1a) The Subsidiaries considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are India
Infrastructure Finance Company (UK.} Limited incorporated at United Kingdom, IIFCL Projects Limited and
IIFCL Asset Management Company Limited incorporated at India.
(b} The Consolidated Financial Statements of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited is for ended on
31" March 2013. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are also made for the year/period ended
31" March 2013,

TinlLac

Asat Asat
31"March2013  31"March2012

2.(a} | Estimated amountof contractsremaining tobe 34144 Mil

executed on capital account (net of advances)

Estimated amount of contracts under Corporate  Social Responsibility 144,68 Mil
[C5R} remaining to be executed (netof advances)

Lincalled liability on account ofcapltal commitment in res-pect aofVenture
Capital Units of IDFC Project Equity Domestic Investors Trust |l 2,90093 395541

_testarolComiorifnlsunptiomarcionedlly —________ERIBSESGLEN 8675857
The company has issued letters of comfort to respective lead banks in the consortium of lenders for issuing LC on
behalf of respective borrowers for subsequently releasing the amount of LC towards disbursement of sanctioned

|oanassistance,

(d)

In respect of cess on turnover or gross receipt of company w/s 441A of Companies Act, 1956,to be levied @ notless
than 0.005% and not more than 0.1% on the value of the annual turnover or gross receipt whichever is higher, no
provision has been made, as the cess rate & the date from which it is applicable has not been notified so far by the
Govt. Though no such notification has been issued so far, the Company may have to pay cess minimum of ¥ 50.84
lac and maximum of T 1,016.79 lac, if levied from the financial year 2005-06 being the year in which company was
incorporated,

(e)

The guarantee document, for providing partial credit enhancement guarantee of 24% of proposed bond issue of
project company amounting to a maximum of ¥320 crore with GMR Jadcherla Expressway Limited under Credit
Enhancement Scheme by IIFCL, was executed on 16 January, 201 3. However, the credit enhancement obligation
would commence from the date of issue of bonds.

3.
A)

Disclosures of Related Parties and related party transactions:

Managerial Remuneration and related party disclosure
iy KeyManagerial Personnel-

Shri 5.K. Goel - Chairman and Managing Director
{Tenure from 24" June 2010)
ShriHarsh Kumar Bhanwala . Executive Director
(Tenure from 25" October 2012)

- ShriSKrishnan - Managing Director, IIFC (UK) Ltd
(Tenurefrom 25" October 20132)

= ShriM.K.Madan : Ex Managing Director, IFC (UK} Ltd.
(Tenure from 8" September 2008)

- ShriG.George - Director, IIFC (UK) Ltd.
(Tenure from 19" November 2010)
Shri ESRao . Director & CEO{IIFCL Projects Ltd.)
{Tenure from 29" March 2012}

il Whaolly owned Subsidiary Companies; {a) India Infrastructure Finance Company (LK) Limited
(b} IIFCL Projects Ltd.and

() IFCL Asset Management Company Ltd.

iii} Associate Companies: a) Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development
Corporation Limited (DMICDC) (Company held ¥ 41/-
lac equity shares of T10/- each as on 317 March 2013,
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which comprised 41% of equity shares capital of
DMICDC as on that date )

The Board of Directors of DMICDC in its meeting held
on 28" March 2013 has recommended the preferential
allotment of 900 lac Equity Shares of T10/- each at par,
in one or more tranches, aggregating to T 9,000 lac on
the terms & conditions of allotment to the
Government of India (441/- lac Equity Shares of 10/-
each atpar aggregating toT 4,410/~ lac), Japan Bank for
International Cooperation (JBIC) (260 lac Equity Shares
of T10/- each at par aggregating to T2,600 lac) and
Housing and Urban Development Corporation
Limited ([HUDCO) (199 lac Equity Shares of T 10/- each
at par aggregating to ¥ 1,990/- lac) followed which the
proposal is also authorized in Extra-ordinary General
meeting of DMICDC held on 28" March 2013,
Mllotment of these shares is pending as on 31" March
2013. Consequent upon allotment of these equity
shares in future, holding of IIFCLin equity share capital
of DMICDC would reduce to 4.19% i.e. 41 lac Equity
Shares of ¥ 10/-each atparaggregating to ¥ 441 lac,

{b) Irrigation and Water Resources Finance Corporation
Limited (IWRFCL) (Chairman and Managing Director of
the company also holds additional charge as
Chairman & Managing Director of IWRFCL welf.
22 March 2012)
Bl Transactions during the year ended 31° March 2013
{Previous year ended 31" March, 2012) with related
parties:
S.No. | PARTICULARS | Amount
a) | Managerial Remuneration
(i) Shri5.K.Goel | Chairman and Managing Director)
| Remu neration | 2345 1lac i;ﬁiiﬂéc duri hg year endedi IEMMchEDHZJ_
Perquisites F1.501ac (T 1.61 lac during yearended 31" March 2012)
Provision for Performance linked incentive T11.85lacincludes ¥ 1.85 lac for previous year
¥8.15 lac during yearended 317 March 2012}
| Leave encashment, PF & Gratuity 7543 lac (¥ 3.73 laclacduring yearended 317 March 2012)
{ii} Shri Harsh Kumar Bhanwala (Executive Director)
Remuneration ¥8.92lac (Nilduring year ended 31" March 2012)
Perquisites #0.13 lac (Nil during year ended 31" March 2012)
Prowvision for Performance linked incentive ¥ 3.38 lac (Nl during year ended 31" March 2012)
| Leave encashment, PF & Gratuity ¥1.84 lac (Nil during year ended 317 March 2012)
{iii) Directors Remuneration & Perquisites ¥115.791ac{¥ 85.98 lac during year ended
| IFC [UK) Ltd. 31" March 2012)
| (iii) ShriPradeep Kumar (Ex Chief Executive ' B
Officer)
Remuneration Mil {2 12.99 lac during year ended 31" March2012)
| Perquisites Nil (¥ 0.19lac during yearended 31" March 2012)
Provision for Performance linked incentive ¥3.12 |ac for previous year (T 5.00 lac during
yearended 31" March 2012}
| Leave encashment & Pension Mil {2 6.18 lacduring yearended 31" March 2012
b} | Investmentin equity shares(Associate Carmpany)

Delhi Mumbaiindustrial Corridor Development
| Corporation Limited (DMICDC)

Mil (T 411.03 lac during year ended 31" March 2012)
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-c}_LRentrecehreda’ recaverable from associate companies:

i) | Irigation andWater Resources Finance Corporation | 2 40.23 lac [% Nil during year ended 31" March 2012)
Limited
(d) | Expensesrecovered/recoverable from associate companies:

i) | Irrigation and Water Resources Finance Corporation | ¥19.591ac(¥ 0.18 lacduring yearended 31" March 2012)

Limited

C) Balances outstanding

Tin Lac
5.No. PARTICULARS Asat Asat
31"March2013 31"March 2012
Al |Remuneration &other benefits
Key Managerial Person
Provision for Performance Linked Incentive toWhole time Directors 3538 33.15
Leave Encashment {provision) 13.26 10.75
Gratuity (provision) 378 3.20
Providentfund ] 032 2952
Pension and Leave Encashment contribution payable = 0.54
B) Investmentinequityshares
i) |Associate
Dethi Mumbailndustrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited 411.03 411.03
(DMICDC)®
C) |Amount/Rentrecoverablefrom associate company
Irrigation and Water Resources Finance Corporation Limited 017 018

*Includes expenses capitalized ¥1.03 lac.

4. InvestmentinVenture Capital Units

During the year ended 31" March 2013, the company has invested ¥ 1054.48 |ac (T 1,753.59 lac during year ended
31" March 2012) in Venture Capital Units of IDFC Froject Equity Domestic investors Trust || promoted by the company
alang-with IDFC, Citibank (cumulative amount of investment by the company is $7099 .071ac). Out of total commitment
of 1,00,000 lac, the company has contributed as investor in the venture and does not have joint control. Since there is no
distributable profit in the fund, no income is accounted for, in the books of accounts in relation to such investments.
However,the company has received during the current year asumof? 522,10 lac (T 172 lac during year ended 31" March
2012 inchuding tax paid ¥ 33,14 lac (¥ 12.32 lac during year ended 31" March 2012} in respect of redemption of venture
capital units.




Annual Report 2012-13

5. (a)Disclosure under Accounting Standard 29 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (A5-29)"

2in Lac
PARTICULARS Forthe Year ended Asat

31"March2013  31"March 2012
{i) Income Tax (Met)
Cpening Balance 1,404.12 B71.72
Addition during the period 44,087.00 28.117.01
Excess Provision written back during the period - 456.44
Amount paid/ adjusted during the period 44,638.38 2703817
Closing Balance 942,74 1,494.12
(ii)intereston Income Tax
Opening Balance 4537 83.00
Additian during the period 95.39 45.37
Excess Provision written back during the period 39.06 44.70
Amount paid/ adjusted during the period 10.38 38.30
Closing Balance 91.38 45.37
(iii) Wage Revision [ See note 10 (A) (V])
Opening Balance - 72.56
Addition during the period 37.29 135.90
Amount Paid/ Transferred to current liabilities - 20846
Closing Balance 3729 -
{iv) Leave Fare Concession
Opening Balance 844 5.58
Addition during the period 26.67 1847
Amount paid/adjusted during the period 2621 1561
Closing Balance 890 B.44
{v) Leave Encashment
Opening Balance 33.00 17.69
Addition during the period 41,57 23.50
Amount paid/adjusted during the period 7.36 B9
Closing Balance 67.21 33.00
(vi)Sick Leave
Opening Balance ‘9,89 6.17
Addition during the period 15.51 172
Amount paid/adjusted during the period - -
Closing Balance 2540 989
(wii) Performance Linked Incentive to Whole Time Directors
Opening Balance 33.15 20.00
Addition during the period 1835 13.15
Amount paid/adjusted during the period - -
Closing Balance 51.50 33.15
[wiii) Marked to Market Losses on Derivatives
Opening Balance 6,654.76 3,199.06
Addition during the period (974.01) 1,455.70
Amount paid/adjusted during the period - -
Closing Balance 5,680.75 6,654.76
(ix) Contingent Provision for Standard Assets
Opening Balance 5,208.00 -
Addition during the period 1,791.34 5,208.00
Closing Balance 6,999.34 5,208.00
(%) Provision for Sub-standard Assets
Opening Balance - -
Addition during the period 2,361.92 -
Closing Balance 2361.92 -
(xi) Provision for Standard Restructured Loan Assets
Opening Balance s =
Addition during the period 176.94 -
Closing Balance 176.94 -




(b} Disclosureunder Accounting Standard 15 [revised 2005) " Employee Benefits" (A5-15)
1.1} Inrespectof employees ofthe company based on actuarial valuation of liability
i) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

TinLac
Leave Leavefare Sick leave
encashment concession
Current Service Cost 2195 459 1040
Interest cost on benefit obligation 1.78 0.58 0.79
Expected return on plan assets MN.A, M.A. MN.A,
Metactuarial {gain)/Loss recognizedin the year 1531 2139 433
Expensesrecognized in Statement of Profitand Loss 39.04 2665 15.52
N_A denotes not available during the period
it} The amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
Tin Lac
Leave Leavefare Sickleave
encashment concession
Present value of obligationas at 31/03/2013 (i) 53.94 8.90 25.40
Fairvalue of plan assets asat 31/03/2013 (i) il Mil Mil
Difference (i} — (i) (53.94) 18.90) {25.40)
Net Asset/|Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (53.04) (8.90) {25.40)
i} Changesinthe Present Value of the defined benefitobligation ¥inLac
Leave Leavefare Sickleave
encashment concession
Present value of obligationas at01.04.2012 22265 B8.44 0.89
Interest Cost 1.78 0.68 0.79
Current Service Cost 2195 4.58 10.40
Benefits paid (7.36) (26.19) .
MNetactuarial (gain)/loss onobligation 1531 21.39 4,33
Present value of the defined benefit obligation as at
31.03.2013 53.94 890 2540

MN.A.denotes not available.

iv] The actuarial valuation of lability as on 31" March 2013 in respect of defined retirement and other benefits
were made based on following assumptions:

Maortality rate # LIC ( 1994-96)
Withdrawal rate # Upto30years 3%
31" yeartodd years 2%
Above 44 years 1%
Discount rate (p.a) # 8.00%
| Salary escalation # &%

# LIC has determined liability towards contribution of gratuity scheme of IFCL employees considering withdrawal rate of
1% to 3% depending on age, discount rate of 8% p.a.and salary escalation of 6% p.a.( previous year 6% p.a.)
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1.2} Inrespect of Chairman & Managing Director & Executive Director.: TinlLac
| Gratuity Leave Leave fare
encashment concession
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profitand Loss [ 0.58 252 -
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet | 3.78 13.26 -

6. The Company's main business is to provide finance/ refinance for Infrastructure Projects, UK subsidiary i.e. India
Infrastructure Finance Company (UK} Limited is also engage in the business of viding finance for infrastructure
projects whereas the lIFCL Projects Limited is engaged in infratructure project development & advisory activities and
IIFCL Asset Management Company Limited (IAMCL) is set up to engage in management of Infrastructure Debt Funds
(IDFs) through Mutual Fund route, As [AMCL is yet to start management of IDF, segment information is not furnished
for the same. Segment information as required by Aceounting Standard 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India is furnished below:

¥in Lac
Financing Advisory ServicesTotal
Segment Reporting Revenue
Revenue from Operation 35021733 | 72.50 | 3,50,289.83
Less:inter segment Revenue : = | s | .
Total Operating Income 3,50,.217.33 7250 3,50,289.83
Segment Results
Profit Before Tax 1,51,746.24 267 1,51,748.91
E;ﬁo:a-;e;nmme (IAMCL) B7.37
Tax f 50,812.99
| Profit AfterTax 1,00,923.29
Segment Assets | 40,66,594.75 76.62 | 40,66,671.37
Segment Liabilities | 35,57,262.66 47.06 35,57,309.72
Capital Employed . 5,00,332.09 | 20.56 |
Depreciation and Amortization j 51.00 | 053 51.53
Capital Expenditure _ 263.76 551 26927
Mon Cash Expenditure 332212 | - 332212

7. Interms of Accounting Standard 20 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Earning per share (Basic &
Diluted) is worked out as under:

Forthe yearended Fortheyearended
31.03.2013 31.03.2012
* Particulars Amount(? inlac) Shares Amount(? 'iﬁla_:i' Shares
NominalValue of share (T) 104 o/~
Mumber of Equity Share (No.in lac) 29,000 25,000
Met Profit (after tax) 1,00,92329 67,799.07
Earning Per Share (Mot Annualized) (T) 3.65 328

EPS for the current period has been calculated on welghted average number of equity shares of 27.641.10 lac
(Previous period 20,642.08 lac)
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8. a. Interms of Accounting Standard -22 on "Accounting for Taxes on Income®, income tax expense for the current period
is determined an the basis of taxable income and the tax credit camputed in accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act 1961 and based on expected outcome of assessments [ appeals and also on the basis of changes
adopted by the company in Accounting estimates during the current financial year having effect on deferred tax
asset/liability.

Deferred tax liability or asset is recognized on timing differences which is reversible between the accounting income
and the taxable income for the year and guantified using the tax rates and provisions, enacted or subsequently
enacted as on balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets if any, are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized,

b. During the year, the company has created net deferred tax liability of 7 6,825.99 lac (net deferred tax asset of 7 3,628.24
lac created during yearended 317 March 2012).

9. Fixed assets possessed by the company are treated as 'Corporate Assets' and not 'Cash Generating Units' as defined by
Accounting Standard-28 on "lmpairment of Assets”. As on 31" March, 2013, there were no events or change in
circumstances which indicate anyimpairmentinthe assets.

10. Provisions of Accounting Standard (A5-19)

al Financial Leasa:MIL

b} Operating Lease: The Company has taken office premises under operating lease with varying lease periods and
disclosure requirements are as under:-

TinlLac
Period | FortheYear Ended Forthe Year Ended
31" March 2013 31" March2012
Total of future minimum lease payments (Gross Investment) 2451.94 3,805.19
Present value of lease payments [ 2.190.41 317932
10 Year G-5ec Yield B.01% B.540%
Maturity profile of total of future minimum lease payments
Mot later than one year | B69.48 B47.88
Later than one year but not later than five year 1,582.46 2,940.92
Laterthan five year - 1640
Total 2,451.94 3,805.20

11. Derivative Transactions

a)  During the year 2007-08, the company had entered into two interest rate swap (IRS) transactions of notional
principal amowunts of § 5000 lac each (equivalent to notional principal of JPY ¥ 27,323.62 lac) which will mature on
19" December 2022. According to these IRS deals, the company will pay interest @ 7.46% p.a. on JPY notional
amount (wherein coupon payments remains fixed for 5 years at the rate of 1JPY="7 0.3658 in ane deal and LIPY=
¥ 0.3662 in second deal) and receive interest @ 8.82% p.a. on | notional principal amounts. The company has
provided for entire Mark-tomarket loss, as computed by the counter party banks and confirmed by other valuer,on
the above swap transactions amounting to ¥ 5,680.75 lacas at 31" March 20013 (¥ 6,654.76 lac as at 31" March 201 2)
which includes profit by way of write back of provision of ¥ 974.01 lac for the year ended 31" March 2013 (loss of
% 1,455.70lac foryearended 31"March 2012).

b) The company has undertaken composite contracts i.e. Interest Rate Swap cum forward exchange contracts to
hedge risks relating to floating interest rates as well as foreign exchange fluctuations on foreign currency
borrowings from multilateralinstitutions as under,
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Institution Amount of composite contractsi.e.
Interest Rate Swap cum forward
_ exchange contracts#
Asian Development Bank (ADB)
31" March 2013 USDR,002.74lac
(31" March 2012) {USD 757287 lac)
31"March 2013 T3,69711.27lac

{31"March 2012)

(¥347,238.72 lac)

Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau (KFW)

31" March 2013 Euro 254.74 lacs
(31" March2012) (Euro 254,74 lacs)
31" March 2013 11556294 ac
_(31"March2012) (215,562 94lac)
IBRD'World Bank
31" March 2013 UsD194.881ac
(31" March 2012) (USD194.88 lac)
31" March 2013 78,657.36lac
(21" March 2012) (¥ 8.657.361ac)

As per the Mark-to-Market (M2M) valuations furnished by the counter party banks and other valuer on the above
compaosite contracts, the net M2M gain as on 31" March 2013 amounts to T 70,689.36 lac (Gross gain of T 70,689.36 lac
less Gross loss Nil) and M2M gain as on 31" March 2012 amounted to ¥ 37,926.83 lac (Gross gain of T38,082.87 lac less
Gross loss T 156,04 lac).

The M2M lasses, if any, on Interest Rate Swaps (IRS is not being accounted for in the books of accounts as the underlying
liability designated with swap is also not carried at lower of cost or market value in the financial statements and the
M2M loss relating only to IRS cannot be computed separately and provided for as required by the announcement of
ICAl on 'Accounting for Derivatives' as the company had entered into compasite contracts for hedging and the interest
payable to counter parties also includes amount of premium, if any, which has not been mentioned/ identified
separately in the composite contracts

During the financial year ended 317 March 2012, the company has also sought the cpinion of Expert Advisory
Committee of the Institute of Chartered accountant of India to advice on the correct counting treatment to be followed
by the company in this regard which is awaited.
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ic) Unhedged position of foreign currency loansisas under: Finlac
Institution Amount of Unhedged Foreign Currency
Loans
Asian DevelopmentBank (ADB)#
31" March 2013 LSD 246464 lac
(31" March 2012) {USD 954,28 lac)
31" March 2013 71,34,049.85 lac
(31" March 2012 {%48,817.80 lac)
Kreditanstalt ftirWiederaufbau (KFW)
31"March 2013 Eurc40.38lac
{31"March 2012} {Eura 27,75 lac)
31" March 2013 T2,808.41lac
(31" March 2012) (T 1,896.48 lac)
IBRDWorld Bank
31" March 2013 USD 3447 lac
(31" March 2012) (USD 34.47 lac)
31" March 2013 T1,875.06lac
{31"March 2012) (#1,763.61 lac)

# Unhedged amount of foreign currency loan from ADB includes USD 163.33 lac ie ¥ 8,883.38 lac (USD ¥ 179.98 lac ie
?9,207.15 lac as on 31" March 2012) being foreign currency loan given to a borrower in India to the extent of
which risk of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation is hedged naturally,

12. of R i erve

al In respect of privately placed bonds: Since the company is notified as Public financial institution within the
meaning of Section 4A of Companies Act 1956 vide notification no 5.0.143(E)(FN0.2/5/2008) Dated 14" January
2009 of Central Government, it is not required to create Bond Redemption Reserve in respect of private placed
bonds as per circular no 04/2013 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India dated 11th
February 2013.

b} in_respect of publicly placed bonds; The company issued 31563 lac (Previous year 9.09 lac) Long Term
infrastructure Bonds of the face value of 1000 each aggregating ¥ 3.15,631.89 lac during the financial year
ended 31" March 2013 (¥ 9,096.18 lac during the financial year ended 31" March 2012} through publicissue.

As per the circular no 04/2013 dated 11" February 2013 issued by Ministry of Company Affairs’, Government of
India requiring the financial institution within the meaning of section 4A of the Companies Act, 1956 to create
Debenture Redemption Reserve equal to 25% of the value of debentures issued through public issue, the
company has created bond redemption reserve of 71,856.02 lac up to 317 March 2013 (¥ 882.90 lac up to 317
March 2012 as per circular no.9/2002 dated 187 April 2002),

13, As per Accounting Standard-11 (A5-11) i.e.The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates", foreign currency
Ioan taken (to the extent hedged) and outstanding forward exchange contracts should be restated at the
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date and differences should be taken to statement of profit and loss
whereas the company has restated the above loans at the date of inception of the forward contact and
difference taken to statement of profit and loss as stated in Accounting Policy menticned at note 24(A){6.3)(a).In
view of the above, loan liability and foreign currency receivable account as on 31" March 20132 would have been
higher by ¥ 69,646.50 lac (higher by ¥ 43,320.36 lac as on 31" March, 2012). However, there would be no impact
on the profit for the year as loss on account of increase in foreign currency borrowings due to adverse
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rate is fully offset due to gain on principal amount of borrowings
hedged by the company (see note 24 (A) (6.2) (b)),
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14.

15.

16.

lal

{b)

lc}

{d)

During the current year, the company has allotted 4,000 lac number of equity share of 2 10 each aggregating to
7 40,000 lac to Government of India. Accordingly, issued and paid up equity share capital has increased from
% 2,50,000 lac to T 2,90,000 lac.

The pay revision of the employees of the company is due welf. 1" November 2012, Pending revislon of pay,a
provision of ¥ 37.29 lac has been made for the period 1° November 2012 to 31" March 2013 on estimated basis
taking base of 24% increasein last revision made from 1" November 2007 for next 5 years.

As per the Office Memorandum of Government of India dated 23" April, 2007, the company was regulated
directly by the Government of India and under a “sui-generis" regulatory regime. Accordingly, an Oversight
Committee was constituted by the Government of India. Consequent upon Union Cabinet approval in its
meeting held on 13" October 2011 to bring the Company under regulatory oversight of Reserve Bank of India by
registering it as an Non-Banking Finance Company- Infrastructure Finance Company (MBFC-IFC) conveyed by
Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance vide letter date 24" October 2011, the company is required
to initiate the process of registering it as an NBFC-IFC. Meanwhile, Department of Financial Services vide letter
dated 23" January 2012 has requested the Reserve Bank of India to create a special category of NBFC- IFC which
are whaolly owned by Government and whose borrowings are backed by sovereign guarantee and such NBFCs
be subjected to far lower Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) than normal NBFC. In this regard,
Department of Financlal Services, Ministry of Finance, Government of India vide email dated 8" October 2012
has informed that Reserve Bank of India is not in favour of creation of separate category of NBFC based on
ownership. Accordingly, IFCL has made request to Reserve Bank of India for registration as NBFC- IFC on 7"
March 2013. Information/documents sought by vide letter dated 15" March 2013 has been furnished by the
company and the matteris pending.

Prudential norms issued by RBI for NBFC-IFC do not apply to Company, being a Government owned company.
On registration as an NBFC-IFC, the company, being a Govt. owned company, would be quired to prepare a
roadmap for compliance with various elements of the NBFC Regulations in consultation with the Government
and submit the same to Reserve Bank of India (Department of Non Banking Supervision) as directed by RBl vide
notification Mo, DNBS.PD/CC No.6B6/03.02.089/2006- 07 dated 12" December 2006.

Pending registration as a NBFC, the Company and its subsidiary IIFC (UK] Ltd. have adopted prudential norms for
income recognition, asset classification and provisioning, applicable to NBFCs as per Non- Banking Financial
{Non Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Morms (Reserve Bank) Directions 2007, welf
financial year ended 31" March 201 2. Consequently, the consolidated net profit of company for the year ended
31" March 2013 [s stated lower by 31,757.27 lac, T 2,361.92 lac and 2176.94 lac on account of provision made for
Standard Loan Assets, Substandard Loan Assets and restructured standard loan assets respectively (Previous
year ¥ 5,173.58 lac for Standard Loan Assets includes T 1,215.391ac for year ended 31" March 2012) and is shown
as 'Provision for Loan Assets®inthe Statement of Profit and Loss.

The company and its subsidiary IFC {UK) Ltd. created reserve for loan assets at 0.40% of the total outstanding of
loan assets up to 31" March 2011. Consequent upon adoption of prudential norms during the year ended 317
March 2012 as stated in (b) above, the company and its subsidiary has discontinued the practice to transfer
amount to Reserve for Loan Assets and the existing Reserve for Loan Assets of ¥ 6,165.42 lac as on 31" March

2011 has been retained in the books of account of the company and its subsidiary ason 31" March 2013,

The company has restructured/rescheduled 21 loan accounts up to 31° March 2013 having eutstanding
balance of ¥2,82,040.42 lac ason 31" March 2013 (T 98,828.02 lacin 10loan accountsas on 31" March 2012) and
thereis no shortfall in value of security in these accounts as on 31" March 2013, Refer note 24(A)(4.5)(bi(iv)
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17.  Prior Period Income & Expenses which have beenincluded under natural heads in Staterment of Profitand Loss are as
under:
TinLac
Period FortheYear Ended Forthe Year Ended
31"March 2013 31"March 2012
Income on Loans & Advances 2,489.43 294.91
Penal Interest (20.40) (3.40)
Interest on Deposits with banks - (5.09)
Pre-payment Charges 7.08
CommissionreceivedonLC 188.98 -
Other Charges ' 1.6 >
Amountwritten back 3.53 95.35
Miscellaneous income 16.16 -
Total 2,685.94 381.77
Expenditure
Bond servicing expenses 0.31) 9.62
Bond Issue expenses - 10.21
Employee Benefit Expenses 6.30 247
Lease Rent 6.39 -
Interest on income tax 4.02 -
Miscellaneous expenses 2m 3.B5
Total 1841 26.15

18.

In view of the above, the net profit of the company for the year 317 March 2013 are stated higher by 7 266753 lac
{¥355.62 lac during the previous year)

During the year.the company has sent letters seeking confirmation of balances as on 31" March 201 3 to borrowers and
banks etc. Some of the balances appearing under Infrastructure Loans, borrowings and ather debit and credit balances
as on 317 March 2013 are subject to canfirmation and reconciliation and in the opinion of managemaent, no material
impact of such confirmation and reconciliation and also on account of pending resetting of interest rates in some of the
caseson financial statementsis anticipated.

19. The proceeds of bonds aggregating T 4,76,887.69 lac raised during financial year 2012-13 was utilized for repayment of

overdraft of 1,53,108 lac which was availed mainly for purpose of loan disbursement and payment of interest on
borrawings and the balance of ¥ 3,23,779.69 lac, pending utilization as per objective of respective bond issues, was
invested in bank deposits during the year having maturity date during 2013-14. Further, IFCL availed overdraft of
¥1,12,395.58 lac from various banks during the year against security of these bank deposits which was also utilized
mainly for purpose of loan dishursementand payment..ofinterest on borrowings.

Furthermaore, pending access ta the funds before creation of security for bonds in April 2013, proceeds of Tranche Il of
public issue of Tax Free bonds amounting to ¥ 27,244.20 lac was held in public issue accounts with various banks as on
31"March2013.

20. The previous year figures have been regrou ped wherever considered necessary.

As per our report of even date

For P.R.Mehra & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited

{Registration no: 00005 1M)

JaiPrakash Agarwal Harsh Kumar Bhanwala S5.K.Goel
Partner [Executive Director) {Chalrman and Managing Director]
Membership No.: 10270

Rajeev Mukhija
{General Manager- CFO & C5)

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 10.05.2013




* Launeh of Maiden Infrastrucivre Debt Fund Scheme of HFCL Mutual Fund,
by Shri P Chidambaram, Hon 'ble Union Finance Minister on Tiesday, 18" June 2013"

Launch of Maiden Infrastructure Debt Fund Scheme
of IFCL Mutual Fund

IAMCL

lrwestorns in the Schome
5 ; mmmm Canara Bank - T 100 Crorg " Crove
Other Invesig ¥ i smmerce - T 10 Crora

SENIL W ORI AR A




= ———— — — ——

India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
Bth Figor, Hindustan Times Buildng
18 & 20, Kasturba Gandhi Marg
Mew Delhi-110 001
Phona: 91-11. 23708263, 23708164
11 F C L Fax:91-11-23766258 23730251
B0 S0 3008

India Infrastructure Finance Company (UK) Limitad
Beckat House, 36, Old Jawry, Landon

EC2ZR 80D Unitad Kingdom

Tel: + 4d - 30 - 34407520, 77768950, TRODGSEL

Fax: + 44 - 20 - 34407525, TT76EH58

HFCL MUTUAL FUND
Clo IFCL Assat Managemant Company Limited
itk Floor, Hindustan Times Buslding 18 & 20,
Kasturba Gandhi Marg
Ny Drslhi=110 001
- Phona: §1-11- 237082583 23708264
IAMC L rax: 91-11-23766256, 23730251

P

HFCL Projects Ltd.

G¢th Floor, Hndustan Temes Buildéng 18 & 20,
Kasturba Gandhl Marg

Maw Defhi-110 001

Phone: 91-11- 23708263, 23700264

Fax : §1-11-23766256,23730251




